
Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date/Time: Tuesday, April 14, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M.

Location: Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin

Members: Michael Engelberger, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Eric Hohol, Greg Jenson,
Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Tricia Suess, Tim Swadley, Sonny
Swangstu, Pat O’Connor

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: EIGHT (8) MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM. The
Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please
notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:

 2015 Volunteers of the Year Proclamation
 2015 Business Persons of the Year Proclamation
 2015 Friend of Youth Proclamation
 Stoughton National Service Recognition Day Proclamation
 Update from Community Affairs and Council Policy on Council Rules Document

and the reading of emails during public comment
 April 7, 2015 Spring Election Results
 Kettle Park West Developer Presentation

2. Minutes and Reports:

 Minutes: Redevelopment Authority Minutes (2/11/2015), Business park North
Committee Minutes (3/31/2015), Landmarks Commission Minutes (3/12/2015),
Planning Commission Minutes (3/9/2015), Finance Committee Minutes (3/10/2015),
and Personnel Committee Minutes (3/2/2015)

3. Public Comment Period: (*Please note: Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s agenda)

4. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approval of Council minutes of: March 24, 2015
B. R-53-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the

updated position description for the Utilities Customer Service Technician
position. (Personnel recommends approval 5-0)

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below.



C. R-56-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the
updated position descriptions for the City Clerk, Deputy Treasurer, and Finance
Accounting Specialist. (Personnel committee met Monday, April 13, 2015)

OLD BUSINESS

5. O-8-2015 - Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-105(2)(a)3.b.; 78-105(2)(b)3.b.; 78-
105(2)(c)3.b.; 78-105(2)(d)3.b.; 78-105(2)(e)4.b.; 78-206(8)(z) and Appendix C. (Related
to the keeping of pigeons) (Planning Commission recommends Council denial 6–0)

SECOND READING

6. O-5-2015 - Proposed ordinance to amend section 78-706(5) related to exterior parking of
recreational vehicles. (Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0)

SECOND READING

7. O-4-2015 – Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-015; 78-205(4); 78-503; 78-504; and
78-718 for fencing regulations and other clarifications. (Planning Commission recommends
Council approval 6 – 0) SECOND READING

NEW BUSINESS

8. R-52-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to approve the revised job
description, position title change (based on duties) and increase in compensation for the
Human Resources & Risk Management Generalist position. (Personnel recommends
approval 4-0)

9. R-54-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to approve the hiring of a
second part-time Utilities Customer Service Technician. (Utilities Committee
recommends approval 5-0 and Personnel Committee recommends approval 4-0)

10. R-55-2015- Authorizing and Directing the Proper City Officials to Allow the
Administration of COBRA Benefits to be Outsourced to EBC Corporation. Therefore
Eliminating Risk for Non-Compliance from the City. (Personnel Committee recommends
approval 5-0 and Finance Committee recommends approval 5-0)

11. R-57-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated
position description for the Deputy Clerk and increase the hours from 20/wk to 30/wk as
the position will be assuming the payroll duties and other newly assigned tasks.
(Personnel Committee met Monday, April 13, 2015)

12. R-58-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to update the City of Stoughton
Work Rules to include the Police Sergeants. (Personnel recommends approval 4-0)



13. R-59-2015- Preliminary Resolution declaring intent to exercise Special Assessment
Powers (Finance recommends approval 5-0)

14. R-60-2015- Authorizing and directing the Director of Planning & Development to
prepare and submit a Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Grant for
Stormwater Management Planning and Modeling. (Finance recommends approval 5-0)

15. ADJOURNMENT

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate
aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.

By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Michael Engelberger





 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, April 14, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M. 


Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Michael Engelberger, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Eric Hohol, Greg Jenson, 


Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Tricia Suess, Tim Swadley, Sonny 


Swangstu, Pat O’Connor 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: EIGHT (8) MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM. The 


Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please 


notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


 2015 Volunteers of the Year Proclamation  


 2015 Business Persons of the Year Proclamation 


 2015 Friend of Youth Proclamation 


 Stoughton National Service Recognition Day Proclamation 


 Update from Community Affairs and Council Policy on Council Rules Document 


and the reading of emails during public comment 


 April 7, 2015 Spring Election Results 


 Kettle Park West Developer Presentation 


 


 


2. Minutes and Reports:  


 


 Minutes:  Redevelopment Authority Minutes (2/11/2015), Business park North 


Committee Minutes (3/31/2015), Landmarks Commission Minutes (3/12/2015), 


Planning Commission Minutes (3/9/2015), Finance Committee Minutes (3/10/2015), 


and Personnel Committee Minutes (3/2/2015) 


 


3. Public Comment Period:  (*Please note:  Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s agenda) 


 


 


 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


 


A. Approval of Council minutes of:  March 24, 2015 


B. R-53-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the 


updated position description for the Utilities Customer Service Technician 


position. (Personnel recommends approval 5-0) 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


 


 


C. R-56-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the 


updated position descriptions for the City Clerk, Deputy Treasurer, and Finance 


Accounting Specialist. (Personnel committee met Monday, April 13, 2015) 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


5. O-8-2015 - Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-105(2)(a)3.b.; 78-105(2)(b)3.b.; 78-


105(2)(c)3.b.; 78-105(2)(d)3.b.; 78-105(2)(e)4.b.; 78-206(8)(z) and Appendix C. (Related 


to the keeping of pigeons) (Planning Commission recommends Council denial 6–0)  


         SECOND READING 


 


6. O-5-2015 - Proposed ordinance to amend section 78-706(5) related to exterior parking of 


recreational vehicles. (Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0) 


         SECOND READING 


 


7. O-4-2015 – Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-015; 78-205(4); 78-503; 78-504; and 


78-718 for fencing regulations and other clarifications. (Planning Commission recommends 


Council approval 6 – 0)      SECOND READING 


 


 


NEW BUSINESS  
 


8. R-52-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to approve the revised job 


 description, position title change (based on duties) and increase in compensation for the 


 Human Resources & Risk Management Generalist position. (Personnel recommends 


 approval 4-0)  


 


9. R-54-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to approve the hiring of a 


 second part-time Utilities Customer Service Technician. (Utilities Committee 


 recommends approval 5-0 and Personnel Committee recommends approval 4-0)  


 


10. R-55-2015- Authorizing and Directing the Proper City Officials to Allow the 


 Administration of COBRA Benefits to be Outsourced to EBC Corporation. Therefore 


 Eliminating Risk for Non-Compliance from the City. (Personnel Committee recommends 


 approval 5-0 and Finance Committee recommends approval 5-0)   


 


11. R-57-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated 


 position description for the Deputy Clerk and increase the hours from 20/wk to 30/wk as 


 the position will be assuming the payroll duties and other newly assigned tasks. 


 (Personnel Committee met Monday, April 13, 2015) 


 


12. R-58-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to update the City of Stoughton 


 Work Rules to include the Police Sergeants.  (Personnel recommends approval 4-0) 


 


 







 


 


 


13. R-59-2015- Preliminary Resolution declaring intent to exercise Special Assessment 


 Powers (Finance recommends approval 5-0) 


 


 


14. R-60-2015- Authorizing and directing the Director of Planning & Development to 


 prepare and submit a Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Grant for 


 Stormwater Management Planning and Modeling. (Finance recommends approval 5-0)  


 


15. ADJOURNMENT 


 
 


 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677. 


 


By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Michael Engelberger 








 
 


 
 
Whereas, Stoughton is a community known for the dedication and commitment of its 


citizens; and 


Whereas, over the years our community has benefitted from countless volunteers and 


extraordinary business owners providing time, energy, and helping hands; and 


Whereas, volunteer efforts have kept our food panty stocked, delivered meals to our 


homebound, and fund-raised monies to provide assistance when needed; and, 


Whereas, Stoughton has been the beneficiary of many volunteer projects such as the 


Opera House renovation, Youth Center projects, hospital expansion, and numerous park 
projects, to name only a few; and  


Whereas, day after day we see volunteerism becoming more and more contagious; and 


Whereas, volunteerism proves to be a full circle, as those who receive are grateful, 


those who volunteer are humble, and those in our community are thankful; and 


Whereas, National Volunteer Week reflects the power that volunteers and 


extraordinary business owners have to inspire by example—volunteers both encourage 
those they help and motivate others to serve; now, 
 


Therefore, I, Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of Stoughton, proclaim  


The Stoughton Opera House Volunteers, Cindy Curtiss, and Larry Eifert 
Stoughton’s Volunteers of the Year for 2015 in recognition for his work in the 


community. Thank you for all that you do. 
 


In testimony whereof, I, Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of 
Stoughton, hereunto set my hand and caused the great seal of 
the City of Stoughton to be affixed this fifteenth day of April 
in the year two thousand and fourteen.  


 
Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of Stoughton 








S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O- 5 -15 Recreational Vehicle Parking 15.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Amending section 78-706(5) of the City of Stoughton Municipal Zoning Ordinance


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 - 0 with the Mayor voting.


Fiscal Impact: N/A


File Number: O - 5 - 2015 Date
Introduced:


March 24, 2015 First Reading


April 14, 2015 Second Reading


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows:


1. 78-706 (5) Exterior parking or and storage of recreational and trailering vehicles such as
mobile homes, jetski, boats, all trailers, campers, snowmobiles, off-road motorcycles, and
ATV's and similar vehicles. For this section, recreational vehicles are defined as either motor
vehicles or tow-able trailers and are primarily intended for leisure activities such as trail riding
and camping.


Recreational vehicles and trailers:


(a) Shall be Pparked or stored within the front yard or side yard must be on a


driveway that is made of a dust-free, continual hard surface such as concrete


or asphalt pavement dedicated parking spaces and shall be a minimum of five


feet from any property line or right-of-way line. Permeable pavement including


turfstone is also allowable. For this section, the side yard shall end at the rear of


the home.


(b) May be parked in the rear yard, beyond the rear of the home without the need for


a hard surface, subject to all other conditions. Note: corner lots have two fronts,


one side and one rear.


(b) Shall not be parked or stored within a front or street yard except for


subsection (a) above.


(c) Shall be owned by the resident who is occupying the property on which the


vehicle is parked or stored.


(d) Are permitted only for storage purposes except mobile homes and campers


may be used for overnight sleeping for a maximum of 14 days in one calendar


year.


(e) May Shall not be permanently connected to wastewater or sanitary sewer


lines, or electricity except for charging of batteries.


(f) May Shall not be used for storage of goods, materials or equipment other than


those items considered to be part of the unit or essential for its use.


(g) Shall be placed a minimum of five feet from all property lines and shall not be


parked within any easement.







(h) The maximum number of recreational vehicles and trailers allowed outside of a


building per property is three (3) unless the property is zoned for such outdoor


storage.


(i) A trailer with multiple recreational vehicles on it shall be considered one


recreational vehicle, but all recreational vehicles on the trailer shall be owned by


the resident occupying the property on which trailer is parked.


(j) Individual canoes, kayaks and similar vehicles not on a trailer are exempt from


these requirements.


2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication.


Dates


Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
City Clerk, Lana Kropf


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O- 5 -15 Recreational Vehicle Parking 15.doc







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Zoning Ord. Amend Recreational Vehicles 15.doc


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, March 9, 2015
at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, at the Public Safety Building,
Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider an amendment to the
City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances. The proposed ordinance amendment is to zoning
code section 78-706 (5) of the City of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance, Dane County, Wisconsin.


The amendment is proposed amend requirements for the exterior parking of recreational vehicles. The
proposed amendments may be viewed at the Department of Planning & Development, City Hall, 381 E.
Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589.


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421.


Michael Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published February 19, 2015 and February 26, 2015 Hub







CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: December 17, 2014


To: Planning Commissioners


From: Rodney Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: EXTERIOR PARKING OR STORAGE OF RECREATIONAL VEHICLES


The following is a summary to clarify the history related to the exterior recreational vehicle parking
standards.


1. The ordinance related to parking or storage of recreational vehicles prior to July 23, 2009 was as
follows:


78-456 (b) Permitted parking or storage of recreational vehicles. In all residential and commercial
districts provided for in this chapter, it is permissible to park or store a boat or trailer, recreational
vehicles or snowmobiles and snowmobile trailers on private property in the following manner:


(1) Parking is permitted inside any enclosed structure, which structure otherwise conforms
to the zoning requirements of the particular zoning district where located.


(2) Parking is permitted outside in the side yard or rear yard provided it is not nearer than
five feet to the lot line.


(3) Parking is permitted outside on a driveway, provided:
a. Space is not available in the rear yard or side yard or there is no reasonable


access to either the side or rear yard.
b. A corner lot is always deemed to have reasonable access to the rear yard.
c. A fence is not necessarily deemed to prevent reasonable access to the rear yard.
d. Inside parking is not possible.
e. The unit is parked perpendicular to the front curb.


(4) The body of the recreational vehicle or boat must be at least 15 feet from the face of any
curb.


(5) No part of the unit may extend over the public sidewalk or public right-of-way.
(6) Parking is permitted only for storage purposes. Recreational vehicles or boats shall not


be:
a. Used for dwelling purposes, except for overnight sleeping for a maximum of 14


days in any one calendar year.







b. Permanently connected to wastewater or sanitary sewer, sewer lines, water lines,
or electricity. The recreational vehicle may be connected to electricity
temporarily for charging batteries and other purposes.


c. Use for storage of goods, materials or equipment other than those items
considered to be part of the unit or essential for its immediate use.


(7) Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, a unit may be parked anywhere on the
premises during active loading or unloading and the use of electricity or propane fuel is
permitted when necessary to prepare a recreational vehicle for use.


78-456 (c) Ownership of recreational vehicles. The recreational vehicle or boat shall be
owned by the resident on whose property the unit is parked for storage.


2. There was a comprehensive zoning code update which was approved on July 23, 2009. The code
update did not include language regulating recreational vehicle parking.


3. On January 24, 2012 the Common Council created the following section within the zoning code to
regulate recreational vehicles:


78-706 Exterior storage standards for residential, office, and business districts.
(5) Exterior parking or storage of recreational vehicles such as mobile homes, boats,


trailers, campers, snowmobiles and ATV's.


Recreational vehicles:


(a) Shall be parked or stored within dedicated parking spaces and shall be a
minimum of five feet from any property line or right-of-way line.


(b) Shall not be parked or stored within a front or street yard except for
subsection (a) above.


(c) Shall be owned by the resident who is occupying the property on which the
vehicle is parked or stored.


(d) Are permitted only for storage purposes except mobile homes and campers
may be used for overnight sleeping for a maximum of 14 days in one calendar
year.


(e) May not be permanently connected to wastewater or sanitary sewer lines, or
electricity except for charging of batteries.


(f) May not be used for storage of goods, materials or equipment other than those
items considered to be part of the unit or essential for its use.


4. In an effort to provide clarification and flexibility to the current regulations and to address
citizen input, we are suggesting the following amendments (underlined and cross-struck) to
ordinance 78-706 (5):


(5) Exterior parking or storage of recreational vehicles such as mobile homes, boats,
all trailers, campers, snowmobiles and ATV's.


Recreational vehicles:


(a) Shall be Pparked or stored within the front yard or side yard must be on a
compliant driveway that is made of a dust-free, hard surface such as concrete







or asphalt pavement dedicated parking spaces and shall be a minimum of five
feet from any property line or right-of-way line. For this section, the side
yard shall end at the rear of the home.


(b) May be parked in the rear yard, beyond the rear of the home and shall be a
minimum of five feet from any property line and shall not be parked within
any easement.


(b) Shall not be parked or stored within a front or street yard except for
subsection (a) above.


(c) Shall be owned by the resident who is occupying the property on which the
vehicle is parked or stored.


(d) Are permitted only for storage purposes except mobile homes and campers
may be used for overnight sleeping for a maximum of 14 days in one calendar
year.


(e) May Shall not be permanently connected to wastewater or sanitary sewer
lines, or electricity except for charging of batteries.


(g) May Shall not be used for storage of goods, materials or equipment other than
those items considered to be part of the unit or essential for its use.


(h) The maximum number of recreational vehicles allowed per property is three
(3) unless the property is zoned for such outdoor storage.


S:\Planning\MPS\Committee Memo's\Planning Commission\Rec. Vehicle Parking 14.doc











Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
3/9/15
Page 5 of 6


S:\City Clerk\Clerks Office\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 3-9-15.doc


13. O-5-15 - Proposed ordinance to amend section 78-706(5) related to exterior parking of
recreational vehicles.
Scheel explained the history of this proposed ordinance amendment.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Motion by Hohol to recommend the Common Council approve O-5-15 as presented, 2nd by
Truehl. Motion carried 6-0.


14. O-4-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-015; 78-205(4); 78-503; 78-504; and
78-718 regarding fencing regulations and other clarifications.
Scheel explained the proposed ordinance amendment.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Motion by Hanna to recommend the Common Council approve O-4-15 as presented, 2nd by
Krcma.


Hohol questioned the requirement for streamers on garden fencing. Hanna questioned snow
fence removal by April 1st.


Scheel stated these requirements have not been an issue in the past.


Motion carried 6-0.


15. O-9-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend section 78-206(4)(j) to clarify commercial horse
stables are not allowed within the City of Stoughton.
Scheel explained the proposed zoning ordinance amendments.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.



mstacey

Highlight







S:\Planning\RJS\Dept._Memos\CLERK - Council- 032415.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: March 10, 2015


To: Lana Kropf
City Clerk


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Subject: Items for the March 24, 2015 Common Council Meeting.


Council Agenda:


New Business


1. R-26-15 – Elizabeth Cwik, BWZ Architects requests a conditional use permit for an
Indoor Commercial Entertainment Use (Wedding Reception Venue) at the Tobacco
Warehouse, 515 E. Main Street.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this request and
recommend Council approve R-26-15 contingent on the staff review letter dated February 24,
2015. Indoor commercial entertainment uses are allowed as a conditional use within the
Heavy Industrial district along Main Street. The existing parking layout is sufficient for the
proposed use but any additional use will require a review of the parking. A compliant
photometric plan has been received. Since the building is a Local Landmark, a certificate of
appropriateness (COA) has been requested from the Landmark Commission for the proposed
lighting to be added to the exterior of the building. The Landmarks Commission will review
the COA request on March 12, 2015. Staff has no suggestions to add conditions to this use at
this time. The resolution, Planning minutes, staff review letter and related materials are
provided. Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


2. R-27-15 – Stoughton Hospital requests a conditional use permit approval for an Indoor
Institutional use (Building Addition of two bay ambulance garage and renovations) at
900 Ridge Street.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this request and
recommend Council approve R-27-15 contingent on the staff review letter dated February 25,
2015. Hospitals are allowed as a conditional use within the Institutional district. The
proposed addition will add roughly 14,500 square feet to the building while renovating
approximately 18,000 square feet of existing building. The addition and renovations are
needed to increase the quality of treatment space to meet current best practices for patient







S:\Planning\RJS\Dept._Memos\CLERK - Council- 032415.doc


care. Staff has no suggestions to add conditions to this use at this time. The resolution, staff
review letter, planning minutes and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


3. R-37-15 - Preston Baker requests an Extra-Territorial Jurisdictional (ETJ) land division
(CSM) approval to allow the creation of an additional residential building lot at 1787
Oakview Drive and 2739 Yahara Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission reviewed this request and recommend Council
approve R-37-15 as presented. Land divisions within 1.5 miles of the City fall within the
City’s extra-territorial jurisdictional limits and are required to be approved by the Common
Council according to the City’s land division ordinance. This request is to reconfigure 2
parcels to create an additional buildable residential lot (3 lots total). The resolution, Planning
minutes, CSM and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


4. R-36-15 – Warren Brewster requests a certified survey map (CSM) approval to
reconfigure 5 parcels into 4 parcels (creating 3 buildable residential lots) at 101 W.
Chicago Street.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission reviewed this request and recommend Council
approve R-36-15 contingent on the CSM being modified to meet the required 6-foot side lot
line setback from the porch steps between lots 2 and 3. The CSM request is proposed to
reconfigure 5 existing parcels to create 3 buildable residential lots and 1 lot for the existing
home. The resolution, updated CSM and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


5. R-25-15 Bob Stoehr representing Milestone Senior Living requests certified survey map
(CSM) approval to combine the property at 2208 and 2300 Lincoln Avenue (lots 60 and
61, Second Stiklestad High Field Addition to Norse View Heights).
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission reviewed this request and recommend Council
approve R-25-15 as presented. The CSM is proposed to combine the parcels to allow the
construction of a senior living complex. The applicant is working with Stoughton Utilities to
vacate the easement between the 2 lots. The CSM, Planning minutes and resolution are
provided. Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


6. O-8-15 - Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-105(2)(a)3.b.; 78-105(2)(b)3.b.; 78-
105(2)(c)3.b.; 78-105(2)(d)3.b.; 78-105(2)(e)4.b.; 78-206(8)(z) and Appendix C. (Related
to the keeping of pigeons)
On January 12, 2015, the Planning Commission made a recommendation to the Common
Council to deny the request by Rosalie Bjelde to amend the zoning code to allow the keeping
of pigeons.


On January 27, 2015 the Common Council voted to send this request back to the Planning
Commission to provide a recommendation on an amendment to allow pigeons.


On February 12, 2015 the Planning Commission directed staff to amend the draft ordinance
for the keeping of pigeons and bring that draft back for a public hearing.







S:\Planning\RJS\Dept._Memos\CLERK - Council- 032415.doc


On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this zoning
amendment request and recommend Council deny O-8-15 as presented. The draft ordinance,
Planning minutes and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council denial 6–0.


7. O-5-15 - Proposed ordinance to amend section 78-706(5) related to exterior parking of
recreational vehicles.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this request and
recommend Council approve O-5-15 as presented. This amendment is proposed due to
several complaints about the restrictions related to the parking of recreational vehicles. The
ordinance, Planning minutes and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


8. O-4-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-015; 78-205(4); 78-503; 78-504; and
78-718 for fencing regulations and other clarifications.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this request and
recommend Council approve O-4-15 as presented. The ordinance and Planning minutes are
provided.


Zoning amendment explanations are as follows:


Sec. 78-015: Clarification for the definition of “Addition” to be consistent with the State
Code.


Sec. 78-205(4): Correcting the word migration with the word mitigation.


Sec. 78-503: Removing the statement to “see article V” since the statement is within article
V.


Sec. 78-504: Removing the statement to “see article V” since the statement is within article
V.


Sec. 78-718: Clarifying that all fencing must meet all zoning requirements no matter the
height and landscape walls are not regulated.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.



mstacey

Highlight








Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote ___________________


Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to approve the revised job description, position title
change (based on duties) and increase in compensation for the Human Resources & Risk Management
Generalist position.


Committee Action: Personnel Committee Approved 4-0


Cost: $2363.85 for the remainder of 2015


($3.09/hr, 45hrs/pay period X $3.09= $139.05, 17 pay periods remaining in the year.


File Number: R-52-2015 Date Introduced: April 14, 2015


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


WHEREAS the Personnel Committee has received a request to update the job description, title and
compensation for the part time (22.5 hrs/wk) Human Resources & Risk Management support position to
reflect the actual duties and responsibilities.


Based on the updated job description, the compensation would increase from $13.91/hour to up to
$17.00/hour depending on the applicants experience and education.


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on April 6, 2015, to consider the request for updates to the
job description, title change to Human Resources & Risk Management Generalist from Administrative
Assistant and compensation increased up to $17/hr and recommend approval; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approves the HR/RM
Generalist job description with compensation up to $17.00/hr dependent upon experience and
education.


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date







City of Stoughton Amy Jo Gillingham


Department of Director


Human Resources & Risk Management
381 East Main Street Stoughton, WI 53589


(608) 646-0272 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: March 10, 2015


To: Common Council


From: AJ Gillingham


Subject: Human Resources & Risk Management support position


The Human Resources and Risk Management Support position has been vacant since February
of 2015. The duties and responsibilities along with the job requirements do not mirror the
position description and the compensation is not market competitive.


The position responsibilities along with knowledge, skills and abilities are above the standard
level of an Administrative Assistant that typically handles clerical duties and some specialized
departmental tasks.


Therefore, I recommend that the title be updated to reflect the duties and responsibilities of the
position. The title I am recommending is Human Resources & Risk Management Generalist.
The primary purpose of the Human Resources & Risk Management Generalist is to provide
support to the Director and Department by providing first line support. Examples: report of
injury, report of accident, request for FMLA, scheduling interview, generation of reports, phone
screens as well as file and document retention, asset inventory-vehicle and other insured.


The former part-time Administrative Assistant-HR& RM position wage in 2015 was $13.91.
This wage rate is not market competitive for a Human Resources & Risk Management
Generalist. Based on the candidates experience and education, I would recommend the
compensation be adjusted to $17.00/hour.


I am requesting that the City of Stoughton Common Council approve the job description, title
change and compensation at the Stoughton Common Council meeting on March 24, 2015.











City of Stoughton
Position Description


Name: Department: Human Resources & Risk Mgmt.


Position Title HR & Risk Mgmt Generalist Pay Grade: FLSA: N


Date: Oct 2013 April 2015 Reports To: Finance/Admin Services Director
Director of HR & Risk Mgmt.


Purpose of Position


The purpose of this position is to perform receptionist duties in City Hall, perform related clerical tasks as
time permits, and back-up to the other part-time receptionist. The purpose of this position is to provide
support within the Human Resources and Risk Management Department.


Essential Duties and Responsibilities


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-
inclusive. Other duties may be required and assigned.


 Answers in-coming telephone calls and routes to appropriate persons or department. Takes and relays
messages. Determines when interruption of staff is required.


 Greets, directs and provides customer service to the public.


 Generates reports, correspondence agendas, packets and resolutions as requested by the Director of
HR & RM


 Updates City website and calendar for HR & RM.


 Provides a variety of information to visitors and caller’s questions.


 Performs clerical tasks as directed. Tasks include: typing correspondence, memos, meeting minutes
and agendas, lists, forms, and special projects as directed.


 Maintains miscellaneous city hall files, council personnel packets and resolutions.


 Tracks the coming and going of City staff (including lunch time, vacations, sick time).


 Tabulates monthly postage & copier usage and journal costs to appropriate department


 Prepares meeting notices and minutes for several city committees, maintains city meeting room
calendar and website calendar.


 Assists in posting job openings on the City website and providing clerical support in the hiring
process.


 Processes incoming and outgoing mail for City offices.







City of Stoughton Receptionist HR/RM Asst
Position Description


 Receives complaints/concerns or requests for service and determines the proper course of action to be
taken.


 Requisitions office supplies, monitors inventory, and journals costs to appropriate departments.


 Acts as a liaison between city residents and garbage disposal company. Distributes recycling bins and
literature regarding recycling and garbage pickup.


 Maintains and updates recycling and rubbish information brochure.


 Prepares annual City directory and maintains and updates directory as needed.


 Maintains City Hall Notice Board and information for the public displayed on the front door of City
Hall.


 Performs Notary Public duties.


 Assists with the preparing of absentee ballots, registers voters and assists with Election Day activities.


 Assists with updating policies and procedures manual.


 Assists with the preparing of Public Hearings.


 Assists with issuing City licenses.


 Answers inquiries from the public and others regarding property assessments, tax information and
other City Treasury information.


 Assists with the preparation of tax bill mailing and collection.


 Timesheets:


o Responsible for time sheet entry into system (recreation, court and any


other dept’s requiring assistance).


 Responsible for running pay roll (entire process)


o Prior to “go live” run defined reports for review by the Director of HR &


RM


o Complete all 9 Steps in the payroll process


o Run closing reports and forward to Director


o Pay insurances and other biweekly, monthly, quarterly and annual


bills/invoices


o Generate all year end reports and W-2’s


 Recruiting


o Place ads for open positions


o Conduct Phone screens


o Schedule interviews


o Send out rejection letters


o Prepare offer letters







City of Stoughton Receptionist HR/RM Asst
Position Description


 Complete employment verifications


 On boarding


o Prepare packets for full time and part time (benefit eligible) prepare packet for part-


time/seasonal <1039 (non-benefit eligible). Have at least 5 of each on hand.


o May meet with employee(s) (FT & PT) to complete paperwork and review City of


Stoughton work rules, policies and expectations.


o Benefit eligible employee- complete paperwork


 Setup benefits with the carriers and providers


 Forward file to Director for entry into HR Software


 May act as backup for entry into HR Software


 Maintain all new hire forms ensuring there are at least 10 copies at all times


 Terminations


o Assist with carrier notification


 FMLA


o Ensure that there are always 5+ FMLA packets ready


o If a request for FMLA is received forward to Director for qualification approval/denial


o If approved, send out paperwork (note on your calendar when it is due back)


o Once paperwork is received, fwd to Director for final review and approval/denial


o Prepare FMLA letter & mail


 Worker’s Compensation-First report of injury


o Form completion, file, CVMIC


 Liability Claims


o Form completion, file, CVMIC


 OSHA Year End


o Report & Notifications


 Filing and records maintenance (personnel files, FMLA, WC, Liability, MSDS)


 Assist with asset inventory for CVMIC


 State Unemployment Responses


o Prepare information for response and forward to Director


 Responsible for labor posters in common areas


 Special Projects


o BS&A- complete entry into system to track credentials, reviews & employee self service


rollout.


o Complete entry into BS&A populating reviews and other pertinent information


o Asset Video archive


 All other duties as assigned


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


High School diploma or equivalent and two-Five years responsible clerical experience including public
contact, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and
abilities. Human Resources experience preferred.







City of Stoughton Receptionist HR/RM Asst
Position Description


Two year degree or equivalent experience in Human Resources/Risk Management. Five plus years
Administrative experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent
knowledge, skills and abilities.
Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication


 Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring
the exercise of some judgment. Ability to compare, count, differentiate measure and sort information.
Ability to assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information.


 Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and
standards, as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from
others.


 Ability to utilize a wide variety of descriptive data and information, such as meeting minutes and
agendas, messages, computer software operating manuals, drafts of correspondence, memos, lists,
forms.


 Ability to communicate effectively with city employees, city hall visitors, Alderpersons, and the
general public.


 Ability to prepare a variety of documents including letters and other correspondence, meeting minutes
and notices, etc. using prescribed format and conforming to all rules of punctuation, grammar,
diction, and style.


Physical Requirements


 Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including personal computer, typewriter, Dictaphone,
photocopier, fax machine, multi-line telephone, postage meter, etc. requiring simple but continuous
adjustments.


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as rapid
keyboard use.


 Ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work.


Mathematical Ability


 Ability to add, subtract, multiply, divide and calculate decimals and percents.


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability


 Ability to use functional reasoning in performing semi-routine functions involving standardized work
with some choice of action.


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the
evaluation of information against measurable criteria.







City of Stoughton Receptionist HR/RM Asst
Position Description


Environmental Adaptability


 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental
factors poses little to no risk of injury.


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the American with
Disabilities Action, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with
disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations
with the employer.


___________________________ __________________________
Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature


___________________________ __________________________
Date Date


Council approved: 4-13-04 March 10, 2009







City of Stoughton
Position Description


Name: Department: Human Resources & Risk Mgmt.


Position Title HR & Risk Mgmt Generalist Pay Grade: FLSA: N


Date: April 2015 Reports To: Director of Human Resources & Risk Mgmt


Purpose of Position


The purpose of this position is to provide support within the Human Resources and Risk Management
Department.


Essential Duties and Responsibilities


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-
inclusive. Other duties may be required and assigned.


 Generates reports, correspondence agendas, packets and resolutions as requested by the Director
of HR & RM


 Recruiting


o Place ads for open positions


o Conduct Phone screens


o Schedule interviews


o Send out rejection letters


o Prepare offer letters


 Complete employment verification


 On boarding


o Prepare packets for full time and part time (benefit eligible) prepare packet for part-


time/seasonal <1039 (non-benefit eligible). Have at least 5 of each on hand.


o May meet with employee(s) (FT & PT) to complete paperwork and review City of


Stoughton work rules, policies and expectations.


o Benefit eligible employee- complete paperwork


 Setup benefits with the carriers and providers


 Forward file to Director for entry into HR Software


 May act as backup for entry into HR Software


 Maintain all new hire forms ensuring there are at least 10 copies at all times


 Terminations


o Assist with carrier notification


o Generate termination acceptance letters







 FMLA


o Ensure that there are always 5+ FMLA packets ready


o If a request for FMLA is received forward to Director for qualification approval/denial


o If approved, send out paperwork (note on your calendar when it is due back)


o Once paperwork is received, fwd to Director for final review and approval/denial


o Prepare FMLA letter & mail


 Worker’s Compensation-First report of injury


o Form completion, file, CVMIC


 Liability Claims


o Form completion, file, CVMIC


 OSHA Year End


o Report & Notifications


 Filing and records maintenance (personnel files, FMLA, WC, Liability, MSDS)


 Assist with asset inventory for CVMIC


 State Unemployment Response


o Prepare information for response and forward to Director


 Responsible for labor posters in common areas


 Updates City website and calendar for HR & RM.


 Special Projects


o BS&A- complete entry into system to track credentials, reviews & employee self service


rollout.


o Complete entry into BS&A populating reviews and other pertinent information


o Asset Video archive


 All other duties as assigned


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions
Two year degree or equivalent experience in Human Resources/Risk Management. Five plus years
Administrative experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent
knowledge, skills and abilities.


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions







Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication


 Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring
the exercise of some judgment. Ability to compare, count, differentiate measure and sort information.
Ability to assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information.


 Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and
standards, as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from
others.


 Ability to utilize a wide variety of descriptive data and information, such as meeting minutes and
agendas, messages, computer software operating manuals, drafts of correspondence, memos, lists,
forms.


 Ability to communicate effectively with city employees, city hall visitors, Alderpersons, and the
general public.


 Ability to prepare a variety of documents including letters and other correspondence, meeting minutes
and notices, etc. using prescribed format and conforming to all rules of punctuation, grammar,
diction, and style.


Physical Requirements


 Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including personal computer, typewriter, Dictaphone,
photocopier, fax machine, multi-line telephone, postage meter, etc. requiring simple but continuous
adjustments.


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as rapid
keyboard use.


 Ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work.


Mathematical Ability


 Ability to add, subtract, multiply, divide and calculate decimals and percents.


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability


 Ability to use functional reasoning in performing semi-routine functions involving standardized work
with some choice of action.


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the
evaluation of information against measurable criteria.


Environmental Adaptability


 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental
factors poses little to no risk of injury.







The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the American with
Disabilities Action, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with
disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations
with the employer.


___________________________ __________________________
Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature


___________________________ __________________________
Date Date


Council approved: 4-13-04 March 10, 2009 UPDATE WHEN APPROVED BY COUNCIL





		R-52-2015- HR & Risk Manageent.pdf

		HR & RM Generalist Memo to Council.pdf

		Administrative Support -REVISED  April 2015 RED LINE.pdf

		Administrative Support -REVISED  April 2015 FINAL.pdf






 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to approve the hiring of a second part-time Utilities 


Customer Service Technician 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee (5-0) 


 


Personnel Committee approved (4-0) 


  
 
File Number: 


 
R-54-2015 


 
Date Introduced:   April 14, 2015 


 


WHEREAS the Utilities Committee met on March 16, 2015 and unanimously approved the second 


Customer Service Technician position (5-0).  Recommendation and approval to move to personnel 


committee. 


 
WHEREAS the Personnel Committee has received the request to update the position description for the 


Utilities Customer Service Technician at $14.26/hr with 4 steps to $15.74. 


 


 


WHEREAS, your Personnel Committee met on April 6, 2015, to consider the request for updating the 


Utilities Customer Service Technician position description and recommend approval; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby authorized and directed to update the position description for the Utilities Customer Service 


Technician position.   


 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 
 








 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to outsource the administration of COBRA Benefits 


to EBC Corporation therefore eliminating risk for non-compliance from the City for a cost of $850 


(includes setup charges) for the first year and then approximately $600 for years following.    


 


 Committee Action: 


 


 


 


 


 


Cost: $850 


 


 
Personnel Committee approved the outsourcing of COBRA Administration to 


EBC Corporation (5-0) 


 


Finance Committee approved the outsourcing of COBRA Administration to EBC 


Corporation (5-0) 


  
 
File Number: 


 
R-55-2015 


 
Date Introduced:   April 14, 2015 


 
WHEREAS the Personnel Committee has received the recommendation to outsource the administration 


of COBRA Benefits to EBC Corporation therefore eliminating risk for non-compliance from the City for 


a cost of $850 (includes setup charges) for the first year and then approximately $600 for years 


following.    


 


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on March 2, 2015, to consider the recommendation for 


outsourcing COBRA Administration and recommend approval; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approves the outsourcing of 


COBRA Administration to EBC Corporation.   


 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 
 








RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated position description for the
Deputy Clerk and increase the hours from 20/wk to 30/wk as the position will be assuming the payroll
duties and other newly assigned tasks.


Fiscal Impact: $6623.20 for remainder of the year


($19.48/hr X 20 hrs per pay period, X 17 pay periods remaining in the year =$6623.20)


Committee Action: Personnel Committee meets Monday, April 13, 2015


File Number: R-57-2015 Date Introduced: April 14,2015


WHEREAS the Personnel Committee has received the request to update the position description for the
Deputy Clerk and to increase the weekly hours from 20 to 30.


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on April 13, 2015, to consider the request for updating the
Deputy Clerk position description, increase the weekly hours to 30 and recommends approval; now
therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approves the updated position
description for the Deputy Clerk and increase in weekly hours to 30.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date







City of Stoughton
Position Description


Name: Department: Finance


Position Title: Deputy Treasurer Pay Grade: FLSA: N


Date: April 2015 Reports To: Finance Director/
Administrative Services Dir.


Purpose of Position


The purpose of this position, appointed under State Statute 63.09(a)(F) and according to City hiring policies, is to assist
the Finance Director/Treasurer by performing accounting tasks and providing administrative support to the Finance
Director/Treasurer, performs Treasurer statutory duties in the absence of the Finance Director/Treasurer or as directed by
the Finance Director/Treasurer.


Essential Duties and Responsibilities


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive. Other
duties may be required and assigned.


 Assists the Finance Director as support staff as directed. Attends City Council, committee and staff meetings in the
absence of the Finance Director.


 Provides staff clerical services to the Finance Committee


 Receives all monies receipted to the City and verifies amounts. Prepares daily bank deposits, reconciles cash drawer
and receipts in-coming funds. Reviews and verifies and/or assigns account numbers to in-coming funds


 Maintains manual spreadsheets as requested by Finance Director.


 Reconciles monthly bank statements for the City. Transfer monies between funds to insure adequate monthly
balances. Monitor general fund checking account for appropriate deposits and withdrawals.


 Assists in budget preparation, research and reporting to departments regarding accounting information. Creates
budget worksheets. Prepares personnel budget spreadsheet.


 Monitors long term debt service payment spreadsheets for principal and interest amounts. Coordinates timely debt
service wire payments.


 Issues quarterly payment reminders for room tax and monitors collections.


 Creates and maintains capital project spreadsheets including monthly balancing of all expenditures.


 Maintains fixed assets spreadsheets.


 Prepares tax bill mailing. Collects tax payments, refunds overpayments of taxes, balances tax collections, and
prepares tax collection reports.


 Answers inquiries from the public and others regarding property assessments, real estate and personal property tax
information and other City treasury information.


 Prepares delinquent personal property tax reports. Maintains delinquency information until collection. Reviews







City of Stoughton Deputy Treasurer
Position Description


delinquency information and reports to Finance Director. Initiates and prepares Personal Property chargeback’s to
other taxing jurisdictions and collects payments for same.


 Compiles personal property deletion information. Assists assessor with personal property deletion and supporting
documentation. Relays deletion information to Finance Director.


 Reviews payroll register for accuracy. Maintains and updates payroll records. Creates and edits direct deposit
information for current and new employees.


 Reviews and assists with entering all new employee information into payroll system. Reviews withholding,
retirement, payroll deductions and benefits for accuracy.


 Reconcile all wage and benefit accounts in the general ledger.


 Calculates vacation accrual schedules, imputed income and longevity payments for all eligible City employees.
Calculates payouts for employee terminations.


 Provides backup and assistance for payroll processing


 Verify direct deposit information. Initiate batch upload to bank. Maintain Direct Deposit files in database.


 Prepares monthly financial reports for Department Heads. Prepares monthly financial reports for multiple volunteer
organizations. Prepares other reports as requested.


 Provides Taxi Service with grant application materials. Receives completed spreadsheet and compiles necessary
information for submission of the taxi grant application.


 Provides backup to the Department as needed and all other duties as assigned.


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


High school diploma or equivalent, vocational/technical training in secretarial and accounting skills, three to five years
secretarial/accounting experience, experience with website management, Microsoft office, software applications or any
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference
to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, assemble, copy and record and
transcribe data and information. Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data.


 Ability to persuade, convince, and/or train others, including the ability to act in a lead worker capacity. Ability to
advise and interpret how to apply policies, procedures and standards to specific situations.


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as financial statements, tax bills, bank statements, tax
payment records, annual budget, budget reports, job applications, daily receipts, balance sheets, journal entries,
computer software operating manuals, tax collection manual, State statutes, procedures, guidelines and non-routine
correspondence.


 Ability to communicate orally and in writing with Mayor, Finance Director/Treasurer, Assessors, tax payers, City







City of Stoughton Deputy Treasurer
Position Description


Council and City staff.


Mathematical Ability


 Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values and spatial relationships. Ability
to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports.


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities.


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of
information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria, as opposed to criteria which are clearly measurable.


Physical Requirements


 Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including computer terminal, typewriter, telephone, fax machine,
calculator/adding machine and photocopier.


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as rapid keyboard use.


 Ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work, but which may involve some lifting, carrying, pushing
and pulling. Ability to sustain prolonged visual concentration.


Environmental Adaptability


 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors such as
repetitive computer keyboard use, irate individuals and intimidation may cause discomfort and poses a limited risk of
injury.


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the
City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective
and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer.


____________________________ _______________________________
Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature


____________________________ _______________________________
Date Date


Personnel approved 9-24-01 January 8, 2008 March 10, 2009







City of Stoughton Deputy Clerk


Position Description


City of Stoughton
Position Description


Name: Department: Administrative Services


Position Title: Deputy City Clerk Pay Grade: FL SA: N


Date: April 2015 Reports To: Finance/Administrative Services Director


Purpose of Position


The purpose of this position is to perform various secretarial tasks, administrative and record keeping tasks related to
City Council and related committee functions, elections, and City license regulation; and perform City Clerk
Director tasks in his/her absence.


Essential Duties and Responsibilities


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-
inclusive. Other duties may be required and assigned.


 Assists with voter registration records.


 Maintains all election information in the SVRS system.


 Assists with the preparation and over site of the election process.


 Generates and publishes legal notices regarding elections. Coordinates cooperative notices with area
township clerks.


 Maintains campaign finance records.


 Assists with licensing for liquor sales, operators, electrical contractors and others.


 Prepares various committee meeting agendas and minutes as needed.


 Assists in the preparation of bi-monthly Council meeting packets and distributes to Council members
and Department Heads.


 Assists in processing legal notices, ordinances and resolutions for publication in City Clerk's absence.


 Updates policies and procedures manual as needed.


 Attends Common Council, committee and Department Head meetings and performs other City Clerk
duties in his/her absence.


 Staff to the Food Pantry Committee. Processes receipts and accounts payable vouchers. Prepares
monthly reporting.


 Processes city employee payroll. Compiles time sheet information. Prepares required payroll reports







City of Stoughton Deputy Clerk


Position Description


including state and federal reporting.


 Prepares and reconciles reporting for monthly WRS


 Completes monthly reporting for US Department of Labor regarding current employment statistics.


 Prepares W2’s and year end reporting.


 Processes and reconciles payroll benefit and deduction disbursements to various agencies.


 Prepares monthly employee reports for Department Heads


 Updates and maintains the City Directory.


 Updates, maintains and prepares billings for City garbage and recycling.


 Prepares periodic reporting of dog licenses for County. Balances license sales and prepares adjusting
journal entries.


 Prepares forms for bid openings. Attends bid openings and records all information.


 Coordinates the activities of the Food Pantry


 Produces the city newsletter, The Tower Times. Compiles information from committees, department
heads and staff, community groups, etc; and coordinates printing.


 Provides backup to the Department as needed and all other duties as assigned


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


High school diploma or equivalent, vocational/technical training, three to four years experience in City
government. Experience with website management, Microsoft office, software applications, or any
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.
Possess knowledge of the Statewide Voter Registration System.


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication


 Ability to provide excellent customer service internally and externally and to effectively lead a team
and participate as a team player.


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data
with reference to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or
sort data, as well as assemble, copy and record and transcribe data and information. Ability to classify,
compute and tabulate data.


 Ability to advise and provide interpretation to others on how to apply policies, procedures and standards to







City of Stoughton Deputy Clerk


Position Description


specific situations.


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as vouchers, invoices and instructions,
billing statements, purchase orders, schedules, memos, state statutes, computer software operating
manuals, dictionaries, procedures, guidelines, and non-routine correspondence.


 Ability to communicate orally and in writing with city employees, department heads, and the general
public.


Mathematical Ability


 Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals. Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical
reports.


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work
activities.


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the
evaluation of information against measurable criteria.


Physical Requirements


 Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments such
as computer keyboard/typewriter, telephone, calculator/adding machine, photocopier and fax
machine.


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as rapid
keyboard use.


 Ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work.


 Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of
forms and sounds.


Environmental Adaptability


 Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors poses
little to no risk of injury.


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with
disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations
with the employer.


_________________________________ _________________________________
Employee's Signature Supervisor's Signature







City of Stoughton Deputy Clerk


Position Description


_________________________________ _________________________________
Date Date


Council Approved: October 2013





		11-R-57-2015 Deputy Clerk.pdf

		Deputy Treasurer- REVISED  April 2015 FINAL.pdf

		Clerk-Deputy Clerk-REVISED April 2015 REDLINED.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to update the City of Stoughton Work Rules to
include the Police Sergeants.


Committee Action: Personnel Committee approved the updated work rules (4-0)


File Number: R-58-2015 Date Introduced: April 14, 2015


WHEREAS the Personnel Committee has received the recommended changes in the City of Stoughton
Work Rules to include the Police Sergeants.


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on April 6, , 2015, to consider the recommendation for
updating the City of Stoughton Work Rules to include the Police Sergents and recommend approval;
now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approves the changes to the
City of Work Rules for the Police Sergeants.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date







CITY OF STOUGHTON


WORK RULES


The City of Stoughton Mission Statement:


“The City of Stoughton is dedicated to providing quality services
in a fiscally responsible manner necessary to maintain a
comfortable, safe and healthy community. We will be friendly,
open-minded and professional.”


Mission Statement developed at the City of Stoughton Strategic Planning Session
10-29-1998. Adopted by the Common Council 11-17-1998.


As approved by the Common Council 02/14/2012 and amended by Council
action 11/27/2012 & 08/27/2013, 02/11/2014. Replaces rules adopted 02/10/2009.







TABLE OF CONTENTS


I. Introduction 4


II. Employment 4


At-Will Employment 4


Equal Opportunity Employment 4


Americans with Disabilities Policy Statement 4


Trial Period 5


Emergency Response Requirements 5


Promotion 6


Demotion 6


Lateral Transfer 6


Job Posting 6


Termination 7


Wage Appeals Process for Non-Represented Employees 7


III. Hours of Work 8


Rest Periods 9


Overtime, Compensatory Time, and Flex-Time 9


Severe Weather 11


On-Call 11


IV. Leaves of Absence 11


Funeral Leave 11


Jury Duty 12


Subpoena During Working Hours 12


Military Duty 12


Sick Leave 12


Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring Employee 14


Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Surviving Spouse 14


FMLA 14


Other Medical Leave 15


V. Employee Benefits 16







Statement of Employee Benefits 16


Vacation 16


Computation of Benefits (Full-time to Part-time) 16


Computation of Benefits (Part-time to Full-time) 17


Holidays 18


Time Off 18


Continuing Education 19


Length-of-Service Payment 19


Health Insurance 20


Dental Insurance 21


Continuation of Health & Dental Ins./COBRA 21


Eyeglasses 21


Retirement 22


Group Life Insurance 22


Income Continuation Insurance 22


Uniforms & Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 23


VI. Pay Practices 24


Pay Days 23


Time Sheets 23


Electronic Direct Deposit 24


Business Expense Reimbursement 24


Employee Information 25


VII. Employee Conduct & Job Safety 25


Position Descriptions 25


Performance Reviews 25


Job Safety 25


Safety Glasses 26


Safety Belts 26


Worker's Compensation & Injury Reporting 26


Unsafe Activity Reporting 27


Work Station Conduct 27







Alcohol & Substance Abuse 28


Tobacco Use 30


Driver's Licenses & Traffic Tickets 30


CDL Requirements 30


Workplace Violence 31


Hearing Conservation Policy 32


Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan 33


Written Hazard Communication Program 33


Employee Assistance Program 33


Disciplinary Action 33


VIII. Grievance Procedure 36


Definitions 36


Requirements of Written Grievance 36


Steps of the Grievance Procedure 37


IX. Unlawful Harassment Policy 38


Purpose 38


Policy 38


Definitions 39


Prohibited Activity 39


Covered Individuals 40


Complaint Procedure 41


Retaliation 42


X. Code of Ethics 43


Definitions 43


Use of Public Property 44


Obligations to Citizens 44







WORK RULES


I. INTRODUCTION


These Work Rules apply to all non-represented employees and, to the extent not
contrary to or inconsistent with the terms of the applicable collective bargaining
agreement(s), to all represented employees as well.


II. EMPLOYMENT


At-Will Employment


Except as provided by an applicable collective bargaining agreement, or by state
statute of specific application (positions covered by State Statute and/or City
Ordinance are City Clerk, Treasurer, Utilities Director, Utilities Operations
Superintendent, Chief of Police, Police Lieutenant, Fire Chief, and Librarian), all
employment with the City of Stoughton (“City”) is intended to be at-will. An at-will
employee is defined as: Status of employment wherein the person appointed may be
terminated from City employment at any time, with or without cause. An employee in
an at-will status has no property right nor a right to continued employment with the
City.


These Work Rules are for your information and guidance and do not create a
contract of employment, either expressed or implied, nor a property right in
continued employment.


It is the City's intention to attract and retain the most qualified individuals, consistent
with its commitment to equal employment opportunity. Each employee's employment
is subject to the City's operational requirements and its determination as to
satisfactory individual performance.


Equal Employment Opportunity


Consistent with applicable state and federal law, it is the policy of the City to provide
equal employment opportunities for all persons, regardless of race, creed, color, sex,
national origin, religion, age, arrest or conviction record, sexual orientation, disability,
marital status, veteran status or membership in a guard, reserve, or other military
unit, ancestry, use or non use of lawful products off the employer’s premises during
non working hours, pregnancy or childbirth, honesty testing or genetic testing, or
other protected category under applicable state or federal law. This policy applies to
all employment practices, including but not limited to: recruitment, placement,
transfer, promotion, training, compensation, layoff and termination.


Americans with Disabilities Policy Statement


The City of Stoughton is committed to complying with all applicable provisions of the
Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) as well as applicable state disability







discrimination laws. It is the City’s policy not to discriminate against any qualified
employee or applicant with regard to any terms or conditions of employment
because of such individual’s disability or perceived disability so long as the
employee can perform the essential functions of the job or is otherwise able to
adequately perform the responsibilities of his/her position. Consistent with this policy
of nondiscrimination, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to a qualified
individual with a disability, as defined by the ADA and applicable state law, who has
made the City aware of his or her disability, provided that such accommodation does
not constitute an undue hardship to the City. Employees with a disability who believe
they need a reasonable accommodation to perform the essential functions of their
job should contact the Personnel Director.


Trial Period


All newly hired employees must serve an initial 12-month trial period (18-months for
police officers). The Department Head, with approval of the Mayor, may elect to
extend the trial period in circumstances where more time is needed to evaluate the
employee's job performance. The Employer may extend the trial period to cover any
absence of thirty (30) calendar days or more. Upon completion of the trial period, the
employee will be considered a regular employee.


An additional trial period will be served when an employee is promoted to a position
in a higher classification. (Please see Promotion Section below.)


Satisfactory completion of the trial period does not alter the employee's status as an
at-will employee.


If an employee’s performance does not meet acceptable standards during the trial
period, he/she will be terminated without further review.


Emergency Response Requirements


Response time is defined as the time it takes an employee to arrive at his/her place
of work. Response time requirements are as follows:


 Police Department Non-Represented Employees (except Chief): reside
within 45 miles of the police department.


 Police Chief: Establish residency within twelve (12) months of appointment.


 Streets and Parks Department Employees: 20 mile radius of the City limits
of Stoughton


 Stoughton Municipal Utilities Non-Represented and Represented
Employees (Employees serving on, and being compensated for, standby
service): 15 minutes







 Stoughton Fire Department Volunteers: Reside within the fire protection
area served by the City of Stoughton Fire Department; including the City of
Stoughton, the Town of Dunkirk, and parts of the Towns of Dunn, Rutland and
Pleasant Springs.


 Stoughton Area EMS Volunteers: On-Call and response time criteria are
covered by SAEMS Bylaws which say that a person must be within 5 minutes
of the ambulance garage while on call.


Promotion


Promotion is the movement of an employee from one classification to another
classification having a higher wage scale. When an employee is promoted to a
position in a higher classification he/she will serve a twelve-month trial period.
Effective upon appointment to a higher rated position, the employee will be
compensated at the pay rate of his/her new position, depending on the new
position’s wage scale, at the next higher pay rate.


If an employee's performance does not meet acceptable standards during this trial
period, he/she will be removed from the position without right of appeal. The City
Council, or its designated representative, may return the employee, if it deems it
appropriate, to his/her former position, or an alternate available position, if vacant,
and the employee meets the job requirements for that alternate position.


Demotion


A demotion is defined as any movement of an employee from one classification to
another classification having a lower wage scale. When an employee is moved to a
position in a lower classification, his/her pay rate will be reduced to the pay scale for
the lower classification at the same year level of their previous classification.


Lateral Transfer


A lateral transfer is a movement of an employee from one classification to another
classification having the same wage scale, remaining at the same scale and year. If
an employee is doing a lateral transfer from a non-represented position to a
represented position at the same classification, the employee will be placed at the
pay rate of that wage scale. A lateral transfer employee shall serve a 6-month trial
period.


Job Posting


Whenever there is a permanent job opening within the City, either as a result of a
termination, promotion or creation of a new position, the City shall post an internal
notice on bulletin boards and other places as the City decides to notify employees
already working for the City of Stoughton. Such notice shall remain posted for five







(5) working days. The notice shall include the minimum qualifications and description
of the position as determined by the City. Such determination may not be arbitrary.
The City may decide to delay filling or not to fill a vacancy at all. If no qualified
employee applies for the opening, the City may fill the vacancy using what other
means it determines to use.


Termination


Voluntary termination is defined as an employee who for reasons of his/her own
choosing elects not to continue in the employ of the City. Involuntary termination is
defined as the City, for its own reasons, informing an employee in writing, that
his/her services are no longer required. An employee who terminates should leave a
forwarding address with the City Clerk/Personnel Director so W2’s can be mailed at
the end of the year. Written notice of voluntary termination should be given to the
Department Head with as much notice as practicable (2 weeks
suggested/requested).


Terminated employees must return ID cards, keys, and all provided personal
protective equipment, training materials, and other provided materials to the City
upon termination. Failure to do so will cause the employee to be billed for these
items and for costs associated with security and other operational changes.
Terminated employees will also be responsible for paying all bills associated with
any City-sponsored plans (i.e. cell phone plans, fuel plans, etc.).


Employees, when terminated from City employment, will be compensated at their
current pay rate for earned and unused vacation accumulated and any
compensation due to their credit on the next regularly scheduled payday.


Wage Appeals Process for Non-Represented Employees


A non-represented employee, or his/her Department Head, in any classification
whose job duties or responsibilities are significantly changed may appeal his or her
current wage scale by filing an appeal with the Personnel Director. All appeals by
non-represented employees, or their Department Heads, shall be processed
pursuant to the following steps:


1. An appeal, as represented in an updated job description, received by the
Personnel Director within 30 days of a significant change in duties or
responsibilities shall be submitted by the Personnel Director to the Personnel
Committee and/or consultant for a ruling within 30 days of the receipt of the
appeal. The Personnel Director shall make the initial determination regarding
whether the appeal was received within 30 days of a significant change in
duties or responsibilities except in the case of an appeal by the Personnel
Director which shall be governed by Section C below.


2. If the Personnel Director determines that the appeal was not received within
30 days of a significant change in duties or responsibilities, the employee, or







his Department Head, may, within 30 days of such notification, appeal said
decision to the Personnel Committee. The Personnel Committee shall rule
within 30 days of receipt of the appeal as to whether the employee’s appeal
shall be submitted to the Personnel Committee and/or consultant,
notwithstanding the decision of the Personnel Director. The Personnel
Committee decision may be appealed through Step D (below).


3. The Personnel Director, or their Department Head, may submit an appeal to
the Personnel Committee and/or consultant regarding his or her own job
description only if the Personnel Committee determines that the appeal was
received by the Chair of the Personnel Committee within 30 days of a
significant change in duties or responsibilities.


4. If the employee, or their Department Head, disagrees with the ruling received
by the Personnel Committee, he or she may within 30 days of such
notification appeal the Personnel Committee’s ruling to the City Council. The
City Council shall rule within 30 days of receipt of appeal. The decision of the
City Council is deemed final.


Any 30-day time limit described above may be extended by mutual written
agreement of the parties.


III. HOURS OF WORK


Full time employees are those whose normally scheduled work week is 40 or more
hours.


Permanent part-time employees are those who work 1,040 or more hours but less
than 2,080 annually.


Limited permanent part-time employees are those who work 600 or more hours but
less than 1,040 annually.


Seasonal and temporary employees are those who work less than 600 hours
annually.


The workweek is a recurring period of 168 hours in the form of seven 24-hour
periods beginning on Sunday at 12:00 a.m. and ending on Saturday at 11:59 p.m.
Work time for full time employees is 40 or more hours in the workweek. Workday
starting times and ending times are designated by the Department Head. The
workday for full time employees usually consists of 8 hours. Exceptions are created
for seasonal and department variations at the Department Head’s discretion.


All employees will be at the designated workstation at the designated starting time,
and will be able to perform the duties addressed in the appropriate position
description. All employees will remain at the designated workstation until the
designated ending time.







An employee scheduled to work 8 hours or more is required to take an unpaid lunch
break of not less than one-half hour and not more than one hour, at the discretion of
the Department Head. Lunch breaks may be delayed if necessary, but not to the end
of the workday, or taken on a subsequent workday or accumulated.


All employees scheduled for an 8-hour day or more may take two 15-minute paid
breaks or one 30 minute paid break, at the discretion of the Department Head. The
Department Head retains the right to schedule employee breaks to fulfill the
operational needs of the work unit. Part-time employees working less than 8 hours in
a day, shall be entitled to take a fifteen (15) minute paid break to be scheduled with
the approval of the employee’s supervisor after working four (4) consecutive hours.
Breaks may be delayed if necessary. Breaks are not to be taken at the end of the
workday, combined into the lunch break or taken on a subsequent workday. Breaks
may not be accumulated.


All overtime will be performed only with the approval of the Department Head.
Overtime is paid at 1½ times the hourly rate.


The City of Stoughton Police Department scheduling requirements call for some
department employees to work 6 days on and 3 days off or other identified work
rotations. This scheduling requires officers or other employees to work up to 48
hours in a 7-day period. Because of this scheduling requirement, the City of
Stoughton has declared the following:


 Work periods for law enforcement personnel having the power of arrest within
the Stoughton Police Department consist of 27 consecutive days.


 Breaks are given at the discretion of the department head and work day is
considered 8 hours with no 30 minute break and employee is subject to call
during all breaks.


 Police department employees are entitled to overtime for hours work after the
regular 8 hour work day has completed.


The City of Stoughton Police Sergeants shall be compensated at a rate of
time and one-half (1-1/2) based on their current rate of pay for authorized hours
worked in excess of the scheduled workday or on scheduled days off. The
scheduled workday is eight (8) hours and the scheduled workweek is 37.46
hours. The work schedule shall consist of six (6) days of work followed by three
(3) days of rest. When the need arises to change an employee’s regular days off,
the ratio of 2 days worked to 1 day off shall be maintained. Overtime shall be
payable for the pay period in which it is earned, except that compensatory time
may be accumulated and taken at a later date by the employee upon mutual
agreement between the employee and the Chief of Police. There shall be a
maximum accumulation of compensatory time of and if not taken by the last pay
period of the year, they shall be paid for at the employee's regular hourly rate.
Sufficient notice shall be given by the employee when requesting compensatory
time off







Rest Periods


If an employee works for 4 or more consecutive overtime hours, or a total of 4 or
more overtime hours after midnight and is released from work, 6 hours shall elapse,
provided that the employee is not required for emergency work, before he/she
returns to work without loss of pay for scheduled time.


Earned rest period is that period when an employee rests during his/her scheduled
working hours. An employee required to work into this earned rest period
shall be paid at 1½ times his/her regular rate until released from work. When an
employee is called back to work during that rest period, he/she shall be paid for such
regularly scheduled time rest period hours at 1½ times his/her regular rate.


Overtime, Compensatory Time, and Flex Time


Eligible non-supervisory employees and non-department head supervisors will be
compensated at a rate of 1½ times their current hourly rate for authorized hours
worked in excess of the scheduled work week in excess of 40 hours, either in money
or time off, as approved by the Department Head.


The Children’s Librarian, Public Services Librarian, Police Lieutenant, Police
Administrative Assistant, and Deputy Chief/Fire Marshall receive compensatory time
at the rate of one hour of compensatory time for each hour actually worked beyond
40 hours in the work week.


Department Heads are expected to work in excess of 40 hours per week due to the
nature of their position and official duties. They may take time off or observe more
flexible working hours at their discretion. Flexible time off is not intended to replace
vacation leave or sick leave.


When compensatory time credits have been earned by an employee, such credits
shall be scheduled and used before December 31 of the year in which it is earned.
Compensatory time credits are scheduled by the employee and the supervisor with
approval of the Department Head. A maximum of 60 hours of compensatory time
credits may be earned in any calendar year, except for the Children’s Librarian,
Public Services Librarian, Police Lieutenant, Police Administrative Assistant, and
Deputy Chief/Fire Marshall, who may earn in excess of 60 hours with the prior
approval of the Department Head and Mayor.


Department Heads, as listed below, may schedule use of their own flexible time off:


City Clerk/Personnel Director Director of Planning & Development


Finance Director Street Superintendent


Utilities Director Senior Center Director







Parks & Recreation Director Chief of Police


Library Director EMS Director


Opera House Managing Director Fire Chief


Manager of Media Services


Compensatory time is not intended to be accumulated to supplement vacation time.
When possible, compensatory time will be taken on the same day it is earned or
during the same workweek, as flex time on an hour for hour basis. Example: If an
employee is required to attend an evening committee meeting for two hours, that
employee may leave two hours early that day or come in two hours late the next
day, as long as the time is used within the same week it is earned.







Severe Weather


When non-exempt employees are sent home because of severe weather, they are
paid for the lost time at their regular rate of pay. Employees required to remain on
duty shall receive in addition to regular compensation for actual hours worked, an
amount of pay or com time equivalent to the lost time paid to other such employees
sent home.*amended 9-3-13*


On-Call (formerly Standby):


On-Call is defined as that period Friday through Thursday, including any hours after
normal workday hours plus Saturday, all day Sunday, and any City recognized
holidays that occur during the week. In case of an emergency, an employee on on-
call status is required to be in close proximity of their pager or paging system
throughout the workweek including the scheduled workday, and will remain within
the appropriate range of the pager system and must respond without delay. The
pager and/or paging equipment shall be returned to the supervisor on Friday and
shall be reassigned by the supervisor to the employee to serve on on-call by the end
of the normal workday on Friday. In the event that Friday or Thursday and Friday
are the official holidays, the pager shall be returned to the supervisor on the workday
preceding the holiday and shall be assigned at the supervisor’s discretion. The
number of people to be on on-call will be determined by the Department Head.


On-Call: Compensatory time credits may be earned at the request of the employee
and at the approval of the Department Head or designee as follows:


 12 hours for on-call status during the work week;
 8 hours for on-call status on the days the named holidays are observed


by the City
Paid out on-call time will be in the amount of hours equal to the time credits earned
as described above.


Call Back Pay: Overtime will be paid for actual hours worked, rounded off to the
nearest quarter hour, with a 1-hour minimum for non-exempt employees.


When on-call or overtime credits are earned, cash payments or compensatory time
may be granted at the request of the employee and at the approval of the
Department Head. Compensatory time shall be scheduled and used prior to
December 31 of the year in which it is earned. *amended 9-3-13*


IV. LEAVES OF ABSENCE


Funeral Leave


Each full-time or permanent part-time employee shall be entitled to up to three (3)
days off with regular pay when there is a death in his/her family. This time shall not
be charged to sick, comp or vacation balances. For purposes of this provision,
immediate family means the employee’s: spouse, children, mother, father,







grandfather, grandmother, stepparent, aunts, uncles, foster parents, stepchildren,
grandchildren, foster children, brothers and their spouses and children, and sisters
and their spouses and children. Immediate family shall also include the following
relatives of the employee’s spouse: mother, father, child, grandmother, grandfather,
brothers and sisters. Additional time that may be necessary in certain instances may
be taken by the employee and those days charged to his/her sick leave, comp or
vacation time if the employee so desires.


Funeral or pall bearer (other than immediate family) – maximum of four (4) hours to
attend. This leave must be approved by the Department Head or Mayor for the
Department Heads and either charged against accrued sick, comp or vacation leave
or taken as leave without pay at the option of the employee.


Jury Duty


Any employee called to jury duty will be paid their current hourly rate, but all jury
compensation is to be paid to the City. Travel and meal allowances and parking will
be retained by the employee. Employees must notify their Department Head as soon
as they are notified of duty, and at least one week prior to jury duty.


Subpoena During Working Hours


If any employee is subpoenaed for any case other than to appear on the behalf of
the City, the employee must use vacation time, compensatory time or, with the
approval of their Department Head, leave without pay. Employee must notify their
Department Head as soon as they are subpoenaed and when they are scheduled to
be absent from work.


Military Duty


Full time and Permanent Part-time employees shall be granted a leave of absence
for military service in accordance with applicable state and federal laws.


Employees on military leave shall be paid their regular City pay for up to twenty (20)
working days in any twelve (12) month period. The employee shall remit to the City
the employee’s military pay, but not to exceed the employee’s regular wages, for the
period of paid leave. Thereafter, the leave shall be unpaid, except to the extent the
employee elects to use accrued vacation. An employee must return to work before
qualifying for a new period of paid military leave.


Sick Leave


Sick leave cannot be used until earned. Sick leave may be taken by eligible
employees for personal illness, for medical appointments, for illness in immediate
family or to care for a person living in the employee's household, or for reasons
which qualify under the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA). Immediate family, for
purposes of sick leave, includes parent, child, spouse or any person in the







immediate household whose physical well being is the responsibility of the
employee. Refer to FMLA for additional circumstances.


In order to be granted sick leave with pay, the employee must adhere to the
following:


 Report reason for absence from work promptly.
 Keep employer informed on one’s condition.
 Permit the City to make such medical inquiry as it may determine necessary.
 Submit medical certificate for any absence of more than three (3) working


days certifying as to inability to work.


An employee who is taking sick leave must notify their immediate supervisor as soon
as possible. Failure to do so is grounds for disciplinary action and/or dismissal from
employment. Sick leave must not be abused.


Sick leave is earned at the rate of one day per month worked. All full-time and
permanent part-time employees will earn and will be granted sick leave with pay at
the rate of twelve days per year. Permanent part-time employees will earn hours as
prorated to their normally scheduled hours. All sick leave shall be on an hours
earned basis. There is no cap on sick leave accumulation.


When an insufficient sick leave balance remains to cover the absence of an
employee, the remainder shall be charged either to accumulated vacation or leave
without pay, at the employee’s option and Department Head’s concurrence, except
as may be otherwise permitted by applicable state or federal FMLA laws.


When an employee is on paid sick leave, the accrual of sick leave and vacation
leave benefits will continue during the period of convalescence. Employees shall be
allowed to use sick leave if they become ill while on vacation. (A doctor’s certificate
or other evidence to support his sickness may be required.)


A physician’s statement or other evidence to support any sick leave may be required
by the Department Head. A physician’s statement should include:


 the nature of the medical condition necessitating the sick leave request;
 an indication that the employee was unable to perform any work at the work


station;
 a description of any limitations to the employee’s ability to work due to illness


and/or medication, and the anticipated duration of such limitation.


As a matter of concern for others, the City does not want employees to come to work
if they do not feel able to perform adequately or might spread their illness to fellow
employees. Sick leave accumulated each year should not be used for any purpose
other than bona fide employee illness or illness in the immediate family. Willful
misuse of sick leave or the willful making of false reports regarding illness will







15


subject the employee to disciplinary action and will be considered grounds for
suspension, demotion, or discharge.


Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring Employees:


All full-time employees who actually retire from City service and apply (with 60 days
of last day paid) for retirement annuity from the Wisconsin Retirement System, which
annuity must exceed $10.00 per month, shall have their sick leave credits, up to 130
days (at the time of their retirement) converted to a monetary value (hours of credit
times normal hourly rate of pay received immediately prior to retirement).


Forty-five (45) days of accrued sick leave will be paid out as a lump sum payment
upon death or retirement as defined above. Such forty-five (45) days shall be
applied against the 130 day cap. The remaining balance of up to 85 accrued sick
days will be transferred to a Retiree Health Savings Plan.


There is no other payment of accrued but unused sick leave.
*amended 9-3-13*


Sworn Police Officers : Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring Employee. Except


as provided in b), all full-time employees who actually retire from City service and


apply (within 60 days of last day paid) for a retirement annuity from the Wisconsin


Retirement System, which annuity must exceed $10.00 per month, shall have their


sick leave credits up to one thousand two hundred fifty (1250) hours (at the time of


their retirement) converted to a monetary value (hours of credit times normal hourly


rate of pay received immediately prior to retirement) and transferred to a Retiree


Health Reimbursement Plan. Any amount of sick leave credits in excess of one


thousand two hundred fifty (1250) hours shall be converted to a monetary value at


the rate of fifty percent (50%), which amount shall also be transferred to a Retiree


Health Reimbursement Plan. There is no other payment of accrued but unused sick


leave.







Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Surviving Spouse


In the event that an employee dies during the course of his employment and is survived
by a spouse, their accrued sick leave credits, up to 130 days, at the time of death, shall
be converted to a monetary value (hours of credit times normal hourly rate of pay
received immediately prior to death) which shall be available toward the payment of
health insurance premiums for the surviving spouse. In the event that the retired
employee shall precede his spouse in death and there remains at that time to his credit
a balance, such balance shall be used to purchase health insurance for the surviving
spouse so long as the spouse is alive and there remains a balance in the fund,
or,should the spouse not elect to continue his/her coverage, paid monthly to the spouse
in an amount equal to the applicable monthly health insurance premium.


Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) Leave


The City complies with both the Wisconsin and Federal Family and Medical Leave Acts
(FMLA). (Complete copies are available for review in the Clerk’s Office.)


The state and federal FMLA laws permit eligible employees to take unpaid leave in the
following circumstances:


 For the employee's own serious health condition.
 For a serious health condition involving the employee's parent, child or spouse.
 For the birth or adoption of a child. Foster placement is also covered under the


federal law.


The state law covers employees who have worked for at least 1 year and been paid for
at least 1000 hours in the preceding 12 months. The federal law also has a 1-year
qualification period, but uses 1250 hours actually worked as the minimum requirement.


The state benefit is:


 2 weeks per calendar year for the employee's own serious health condition.
 2 weeks per calendar year for a serious health condition involving the employee's


parent, child or spouse.
 6 weeks in cases of birth or adoption.


The federal law allows a total of 12 weeks per 12 month period. In determining the
federal FMLA benefit, the City calculates the 12 months from the date the leave was
first taken.


Leave taken under the terms of FMLA is unpaid, although an employee may generally







1


substitute accrued time off (i.e. sick leave, vacation) for qualifying absences. All leaves
must be preapproved by the Department Head. During an approved FMLA, the City will
continue to make its contribution toward the employee’s health insurance. The
employee shall make timely contributions towards excess life insurance, income
continuation insurance and union dues.


If an employee requires a leave of absence, he/she shall notify the Department Head as
soon as the need for the leave is known. At that time the employee will be given
additional information regarding his/her obligations during the leave, including medical
certification and fitness to return to work requirements.


Other Medical Leave


An employee requiring leave beyond that available as FMLA leave due to his or her own
medical condition may request a medical leave of absence. All such requests are
subject to the approval of the department head and the Personnel Committee. Such
leaves shall generally not exceed ninety (90) calendar days.


All leave of absence requests shall be made to the supervisor or the department head
as far in advance as possible. Leave of absence requests must be approved by the
department head and the Personnel Committee. During the first thirty (30) calendar
days of an approved leave of absence, the City will continue to pay the health and life
insurance premiums. Thereafter, except as otherwise provided by state or federal FMLA
laws, health and life insurance may be continued during a leave of absence provided
that the City is reimbursed for the insurance premium. Vacation leave, holiday leave,
sick leave and longevity bonus, an any other benefit shall not be earned during a leave
of absence, except as provided by applicable state or federal law.







2


V. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS


Statement of Employee Benefits


The City intends that these Work Rules, together with other written materials that have
been prepared in connection with the various employee benefits discussed below or
elsewhere in this manual, constitute the means of notification to employees of the terms
of such benefits. To the extent that the explanation contained in these Work Rules
differs from the terms on any insurance contract or other document prepared in
connection with a particular plan or benefits, such insurance contract or other document
will govern. If you need copies of any of these documents, or have any questions
concerning their terms, please contact the Personnel Director.


The City reserves the right to modify, amend or terminate the benefits described in
these Work Rules at any time, provided that with respect to group health and life
insurance (and any other benefits, to the extent required by state or federal law) any
modification, amendment or termination that reduces or eliminates a benefit will only
apply to claims for such a benefit which arise after the date of such modification,
amendment, or termination.


Vacation


All full-time and permanent part-time employees shall be granted vacation with pay as
follows, credited to the employee on the first of January each year:


 1 week - after 1 full year of service, but less than 2 years of service
 2 weeks - after 2 full years of service, but less than 6 full years of service
 3 weeks - after 6 full years of service
 4 weeks - after 10 full years of service; and one additional day of vacation for


each additional year of service thereafter until reaching a maximum of 5 weeks.


For purposes of this section, a vacation week will consist of the employee’s normally
scheduled hours. Example: If an employee’s normal work week consists of 20 hours,
one week of vacation will consist of 20 hours; or if the employee’s normal work week
consists of 25 hours, one week of vacation will consist of 25 hours.


Computation of benefits when a full time employee goes to part time is as
follows:


No loss of longevity. (i.e. If the employee was entitled to five weeks vacation at
full time hours – 40 hours per week; the employee would be entitled to five weeks
vacation at part time hours, i.e. 20 hour week or 25 hour week, based on
normally scheduled work hours.)







3


Computation of benefits when a part time employee goes to full time is as
follows:


No loss of longevity, but equivalency would be calculated. Vacation would be
computed at full time hours. (i.e. If the employee has worked 10 years at 20
hours per week, this would equal 5 years of full time.


Vacation leave is not cumulative and employees must take their vacation by the end of
the year credited, except that the Department Head and Mayor may allow earned
vacation time to accumulate if an employee obtains prior consent and it is determined to
be in the best interest of the City.


A tentative vacation leave schedule for all employees must be submitted to the
Department Head by February 15th.


All vacation requests must be approved by the Department Head or their designee in
advance.


Eligible employees who terminate employment for any reason will receive a pro-rated
vacation benefit. The following procedure should be used when determining pro-rated
vacations:


 Employees that were hired before 1973 had vacations pro-rated when they
started. On January 1 following their hire date, they received a pro-rated number
of hours of the basic 40 allowed.


Example: Employee started July 1. On January 1 we would divide the day of the
year, 182, by 365 days, times 40 hours. That would equal 20 hours earned in
year hired, credited and used after January 1 the following year.


For each additional week eligible for, the same procedure would be followed.


When you quit or retire, your vacation earned and credited on January 1 is 100%
payable. If employee works past the first of the year, the pro-rated amount
earned would also be payable. The procedure for pro-rating is the number of
days worked past January 1, divided by 365, multiply by the number of hours of
vacation allowed per year.


 Employees hired after January 1,1973, receive 40 hours vacation on the first of
January following date hired.


Example: New employee started July 1, 1982, 40 hours vacation would be
available to him on January 1, 1983. If employee quits or retires, pro-ration would
be done from anniversary date to date of termination.







4


Employee worked 60 days past anniversary date. 60 days divided by 365 days
times 40 hours equals 6.4 hours payable to employee.


If employee terminates 60 days prior to anniversary date, the same amount
would be deducted from final check if vacation had already been used.


Holidays


All full-time employees will be granted the following holidays off with pay:


New Year’s Day Labor Day Day after Thanksgiving Day
Memorial Day Thanksgiving Day Christmas Day
Independence Day Martin Luther King Jr. Day


All permanent part-time employees will be granted the same holidays as above with pay
as follows:


Full day holiday – 100% of their normally scheduled hours


If any of the holidays fall on Sunday, then Monday will be observed as the holiday. If
any of the holidays fall on Saturday, then Friday will be observed as the holiday.


To receive holiday pay, an employee must have worked or be on an authorized leave
with pay, both the day preceding and following the holiday.


If one of the holidays falls during an employee’s vacation, the employee will be granted
an additional day of leave to use as vacation.


Employees working on named holidays will also receive compensation time off equal to
the amount of time worked.


Time Off


All full-time employees will be granted the following time off with pay:


Christmas Eve Afternoon 4 hours
New Year’s Eve Afternoon 4 hours
Employee’s Birthday 8 hours
2 Floating Days Off 8 hours each


All permanent part-time employees shall be granted the following time off with pay as
follows:


Christmas Eve Afternoon 50% of normally scheduled hours
New Year’s Eve Afternoon 50% of normally scheduled hours







5


Employee’s Birthday 100% of normally scheduled hours
2 Floating Days Off 100% of normally scheduled hours each day


All time off is subject to employee attendance on the work days preceding and following
the time off, unless on authorized leave including sick leave, vacation, or comp time,
and subject to attendance on the balance of the day in question.


If Christmas Eve or New Year’s Eve fall on Saturday or Sunday, then the prior Friday
will be the afternoon off. If Christmas Eve or New Year’s Eve falls on a Friday, then the
prior Thursday will be the afternoon off. Floating Days Off must be approved in
advance.


Police Dispatcher & Police Sergeant Holidays


All full-time Police Dispatchers shall be granted the following holidays off with pay:


New Year's Day Thanksgiving Day
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Christmas Eve
Memorial Day Christmas Day
Independence Day 2 Floating Holiday’s
Labor Day


If a holiday falls on the employee's scheduled day off, the employee shall be paid those holiday
hours at their hourly rate in the pay period in which the holiday falls.


If a holiday falls on the employee's day of work or paid leave, the employee will receive pay for
those holiday hours at their hourly rate or have the option of taking another day off of which the day off
shall be with the Chief’s approval.


If an employee works on a holiday he/she shall be paid an additional one-half (1/2) times their
hourly rate for those hours worked. Holiday pay shall be in addition to compensation normally paid the
employee for such hours.


The floating holiday shall be selected by the employee upon sufficient notice to the Chief of Police
to allow the Chief of Police to arrange a substitute and provided that on the day requested, the Chief is
able to obtain a substitute.


To receive holiday pay, an employee must have worked or been on an authorized leave, the days
preceding and following the holiday.


Continuing Education


All continuing education requests for attendance at seminars, workshops, and short
courses must be coordinated with and approved by the Department Head as far in
advance as possible. To qualify for reimbursement or payment, the employee must
successfully complete the course or seminar with a grade of “C” or better; or where
applicable, obtain a completion certificate.







6


All employees will be granted time without loss of pay, for the purpose of taking
examinations required for their appropriate State Certification, if the possession of such
license or certification becomes a condition of employment. The employee shall provide
the results of the examination to the Department Head upon receipt. An employee may
be compensated for more than two testing attempts with prior approval of the
Department Head.


All employees will be reimbursed for the examination and licensing fee where the
possession of such license is a condition of employment.


Continuing education must be strongly related to the employee’s current position
requirements.


Length-of-Service Payment


A length-of-service payment will be provided to all eligible employees. To be eligible, the
employee must have completed three full years of continuous City employment prior to
December 1 of the calendar year in which the payment is made. Continuous
employment will include full time or permanent part-time status, sick leave status,
approved military service, and periods of Worker’s Compensation status while a City
employee.


The amount of the length-of-service payment will be based upon date of hire.


The first length-of-service payment for full time employees is $150.00. Longevity for
permanent part-time employees (20 hours per week or more) will be prorated based on
the employee’s normally scheduled work week. Example: If an employee works 20
hours per week, their first length of service payment will be $75.00.


Subsequent length-of-service payments are increased by $50.00 for full-time employees
and a prorated amount for permanent part-time employees for each additional year of
continuous employment.


Except as otherwise provided by applicable state or federal law, a non-medical leave of
absence beyond 30 calendar days is considered a break in continuous employment.


Eligible employees who retire, die, or voluntarily terminate employment will receive a
pro-rated length-of-service payment. Pro-ration is determined by dividing the length-of-
service payment for the current year by 12 months and multiplying by the number of
months the employee has worked for that year.


Example: If full-time employee is terminating employment after completing 10
years and 2 months, his/her pro-rated length-of-service is determined as follows:


11 years times $50 = $550.00







7


$550 x 2/12 = $91.66


Payment of length-of-service will be made the payday closest to December 1.


Health Insurance


The City is self-insuring for health coverage. Hospital, surgical, and medical expenses
including prescription drugs are covered according to our insurance Plan Document.
Insurance is effective on the day after hire. Insurance benefits are for full-time
employees. The City is self-insuring for health coverage. Hospital, surgical, and medical
expenses are covered including prescription drugs according to our insurance Plan
Document. Insurance is effective on the day after hire. Insurance benefits are for full-
time employees. Full-time employees will pay a $30.00 premium payment per month for
family coverage and a $15.00 premium payment per month for single coverage.
Permanent part-time employees choosing to participate in the City’s Health Insurance
will pay their share of the health insurance premium according to the hours they are
normally scheduled to work per week (example: an employee scheduled to work 20
hours per week will pay ½ of the imputed premium; an employee scheduled to work 30
hours per week will pay ¼ of the imputed premium).


For full information about premiums, deductibles, limits, and co-pays, please refer to the
Plan Documents given at the time of employment and periodically updated. If you need
a copy, please contact the City Clerk/Personnel Director.


Employee out-of-pocket expenses may be run through a flexible spending plan. Please
see the City Clerk/Personnel Director for information about this plan.


The City will designate a medical facility for all pre-employment physicals and any
employment related physicals as required by the City. A form will be provided to be filled
out by the medical facility.


Dental Insurance


The City is self-insuring for dental coverage. Insurance benefits are for full-time
employees. Permanent part-time employees choosing to participate in the City’s Dental
Insurance Plan will pay their share of the dental insurance premium according to the
hours they are normally scheduled to work per week (example: an employee scheduled
to work 20 hours per week will pay one-half of the imputed premium; an employee
scheduled to work 30 hours per week will pay ¼ of the imputed premium). Any dental
treatment costing in excess of $200.00 should have prior authorization before
proceeding. Please refer to the plan documents given at time of employment and
periodically updated. If you need a copy, please contact the City Clerk/Personnel
Director.


Continuation of Health & Dental/COBRA







8


Upon termination from the City for any reason other than gross misconduct, an
employee may elect to continue group medical coverage at group rates to the extent
and number of months allowed by applicable state and federal continuation laws
(COBRA). An employee who elects continuation coverage shall be responsible for the
entire required monthly premiums. It is also possible to convert other group plans to
individual plans. The Personnel Director will discuss the conversion of any benefits with
employees at termination. Employees may also request information on this subject at
any time prior to actual termination. Please contact the Personnel Director regarding
COBRA/Retiree rates.


Eyeglasses (This benefit has been suspended)


For full-time employees, the City will pay up to $200.00, in a 2 year period, per
individual living in the employee’s household as a dependent, toward one pair of
prescription glasses or contact lenses (new or changed). Proof of prescription is
required. In lieu of prescription glasses, the employee (and dependents living at home)
may submit a claim, up to a total amount of Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00), for contact
lenses once every two (2) years, which claim may include multiple purchases.
Sunglasses are not included.


For Permanent part-time employees, the City will pay up to a prorated amount, based
on the employee’s normally scheduled hours of work, of $200, in a 2-year period,
toward one pair of prescription lenses or contact lenses (new or changed – proof of
prescription is required) per individual living in the employee’s household as a
dependent. This benefit does not include sunglasses. Example: an employee scheduled
to normally work 20 hours per week will receive up to ½ the cost of the prescription
lenses or contact lenses, limited to $100.


Retirement


The City is covered under the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS). The City
contributes a percentage of the full-time, permanent part-time and limited part-time
employee's and employer's WRS contribution. WRS rates are set annually by the State
of Wisconsin.


For purposes of calculating sick leave payout or use at retirement, the earliest
retirement age for general category employees is fifty-five (55) and protective category
employees is fifty (50).The prospective retiree should also give at least 90 days notice
to WRS to assure that the benefits will begin on a timely basis. For more information on
this program, please consult the ETF “Your Benefit Handbook," given to you at the time
of hire or available from the City Clerk/Personnel Director.


Group Life Insurance


The City pays 100% of the premium cost of basic life insurance for full-time employees,
permanent part-time and limited part-time employees.







9


The amount of basic life insurance is determined by the annual salary of each employee
from the previous year as reported to the Wisconsin Retirement System. Each
employee will receive $1,000.00 insurance for each portion of $1,000.00 in earnings the
previous year. An employee must be employed for six months before becoming eligible
for the basic life insurance program. The basic life insurance must be paid for until the
employee reaches age 65, after which the insurance is paid up, but reduced in value by
25% a year for the next three years. Thus, an employee has paid up insurance at 25%
of wages upon retirement at age 67. For more information on this program, please
consult the ETF “Your Benefit Handbook”, given to you at the time of hire or available
from the City Clerk/Personnel Director.


Income Continuation Insurance


The City provides the Wisconsin Public Employer's Group Income Continuation
Insurance Program to all full-time, permanent part-time and limited part-time employees.
This program provides income continuation during periods of serious illness resulting in
total disability. An employee is “totally disabled” if they are unable to perform their job
due to major illness or accidental bodily injury. The City's share of the premium shall be
based on the 90-day waiting period. Any employee requesting the 30-day or 60-day
waiting period will pay the difference between the 90-day waiting period and the 30 or
60-day waiting period, whichever they choose. For more information on this program,
please consult the ETF “Your Benefit Handbook”, given to you at the time of hire or
available from the City Clerk/Personnel Director.







10


Uniforms and Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)


Coveralls (one per employee) and safety clothing are paid for by the City for employees
when deemed necessary by the Department Head. Use of coveralls for day-to-day use
is discouraged. The City recommends coveralls be used for especially dirty jobs. These
items are City property. Cleaning is the responsibility of the employee. Cleaning is to be
done at least weekly unless unworn.


The City will provide one or two piece insulated winter coveralls for each employee
regularly assigned to work outdoors in inclement weather. Replacement of such item as
a result of normal wear and tear shall be with the prior approval of the Department
Head.


The City shall provide uniforms at the discretion of the department head to all
employees required to wear them. If the City rents uniforms, the uniforms shall be
cleaned through a rental service at no cost to the employee.


Employees will be reimbursed for the purchase of safety shoes in the following amounts
for those departments where it is deemed necessary by the Department Head:


Full time employees will be reimbursed for the purchase of safety shoes in the amount
of $150.00 per year when required by the City.


Permanent part-time employees will be reimbursed for the purchase of safety shoes in
the amount of $150.00 every two years when required by the City.


Limited permanent part-time employees will be reimbursed for the purchase of safety
shoes in the amount of $75.00 every two years when required by the City.


Seasonal and temporary employees, if required, must furnish their own safety shoes.


All employees required to work in inclement weather will be provided by the City with a
pair of rubber rain boots which shall be replaced at the discretion of the Department
Head.


Except to the extent already expressly provided in this article, the Employer will provide
all required protective equipment and/or clothing.


All sworn Police Department Officers shall have the same uniform allowance as agreed to in


the current Union Labor Contract. The Employer agrees to provide a uniform allowance of Five


Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per year for uniformed unit employees. Purchase shall be of items


approved by the Chief of Police (see Appendix B in the Union Contract), and must be approved


by the Chief prior to purchase. Reimbursement shall be by voucher to the Chief of Police. New







11


employees will be provided an initial uniform issue as set forth in Appendix “B”, for the first


year of employment. If an officer shall terminate employment with the City within his/her first


year of service, all uniform items provided by the City shall be immediately returned to the


Police Department. Clothing or accessories damaged in the line of duty will be replaced, with


the approval of the Police Chief, by the City, provided a claim is submitted within seven (7)


calendar days of the date the damage is or should have been first apparent to the officer.


All police department sworn officers shall be provided with ballistic vests. Vests shall be


replaced according to the manufacturer's specifications. If a ballistic vest is purchased for the


employee, the employee shall wear it while on duty and in uniform, unless otherwise excused


by the Chief of Police or his/her designee.


If damaged in the line of duty, the Employer shall replace watches and eyeglasses or


contact lenses in an actual cost not to exceed Fifty Dollars ($50.00), Two Hundred Dollars


($200.00) and One Hundred Dollars ($100.00), respectively for all sworn police department


officers.


Such firearms and ammunition as are prescribed by the Chief of Police shall be paid for


by the Employer. Only prescribed equipment will be carried, except other equipment approved


by the Chief of Police, but not required by the Chief of Police, may be carried at the officer's


expense. All firearms and ammunition paid for by the Employer per this section shall be


replaced or repaired by the Employer when necessary due to normal wear and tear through the


course of employment.


VI. PAY PRACTICES


Pay Days


The regular City payday is bi-weekly on Friday. Should this day occur on a holiday, the
payday will be on the day prior to the holiday.


Union Police Officers and Sergeants (non-union): In addition to their regular rate of pay,
officers who work between the hours of 2:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. shall receive a shift differential
of fifty cents ($0.50) for each hour worked during that period. This shift premium shall apply
only to tours of duty worked between the specified hours; it will not be paid for special
assignments, court appearances, etc.







12


Time Sheets


All employees are required to complete and sign timesheets using the forms provided
by the City. The timesheet must be filled out with all hours worked (including times in
and out) and turned into the employee’s supervisor so that they may be turned into
Payroll every other Monday by 8 a.m. Vacation days, sick days, holidays, and absences
such as jury duty, funeral leave or military service must be specifically noted on the time
sheet for days on which they occur. All time sheets must be approved and signed by
supervisors prior to being sent to Payroll.


Electronic Direct Deposit


The City provides direct deposit of paychecks. This is a service which saves time and
provides added security. Each paycheck will be automatically deposited to the
employee’s checking or savings account (or divided between two accounts) as the
employee directs. Each pay day, employees will receive a pay voucher for their records.
It is much like a voided check with all the same information which would appear on a
regular check. All employees are required to complete a direct deposit authorization
form at the start of employment.


Business Expense Reimbursement


All expenses over $100.00, or meetings lasting more than one day, must have received
prior authorization from the Department Head in order to be considered for
reimbursement.


Requests for out of state conferences must be submitted to the Department Head and
Mayor for prior approval. If the funds are already budgeted, no additional approval is
necessary. If not budgeted for, the request must also be submitted to the appropriate
committee and City Council for action.


All claims must represent reasonable and necessary expenses actually incurred.


Employees will be reimbursed for amounts expended for their own meals (excluding
alcoholic beverages) and mileage at State-approved rates (rates will be updated
biennially). Lodging claims incurred in the performance of official duties will be
considered for reimbursement with the approval of the Department Head or if for a
Department Head, the Mayor.


Employees shall be reimbursed when authorized and required to use their personal
automobile in the performance of their official duties. Employees must use a City vehicle
when available.


A purchase order or appropriate form and Application for Training/Conference form
(available from the City Clerk/Personnel Director) must be prepared by the employee
and approved by the Department Head prior to submittal for reimbursement.







13


Reimbursement requests must be submitted within 7 days of incurring expense.
Expense claims not received within 7 days will be reimbursed at the City’s discretion.


Receipts for meals, including tips, lodging and transportation must be attached to the
Travel/Training Reimbursement Form (available from the Clerk’s Office).


Employee Information


It is important that the personnel records of the City be accurate at all times. In order to
avoid issues or compromising benefit eligibility or having W2’s returned, the City
expects that employees will promptly notify the City Clerk/Personnel Director of any
change in name, home address, telephone number, marital status, number of
dependents, or any other pertinent information which may change.


VII. EMPLOYEE CONDUCT AND JOB SAFETY


Position Descriptions


Within one week of employment, job change, or promotion, each full time and
permanent part time employee will be given a copy of their position description detailing
the requirements and expectations of the position for which the employee was hired or
reassigned. The employee will sign a statement indicating agreement with and
understanding of the position description. This position description may be reviewed
and updated periodically as needed. When changes are made, the employee will be
given an updated copy and will sign a statement indicating agreement with and
understanding of the position description.


Performance Reviews


Performance reviews are normally conducted annually with the exception of a review at
the end of an employee’s trial period. All performance reviews are based on merit,
achievement, job description fulfillment and performance in the position. Reporting
supervisors will review and discuss the review with each employee.


Job Safety


The City recognizes that safe working conditions are of prime importance and will
continue to take every reasonable precaution to protect the safety and health of the
employees at their work. Employees shall keep their work place neat, clean and orderly.
Safety equipment provided by the City must be used whenever appropriate. No
employee-owned personal safety equipment should be used without prior approval of
the Supervisor and/or Department Head. Employees shall use all safety
equipment/devices applicable to the duties they are performing. It is the employee’s
responsibility to learn the locations of all safety and emergency equipment. All required
safety equipment will be provided by the City and employees will be responsible for the
reasonable upkeep of this equipment. Any problems with or defects in equipment







14


should be reported immediately to the employee’s supervisor.


In the interest of safety, all employees, excluding the office staff, must wear long pants
and a shirt throughout the workday at the discretion of the Department Head. Safety
shoes must be worn at the direction of the Department Head. Department Heads have
the authority to make seasonal adjustments in clothing requirements.


Safety Glasses


The City reserves the right to require the use of eye protection for employees. In such
cases, the City will provide the appropriate type of safety glasses for the duties
performed. The employee is responsible for the cost of any non-essential feature. When
safety glasses are required and safety glasses other than the safety glasses provided
by the City are used, the employee must provide and pay for their own.


Safety Belts


It is the interest of the City of Stoughton to reduce injury through the use of safety belts.
All employees operating or riding in a motor vehicle while engaged in City business are
mandated to use safety belts, if so equipped. It is the responsibility of the person
operating the vehicle to ensure that all passengers and themselves are wearing safety
belts.


Worker’s Compensation and Injury Reporting


The City of Stoughton will follow all laws and regulations regarding worker’s
compensation insurance and benefits. All injuries shall be reported to the employee’s
immediate supervisor and the City Clerk/Personnel Director as soon as practical on the
prescribed form. Additional information on Worker’s Compensation Coverage is
available through the City Clerk/Personnel Director.


All on-the-job injuries must be reported to the supervisor by the employee and to the
City Clerk/Personnel Director by the Department Head immediately after occurrence. It
is essential that the following information be reported:


 Time of the injury.
 Description of the job being performed at the time of the injury.
 The extent of the injury.
 Description of the aid administered.
 Witnesses to the injury.


A written report must be filed within 24 hours of occurrence. The reporting form is
available from the City Clerk/Personnel Director. Adherence to these procedures will
assure that the appropriate benefits will not be jeopardized.







15


Unsafe Activity Reporting


Unsafe activity or inappropriate use of City property in the work place will not be
tolerated and must be reported to the Department Head for action. Each employee has
a duty to comply with the safety rules of the City, to assist in maintaining a hazard-free
environment, to report any accidents or injuries including any breaches of safety, and to
report any unsafe equipment, working condition, process or procedure at once to a
supervisor. No employee will be punished or reprimanded for reporting safety violations
or hazards.


Work Station Conduct


Employees shall immediately contact their supervisor in the event of a vehicular or
property damage accident or occurrence. The supervisor shall insure that the Police
Department and the City Clerk/Personnel Director are contacted in writing as
appropriate, secure the area and evidence, and provide all appropriate documentation
to the offices of the City Clerk/Personnel Director, or to the Utilities Operations
Superintendent and the Utilities Finance/Administrative Manager, as appropriate.


The use of City owned tools, materials, or equipment for personal activities or for
activities not performed in the best interest of the City are prohibited. Privately owned
materials and equipment are not to be stored on City owned property. This includes the
private use of City owned vehicles during the rest period or unpaid break unless such
use is authorized by the Department Head. All employees who have access to
computers will be required to read and sign off on the City’s Electronic Communication
& Information Systems Policy.


Personal activities must not interfere with or delay the performance of assigned duties
nor the work of others. Personal activities must be limited to approved break times.
Family members and friends of City employees may not interfere with or delay the
performance of assigned duties nor the work of others.


The City of Stoughton is committed to a professional method of approaching workplace
conflicts and concerns. We advocate solving any problem at the earliest opportunity
with the lowest level of administrative oversight possible. Many problems are matters of
miscommunication or misinformation easily solved through direct and honest discussion
between the affected parties, often without the intervention of anyone else. It is every
employee’s responsibility to develop and maintain the job skills necessary to conduct
successful conflict management and resolution. In the event of a problem or issue, all
employees and Department Heads must do the following, either in person or in writing if
face-to-face discussion is not possible, applying each step in turn, to arrive at a
reasonable and timely resolution of workplace concerns:


1. Directly speak/write to the person(s) concerned or involved in the situation,
without involving other coworkers. Be sure your conversation/material clearly
states the problem, a possible resolution, and sets a timeframe for decision







16


making or settlement. Be willing to listen. See the other person’s point of view.
Admit fault as necessary or accept compromise. Everyone’s feelings are
important. Decision making requires facts and documentation, so be ready to
give it. Admit defeat gracefully. Be ready to accept the answer that is best for the
taxpayer or ratepayer, even if you don’t agree.


2. If resolution is not possible, both parties must go to the Department Head for
assistance in developing a workable solution.


3. If still unresolved, the parties, Department Head, and Mayor will meet to find a
resolution. Matters of day-to-day operation will be handled solely by the Mayor,
whose decision is final. Policy questions will be referred to the appropriate
standing committee for investigation and the Common Council for final resolution.


Failure to use professional methods of conflict resolution will not be tolerated and will be
followed by disciplinary action.


Alcohol & Substance Abuse


The City is committed to maintaining a workplace free from substance abuse.
Substance abuse, either at work or away from work, can seriously endanger the safety
of employees and citizens alike. Likewise, substance or alcohol abuse has been
demonstrated to cause absenteeism, poor job performance, and the inability to perform
work safely.


Additionally, if an employee is taking a prescribed controlled substance which may
adversely affect or limit his/her ability to perform his/her duties, the employee must
notify his/her Supervisor and/or Department Head of such known side effects prior to
the performance of any such duties.


Department Heads are responsible for communicating to every employee that the City’s
position applies to all alcohol or controlled substances. As a condition of employment,
all City employees must abide by the policy.


The use, possession, sale, manufacture or transfer of controlled substances is
prohibited at all times with an exemption for Police Personnel acting in their official
capacity for possession only in handling of police cases.


The consumption of alcoholic beverages or controlled substances during the work day
or while on standby is prohibited, as is reporting for work or being at work, while under
the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance. Possession of alcoholic beverages
while on City premises and/or in any City work environment is prohibited, except for
Police acting in official capacity. Disciplinary action will be taken in cases where
violations occur.


All employees should report evidence of alcohol or controlled substance abuse to a







17


supervisor or Department Head immediately. In cases where the use of alcohol or
controlled substances pose an imminent threat to the safety of persons or property, an
employee must report the violation. Failure to do so could result in disciplinary action for
the non-reporting employee.


Department Heads have the authority to require “reasonable suspicion” drug and
alcohol testing and to send employees home, on sick leave, for the remaining work
hours who have apparently consumed controlled substances or manifest behavior
during the work day that appears to impair the performance of their job. Investigatory
conference(s) will be scheduled as soon as possible after the employee returns to work.
Participants for this conference will be the employee, the Department Head, a union
representative if applicable, and other person(s) deemed appropriate by the Mayor or
City Clerk/Personnel Director.


Random drug testing will occur for CDL License holders, as mandated by the Federal
Government order. Employees in positions which are identified as safety sensitive will
be required to undergo annual random controlled substance/alcohol screening
according to the Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) policy. Controlled
substance/alcohol tests for all other employees will be limited to post-incident, situations
exhibiting reasonable suspicion, or related to safety sensitive employment positions.


Pursuant to the Drug Free Work Place Act of 1988, employees must report to their
Department Head any conviction under a criminal drug statute for violations occurring
on the job or during working hours, whether on or off City premises, within 5 days after
conviction. Violations of any provisions of this substance abuse policy will be considered
grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including, discharge, even for the first offense.
Because the City recognizes alcoholism and drug abuse as treatable conditions,
employees are encouraged to voluntarily refer themselves for professional assistance
prior to any disciplinary action being initiated.







18


Tobacco Use


The City endeavors to provide a healthy environment and therefore prohibits any form
of tobacco use or consumption in city buildings or vehicles.


Driver's Licenses and Traffic Tickets


An employee whose job requires driving city vehicles or a personal vehicle in
conducting city business must promptly notify his/her supervisor if his/her driver's
license is revoked, suspended, or restricted in any way. Employees are expected to
abide by traffic rules and regulations while on duty. An employee who receives a traffic
or parking ticket while on the job must pay the fine.


CDL Requirements


Any employee whose current position requires him/her to have a valid Commercial
Driver’s License (CDL) shall immediately inform his/her Department Head and the City’s
Personnel Director of any revocation, loss or suspension of their CDL privileges. Upon
revocation, loss or suspension of the CDL, the employee shall not operate any vehicle
of the City which requires such licensure. The City may in its sole discretion, temporarily
reclassify an employee who loses his/her CDL to the status of CDL exempt.


Reclassification to the status of CDL exempt shall be based upon the following factors:
the availability of suitable and necessary work within the employee’s current
department; the employee’s overall employment history, including but not limited to skill
set, disciplinary record, and attendance record. The City’s application of these factors
shall not be arbitrary or capricious.


While temporarily reclassified as CDL exempt, the employee’s wage rate shall be
adjusted accordingly to 90% of employee’s former pay rate during the duration of the
employee’s CDL exempt status.


An employee’s CDL exempt status shall not exceed three hundred sixty five (365) days.
Such exempt status may be terminated at any time by the City for good cause. The CDL
exempt classification is not to be construed as a permanent position and will only apply
during periods of CDL suspensions. An employee placed on CDL exempt status will be
expected to perform all of their regular job duties except those requiring a CDL. The
opportunity for continued employment during a CDL suspension or revocation will only
be afforded to an employee once during their employment with the City. If a second
CDL suspension or revocation is imposed upon the employee, they will be deemed
unqualified to continue in their position and will be subject to dismissal. An employee
whose CDL licensure is revoked or suspended as a result of work-related incident or
other operation of a City vehicle is not eligible for CDL exempt status and is subject to
immediate discharge.


As a condition of being placed on CDL exempt status, the employee agrees to







19


participate in and comply with reasonable and necessary driving or substance abuse
programs which may be established as a condition of reinstatement of his/her CDL
licensure and to provide to the City, upon request, proof of compliance with such
programs.


Workplace Violence


The City of Stoughton is committed to providing a safe and healthy work environment
that is free from any threats or acts of violence. Towards this commitment, the City will
not tolerate any threats or acts of violence perpetrated by employees or people from
outside the workplace. Violence is defined to include, but is not limited to: physical
assault, aggressive behavior directed at an individual, purposeful destruction of another
person's or the City's property, intimidation through verbalized or implied threats, and
threatening or harassing telephone calls. Any reported act or threat will be investigated
as a criminal act and/or a serious violation of City policy. Any confirmed act or threat by
an employee will be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of
employment, as appropriate.


Further, patrons and employees are prohibited from bringing authorized, concealed
and/or unconcealed weapons, as defined by state statute (i.e. handgun, knife, bully club
or taser) to the worksite, including the storage of weapons with their personal
belongings in the workplace. This prohibition does not include firearms stored in an
employee’s personal vehicle, even while on city business, and does not apply if the
firearm is in a vehicle driven or parked in a parking facility, or to any part of the building,
grounds or lands used as a parking facility, as well as city parks (this restriction does
not apply to employees who use city provided vehicles). Law enforcement officers
employed by the City Police Department or other agencies may bring firearms to the
worksite if authorized by the Chief of Police.


Patrons and employees are prohibited from carrying a concealed or unconcealed
weapon in a law enforcement facility, jail, secure mental health facility as defined by
state law, courthouse (including areas used as municipal courts while in session),
anywhere beyond the security checkpoint at an airport [this prohibition does not apply to
vehicles driven or parked at such locations], and in any city public building.


Patrons and employees who carry authorized, concealed or unconcealed weapons or
display intimidating, threatening and/or violent behavior will be held accountable under
City policy and work rules, as well as local, state and federal law. An employee who
harasses, threatens, attempts to or inflicts bodily harm to co-workers, representatives of
other agencies, or members of the general public is in violation of this policy. All City
managers and employees are responsible for committing to and becoming involved in
the prevention of workplace violence and promotion of a safe work environment.


Any employee who has been a recipient of a threat of violence or victim of an act of
violence is to make a report to the Personnel Director who will forward the information to
the Police Chief. Such reports will be kept confidential to the extent possible. We ask







20


each employee’s cooperation and commitment to the prevention of violence in the
workplace.


Hearing Conservation Policy


The City of Stoughton is committed to providing a safe environment for its employees
and visitors to its facilities. The Hearing Conservation Policy is composed of the
following responsibilities as mandated by OSHA Standard 29 CRF 1919.95 effective
April 7, 1983:


Responsibilities of the Employer:


1. To provide noise level surveys of affected work areas.
2. To file and maintain noise level survey data.
3. Generate a list to all employees of “Hearing Protection Needed” areas.
4. Provide baseline hearing test for all employees, and annual subsequent


audiograms for employees exposed at or above a time-weighted average of 85
decibels.Provide hearing protection devices for employees and visitors who will
be in a “Hearing Protection Needed” area.


5. Sign all areas that require “Hearing Protection Needed”.
6. Noise exposure measurement records shall be retained for two years.
7. Audiometric test records shall be retained in personnel file permanently.
8. Provide annual employee training on the effects of noise on hearing; purpose


and use of hearing protectors, the advantages and disadvantages of various
types; instruction in the selection, fitting, use and care of protectors; and the
purpose of audiometric testing and an explanation of the test procedures.


Responsibilities of Employees:


1. Read and understand noise level survey.
2. In the proper areas, wear hearing protection equipment provided, be trained in


their use, selection, fitting and care.
3. Inform employer of defective hearing protection equipment.
4. Ensure visitors wear hearing protection equipment in “Hearing Protection


Needed” areas.
5. Inform employer of work areas that are not surveyed that may need “Hearing


Protection Needed” status.


Responsibilities of Non-Employees and Visitors:


Wear hearing protection equipment provided before entering “Hearing Protection
Needed” areas.







21


Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan


In accordance with the OSHA Bloodborne Pathogens Standard, 29 CFR 1910.1030, the
City has developed a Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan. The purpose of
the exposure control plan is to: 1) Eliminate or minimize employee occupational
exposure to blood or certain other body fluids; and 2) Comply with OSHA Bloodborne
Standard. Employees shall participate in annual training regarding this Plan. Contact
your Supervisor for more information.


Written Hazard Communication Program


The City’s Written Hazard Communication Program enables employees to know health
and safety information about hazardous chemicals they work with and/or are exposed to
in their individual work area(s) of the workplace. The City Safety Coordinator is
responsible for receiving and cataloguing all current Material Safety Data Sheets
(MSDS’s) and MSDS lists from the Department Heads.


The Department Head and their designee shall manage this program in their
Departments(s) and maintain a current MSDS list and copies of all MSDS’s in a Written
Hazard Communication Program folder specific to the individual work area(s) where it is
available to be reviewed by all employees at that workplace. The Department Head or
their designee shall insure that all containers and piping used for handling hazardous
chemicals are properly labeled at all times. The Department Head or their designee
shall conduct training sessions with all employees at least annually to discuss the
MSDSs and labeling and report the effectiveness of the training session to the City
Safety Coordinator in writing.


All employees shall participate in the training sessions, remain familiar with the MSDS
list and information in the MSDSs, and insure that all containers and piping used to
handle hazardous chemicals in their individual work area(s) are properly labeled at all
times.


Employee Assistance Program


Please see the City Clerk/Personnel Director for a current copy of the Employee
Assistance Program Manual.


Disciplinary Action


Discipline may result when an employee’s actions do not conform with generally
accepted standards of good behavior, when an employee violates a policy or rule,
when an employee’s performance is not acceptable, or when the employee’s
conduct is detrimental to the interests of the City of Stoughton. Disciplinary action may
call for any of four steps – verbal warning, written warning, suspension (with or without
pay) or termination of employment – depending on the problem and the number of
occurrences. There may be circumstances when one or more steps are bypassed.
Certain types of employee problems are serious enough to justify either a suspension or







22


termination of employment without going through progressive discipline steps. The
City of Stoughton reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to impose disciplinary
action as may be appropriate to the particular circumstances.


The City is committed to fair and consistent enforcement of its rules and standards of
conduct. In evaluating whether disciplinary action is to be taken and, if so, the type of
disciplinary action, the City will consider all relevant factors including the nature and
seriousness of the offense, the impact on the City, co-workers, or others associated with
the City and the employee’s overall employment record.


While the City will generally employ a system of progressive discipline in cases of non-
serious offenses, the City reserves the right to impose such level of discipline as it
determines appropriate in the circumstances. The rules listed below are by way of
example and should not be read to in any way limit the City’s right to discipline for any
reason. Except as otherwise provided under a collective bargaining agreement or under
an individual contract of employment of fixed duration, all employment with the City is
considered at-will and nothing in this policy or otherwise in these Work Rules is
intended or to be construed to create a property right.


The following are grounds for disciplinary actions up to and including discharge as
determined appropriate by the City:


Grounds for Disciplinary Action (examples only)


 Carelessness resulting in injury, property damage or a dangerous condition
 Reckless or careless driving while using a City vehicle
 Release of confidential information
 Insubordination or failure to perform an assigned task
 Conduct which reflects unfavorably upon the City as an employer
 Discourtesy or use of abusive language
 False statements at the time of employment
 Dishonesty
 Falsification of organization records or reports
 Willingly making a false statement to a supervisor, official, the public, or any City


board or commission
 Violation of City ordinance, administrative regulation, department rule, state or


federal laws that relate to specific job functions
 Refusal to be examined by City authorized personnel, fully licensed physician or


intoxilizer operator when so directed, if applicable to position
 Theft or unauthorized removal of property belonging to another
 Indecent behavior on City premises
 Refusal to work overtime during a designated emergency, without justifiable


cause (Defined emergency = an emergency situation during any period in which
the health, safety, or welfare of the community is threatened)


 Violation of, or disregard for, an established safety practice







23


 Provoking, instigating, or participating in an activity intended to disrupt the
established work routine


 Documented unsatisfactory work performance
 Unauthorized use or possession of tools, machinery, or equipment
 Gambling on City property during working hours
 Loafing, loitering, or otherwise wasting time during work hours
 Being late for work without permission or notification
 Misuse of sick leave or other benefits
 Leaving the work station without permission prior to the scheduled quitting time
 Violation of harassment policy
 Possession, transfer, sale or use of controlled substances
 Possession, or consumption of alcohol while on duty or on City premises
 Reporting for, or being at work while under the influence of alcohol or controlled


substance, use of alcohol in circumstances which impairs the person's ability to
adequately undertake the responsibilities of the position


 Violation of applicable CDL standards with regard to the use of alcohol prior to
reporting or while performing safety sensitive functions


 Refusal to be tested for use of alcohol or controlled substances or tampering with
the conduct or results of such tests


This list is meant to provide examples only, and is not all inclusive.


Discipline at or below the level of a written warning may be issued by the employee’s
Department Head with a copy of any such disciplinary action being provided to the City
Clerk/Personnel Director at the time issued.


Discipline involving a suspension should generally be reviewed with the City
Clerk/Personnel Director and/or Personnel Committee before being imposed, except
where immediate suspension is deemed necessary to protect persons or property.


Prior to discharge, the matter will be reviewed by the Personnel Committee, Personnel
Director and Mayor, as appropriate.


An employee who disagrees with a disciplinary action may request review of the matter
by the Personnel Committee or its designee. The Personnel Committee will determine
the type and extent of review to be conducted. The decision of the Personnel
Committee or its designee is final and not subject to further review.


Disciplinary actions involving employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement
are subject to such review as the agreement may provide for. Disciplinary actions
involving sworn personnel are subject to the requirements of sec. 62.13(5), Wis. Stats.
and any applicable collective bargaining agreement.







24


VIII. Grievance Procedure (adopted by the Common Council 9/13/2011)


This policy is intended to comply with Section 66.0509, Wis. Stats., and provides a
grievance procedure addressing issues concerning workplace safety, discipline and
termination. This policy applies to all employees covered under Section 66.0509, Wis.
Stats., other than police and fire employees subject to Section 62.13(5), Wis. Stats.
An employee may appeal any level of discipline under this grievance procedure.


Definitions


For purposes of this policy, the following definitions apply:


Employee discipline includes all levels of progressive discipline, but shall not include
the following items:


 Placing an employee on paid administrative leave pending an internal
investigation;


 Counseling, meetings or other pre-disciplinary action;
 Actions taken to address work performance, including use of a


performance improvement plan or job targets;
 Demotion, transfer or change in job assignment; or
 Other personnel actions taken by the employer that are not a form of


progressive discipline.


Employee termination shall include action taken by the employer to terminate an
individual's employment for misconduct or performance reasons, but shall not include
the following personnel actions:


 Voluntary quit;
 Layoff or failure to be recalled from layoff at the expiration of the recall period;
 Retirement;
 Job abandonment, “no-call, no-show”, or other failure to report to work; or
 Termination of employment due to medical condition, lack of qualification or


license, or other inability to perform job duties.


Workplace safety is defined as conditions of employment affecting an
employee’s physical health or safety, the safe operation of workplace equipment and
tools, safety of the physical work environment, personal protective equipment,
workplace violence, and training related to same.


Requirements of Written Grievance


Any written grievance filed under this policy must contain the following information:


 The name and position of the employee filing it,
 A statement of the issue involved,







25


 A statement of the relief sought,
 A detailed explanation of the facts supporting the grievance;
 The date(s) the event(s) giving rise to the grievance took place,
 The identity of the policy, procedure or rule that is being challenged;
 The steps the employee has taken to review the matter, either orally or in writing,


with the employee’s supervisor; and
 The employee’s signature and the date.


Steps of the Grievance Procedure


Employees should first discuss complaints or questions with their immediate supervisor.
Every reasonable effort should be made by supervisors and employees to resolve any
questions, problems or misunderstandings that have arisen before filing a grievance.
Employee may choose to be represented during any time of the grievance process at
their own cost.


1. Step 1 – Written Grievance Filed with the Department Head. The employee must
prepare and file a written grievance with the Department Head within five (5)
business days of when the employee knows, or should have known, of the
events giving rise to the grievance. The Department Head or his/her designee
will investigate the facts giving rise to the grievance and inform the employee of
his/her decision, if possible within ten (10) business days of receipt of the
grievance. In the event the grievance involves the Department Head, the
employee may initially file the grievance with the Mayor, who shall conduct the
Step 1 investigation.


2. Step 2 – Review by Mayor. If the grievance is not settled at Step 1, the
employee may appeal the grievance to the Mayor within five (5) business days
of the receipt of the decision of the department head at Step 1. The Mayor
or his/her designee will review the matter and inform the employee of
his/her decision, if possible within ten (10) business days of receipt of the
grievance.


3. Step 3 – Impartial Hearing Officer. If the grievance is not settled at Step 2, the
employee may request in writing, within five (5) business days following receipt
of the Mayor’s decision, a request for written review by an impartial hearing
officer. The City of Stoughton shall select the impartial hearing officer. If the
employee objects to the city’s choice, a substitute impartial hearing officer will
be chosen by the City. The hearing officer shall not be a City employee. In all
cases, the grievant shall have the burden of proof to support the grievance.
The impartial hearing officer will determine whether the City of Stoughton
acted in an arbitrary and capricious manner. This process does not involve a
hearing before a court of law; thus, the rules of evidence will not be followed.
Depending on the issue involved, the impartial hearing officer will determine
whether a hearing is necessary, or whether the case may be decided based







26


on a submission of written documents. The impartial hearing officer shall
prepare a written decision.


4. Step 4 – Review by the Governing Body If the grievance is not resolved after
Step 3, the employee or the Mayor shall request within five (5) business days of
receipt of the written decision from the hearing officer a written review by the
Governing Body. For Library employees, the appeal shall be filed with the
Library Board. For all other employee, the appeal shall be filed with the City
Council. The City Council shall not take testimony or evidence; it may only
determine whether the hearing officer reached an arbitrary or incorrect result
based on a review of the record before the hearing officer. The matter will be
scheduled for the City Council’s next regular meeting. The City Council will
inform the employee of its findings and decision in writing within ten (10)
business days of the City Council meeting. The City Council shall decide the
matter by majority vote and this decision shall be final and binding.


An employee may not file a grievance outside of the time limits set forth above. If the
employee fails to meet the deadlines set forth above, the grievance will be considered
resolved. If it is impossible to comply with the deadlines due to meeting notice
requirements or meeting preparation, the grievance will be reviewed at the next possible
meeting date. An employee must process his/her grievance outside of normal work
hours, unless the employee elects to use accrued paid time (vacation, comp time
etc.) in order to be paid for time spent processing his/her grievance through the various
steps of the grievance procedure.


IX. Unlawful Harassment (Harassment in the Workplace Policy adopted by the
Common Council 10-14-08)


Purpose


The purpose of this policy is to maintain a healthy work environment in which all
individuals are treated with respect and dignity and to provide procedures for reporting,
investigating and resolving complaints of harassment and discrimination.


Policy


It is the policy of the City of Stoughton that all employees have the right to work in an
environment free of all forms of harassment. The City of Stoughton will not tolerate,
condone, or allow harassment by any employee or other non-employees that conducts
business with the City. The City of Stoughton considers harassment and discrimination of
others to be forms of serious employee misconduct. Therefore, the City of Stoughton shall
take direct and immediate action to prevent such behavior, and to remedy all reported
instances of harassment and discrimination. A violation of this policy can lead to discipline
up to and including termination, with repeated violations, even if “minor”, resulting in
greater levels of discipline as appropriate.







27


Definitions


Verbal Harassment: Sexual innuendoes, degrading or suggestive comments, repeated
pressure for dates, jokes of a sexual nature, unwelcome sexual flirtations, degrading
words used to describe an individual, obscene and/or graphic descriptions of an
individual’s body or threats that job, wages, assignments, promotions or working
conditions could be affected if the individual does not agree to a suggested sexual
relationship.


Non-Verbal Harassment: Sexually suggestive or offensive objects or pictures,
inappropriate usage of voicemail, e-mail, the internet, or other such sources as means to
express or obtain sexual material, comments, etc., printed or written materials including
offensive cartoons, suggestive or offensive sounds, whistling, catcalls, or obscene
gestures. Any material which inappropriately raises the issues of sex or discrimination.
Treating an employee differently than other employees when they have refused an offer
of sexual relations.


Physical Harassment: Unsolicited or unwelcome physical contact of a sexual nature,
which may include touching, hugging, massages, kissing, pinching, patting, or
intentionally brushing against the body of another person.


Other Forms of Harassment: Persistent and unwelcome conduct or actions on the basis
of race, national origin, religion, creed, disability, arrest record or conviction record,
marital status, sexual orientation, membership in the military reserve, or use or nonuse of
lawful products away from work is prohibited under this policy and §111.31-111.39, Wis.
Stats.


Harassment on any basis (race, sex, age, disability, etc.) exists whenever: Submission to
harassing conduct is made, either explicit or implicit, a term or condition of an individual’s
employment; submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for an
employment decision affecting an individual; the conduct interferes with an employee’s
work or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. Such conduct is
prohibited under this policy and §111.31-111.39 Wis. Stats.


Unwelcome: Sexual conduct is unwelcome whenever the person subjected to it considers
it unwelcome. The conduct may be unwelcome even though the victim voluntarily
engages in it to avoid adverse treatment.


Prohibited Activity (Sexual Harassment and Harassment)


Sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:


 Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or
condition of employment; or







28


 Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an employee is used as the basis
for employment decisions affecting the employee; or


 Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an
employee’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
working environment.


Harassment is any verbal, written, visual or physical act that creates a hostile, intimidating
or offensive work environment or interferes with an individual’s job performance.


 No employee shall either explicitly or implicitly ridicule, mock, deride, or belittle any
person.


 Employees shall not make offensive or derogatory comments to any person, either
directly or indirectly based on race, color, sex, religion, age, disability, sexual
orientation, or national origin. Such harassment is a prohibited form of
discrimination under state and federal employment law and/or is also considered
misconduct subject to disciplinary action by the city.


Covered Individuals


Individuals covered under this policy include employees and applicants for employment,
volunteers, elected officials, appointed members of committees, commissions and
boards, contractors, vendors, and members of the public.


Each Supervisor shall be responsible for:


 Preventing prohibited activities as defined above.
 Monitoring the unit work environment on a daily basis for signs that harassment


may be occurring;
 Training and counseling all employees on what constitutes harassment and sexual


harassment, on the types of behavior prohibited, the City’s policy and procedures
for reporting and resolving complaints of harassment;


 Stopping any observation that may be considered harassment, and taking
appropriate steps to intervene, whether or not the involved employees are within
his/her line of supervision; and


 Taking immediate action to prevent retaliation towards the complaining party and
to eliminate the hostile work environment where there has been a complaint of
harassment, pending investigation. If a situation requires separation of parties,
care should be taken to avoid actions that appear to punish the complainant.
Transfer or reassignment of any of the parties involved should be voluntary if
possible and, if non-voluntary, should be temporary pending the outcome of the
investigation.


Failing to carry out these responsibilities will be considered in any evaluation or
promotional decisions and may be grounds for discipline.







29


Each Supervisor has the responsibility to assist any employee of the City who comes to
that supervisor with a complaint of harassment in documenting and filing a complaint with
the internal investigation authority as designated by the City while maintaining the highest
level of confidentiality possible.


Each employee of the City is responsible for assisting in the prevention of harassment
through the following acts:


 Refraining from participation in or encouragement of actions that could be
perceived as harassment;


 Reporting acts of harassment to a supervisor; and
 Encouraging any employee who confides that he or she is being harassed or


discriminate against to report these acts to a supervisor.


Failure of any employee to carry out the above responsibilities will be considered in any
performance evaluation or promotional decisions and may be grounds for discipline.


Complaint Procedure


Any employee encountering harassment is encouraged but not required to inform another
employee that his or her actions are unwelcome and offensive. This initial contact can be
either verbal or in writing. The employee is to document all incidents of harassment to
provide the fullest basis for investigation.


Any employee who has unsuccessfully attempted to terminate the harassment and who
believes that he or she is being harassed shall report the incident(s) as soon as possible
to their supervisor so that steps may be taken to protect the employee from further
harassment, and so that appropriate investigative and disciplinary measures may be
initiated. Where doing so is not practical, the employee may instead file a complaint with
another supervisor, the Personnel Director for the City (City Clerk), the City Attorney, or
Mayor.


The supervisor or other person to whom a complaint is given shall meet with the
employee and document the incident(s) complained of, the person(s) performing or
participating in the harassment, any witnesses to the incident(s) and the date(s) on which
it occurred.


Any employee who does not feel it is practical to file their complaint with the above listed
people may file the complaint with either or both of the following:


Wisconsin Department of Work Force Development-Equal Rights Division
201 E. Washington Avenue
Room A100
P.O. Box 8928
Madison, Wisconsin 53708







30


United States Equal Opportunities Commission
1-800-669-4000


If the employee exercises the reporting options of either of the above two listed agencies,
they must file a copy of the complaint with the City Attorney within 24 hours of filing of the
complaint.


The internal investigation authority shall be responsible for investigating any complaint
alleging harassment or discrimination.


 The internal investigative authority shall immediately notify the Mayor and the City
Attorney if the complaint contains evidence of criminal activity, such as battery,
rape, or attempted rape.


 The investigation shall include a determination as to whether other employees are
being harassed by the person, and whether other city employees participated in or
encouraged the harassment.


 The internal investigative authority shall inform the parties involved of the outcome
of the investigation.


 A file of harassment and discrimination complaints shall be maintained in a secure
location. The Mayor shall be provided with an annual summary of these
complaints.


There shall be no retaliation against any employee for filing a harassment or
discrimination complaint, or for assisting, testifying, or participating in the investigation of
such a complaint per state law.


The complaining party’s confidentiality will be maintained throughout the investigatory
process to the extent practical and appropriate under the circumstances.


Complainants or employees accused of harassment may file a grievance/appeal in
accordance with City procedures when they disagree with the investigation or disposition
of a harassment claim.


This policy does not preclude any employee from filing a complaint or grievance with an
appropriate outside agency.


Retaliation


Retaliating against any employee for filing a harassment or discrimination complaint, or
for assisting, testifying, or participating in the investigation of such a complaint, is illegal
and is prohibited by this City and by federal and state statutes.


Retaliation is a form of employee misconduct. Any evidence of retaliation shall be
considered a separate violation of this policy and shall be handled by the same complaint
procedures established for harassment and discrimination complaints.







31


Monitoring to ensure that retaliation does not occur is the responsibility of the chief,
supervisors, Department Heads, employees and the appropriate internal investigative
authority.


X. CODE OF ETHICS


As defined in Municipal Code 2-2, the proper operation of democratic government
requires that public officials and employees be independent, impartial, and responsible
to the people; that government decisions and policy be made in proper channels of the
governmental structure; that public office not be used for personal gain; and that the
public have confidence in the integrity of its government. In recognition of these goals, a
code of ethics was established for all City officials and employees, whether elected or
appointed, paid or unpaid, including members of boards, committees, and commissions
of the City. The purpose of this code is to establish guidelines for ethical standards of
conduct for all such officials and employees by setting forth those acts or actions that
are incompatible with the best interests of the City and by directing disclosure by such
officials and employees of private financial or other interests in matters affecting the
City. The provisions and purpose of the code and such rules and regulations as may be
established are hereby declared to be in the best interest of the City.


Public officials and employees are agents of public purpose and hold offices for the
benefit of the public. They are bound to uphold the Constitution of the United States and
the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin and carry out impartially the laws of the
nation, State, and municipality and to observe in their official acts the highest standard
of morality and to discharge faithfully the duties of their office regardless of personal
consideration, recognizing that the public interest must be their prime concern. Their
conduct in their official affairs should be above reproach so as to foster respect for all
government.


All officials and employees of the City should be loyal to the objectives expressed by the
electorate. Appointed officials and employees should adhere to the rules of work and
performance established as the standard for their positions by the appropriate authority.


Officials and employees should not exceed their authority or breach the law or ask
others to do so, and they should work in full cooperation with other public officials and
employees unless prohibited from so doing by law or by officially recognized
confidentiality of their work.


Definitions


Financial Interest: any interest which shall yield directly or indirectly, a monetary or other
material benefit to the officer or employee or to any person employing or retaining the
services of the officer or employee.


Person: any person, corporation, partnership, or joint venture.







32


Immediate Family: any individual’s spouse; and an individual’s relative by marriage,
lineal descent, or adoption who receives, directly or directly, more than one-half of their
support from the individual or from whom the individual receives, directly or indirectly,
more than one-half of their support.


Use of Public Property


No official or employee shall request or permit the unauthorized use of City-owned
vehicles, equipment, materials, or property for personal convenience or profit.


Obligations to Citizens


No official or employee shall grant any special consideration, treatment, or advantage to
any citizen beyond that which is available to every other citizen.


Financial interest prohibited: No local public official or employee may use his or her
public position or office to obtain financial gain or anything of substantial value for their
private benefit or their immediate family, or for an organization with which they are
associated. This does not prohibit a local public official from using the title of prestige of
their office to obtain campaign contributions that are permitted and reported as required
by Chapter 11 of the Wisconsin Statutes.


No official or employee shall engage in or accept private employment or render service,
for private interest, when such employment or service is incompatible with the proper
discharge of their official duties or would tend to impair such official or employee’s
independence or judgment or action in the performance of their official duties, unless
otherwise permitted by law and unless disclosure is made as hereinafter provided.


No official or employee will, without proper legal authorization, disclose confidential
information concerning the property, government or affairs of the City, nor will such
official or employee use such information to advance the financial or other private
interest of such official or employee or others.


No official or employee will accept any gift, whether in the form of service, loan, thing, or
promise from any person, firm or corporation which to their knowledge is interested
directly or indirectly in any manner whatsoever in business dealings with the City; nor
will any such official or employee accept any gifts, favor, or thing of value that may tend
to influence such official or employee in the discharge of their duties, or grant in the
discharge of their duties any improper favor, service, or thing of value, except campaign
contributions as controlled by Sub (7). Gifts received under unusual circumstances
should be referred to the Ethics Board within 10 days for recommended disposition.


No official or employee who in their capacity as such officer or employee participates in
the making of a contract in which such officer or employee has a private pecuniary
interest, direct or indirect, or performs in regard to that contract some function requiring
the exercise of discretion on the part of such official or employee, shall enter into any







33


contract with the City unless, within the confines of 946.13, Wis. Stats., the contract is
awarded through a process of public notice and competitive bidding.


Any member of the City Council who has a financial interest in any proposed legislation
before the Council shall disclose on the records of the Council the nature of and extent
of such interest. Any other official or employee who has a financial interest in any
proposed legislative action of the Council and who participates in discussion with or
gives official opinions or recommendations to the Council, will disclose on the records of
the Council the nature of and extent of such interest.


All elected and appointed officials and employees as directed by the City Council must
file an initial statement of economic interests and amend such statement if substantial
changes have occurred in economic interests as defined and limited to paragraph (e)
below with the Ethics Board.


If a person must make a disclosure as provided in paragraph (a) above, within 7 days
after such person becomes a candidate for any elective City office, prior to appointment
to such office such person must file a statement of economic interests or a statement as
provided in paragraph (e) below with the Ethics Board.


Elected and appointed officials now serving a definite term must comply with provisions
of this section within 90 days of adoption of forms and procedure by the Ethics Board.


A person filing any statement of economic interests under this section must file the
statement on a form prescribed by the Ethics Board and must supply the following
information to the Ethics Board; a description of all parcels of real estate within the City
and adjoining towns or villages in which the person or spouse owns any interest,
including an option to purchase, if such property is to be considered for rezoning or
purchase by an entity of government, but exempting homestead property. All candidates
for elective and appointive office required to file under this section shall identify any and
all interests of more than 2% or $7,500 (whichever is lesser) he, she, or their spouse
has in any business organization, either as an owner, part owner, partner, silent partner,
or lender. The statement shall include a listing of all corporations or businesses on
which the person or spouse serves as a director or on a consultation basis.


Any candidate, elected or appointed official or employee who feels their standards of
privacy would be compromised by a statement of economic interests may decline to
offer such a statement. In lieu thereof, they must initially file a statement with the Ethics
Board of their knowledge and awareness of the requirements to disclose interest in
legislation required under sub. (g)(4) of this section.


Campaign contributions must be reported by all candidates for City office in strict
conformity with the provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes. Any campaign contribution
tendered to or accepted by a candidate subsequent to the final statutory report must be
reported to the City Clerk, who will forward a copy of such report to the Ethics Board.


Revised by Personnel Committee: 9/26/2011,12/19/2011







34


Adopted by Council: 2/14/2012
Amended by Council: 11/27/2012, 08/27/2013







35


INDEX


Subject Page


A


Accrued Sick Leave Credit, Retiree ................... 14


Accrued Sick Leave Credit, Surviving Spouse ... 14


Alcohol & Substance Abuse …………………….. 28-29


Alcoholic Beverages (Reimbursement) ………... 25


Americans with Disabilities Policy Statement…. 4-5


At-Will Employment………………………………. 4


B


Birthday ……………………………………………. 18-19


Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan . 33


Breaks ……………………………………………... 9


Business Expense Reimbursement ……………. 24-25


C


Certification ……………………………………….. 19


Christmas Day ……………………………………. 18


Christmas Eve Afternoon ………………………... 18-19


COBRA ……………………………………………. 21


Code of Ethics ……………………………………. 43-45


Compensatory Time ……………………………... 10


Complaint Procedure (Harassment) …………… 41-42


Computation of Benefits FT to PT & visa versa. 16-17


Concealed Weapons .......................................... 31


Concerns, Workplace ......................................... 28


Conferences ………………………………………. 24-25


Conflicts, Workplace ……………………………... 28


Continuation of Health/Dental Coverage……... 21


Continuing Education ……………………………. 19


Controlled Substance Abuse ……………………. 28-29


Co-Pay …………………………………………….. 21


Courses …………………………………………… 19


Coveralls ………………………………………….. 23


Subject Page


D


Deductibles ……………………………………….. 20


Demotion ………………………………………….. 6


Dental Insurance …………………………………. 21


Department Heads (List of) ……………………... 10


Discharge …………………………………………. 34, 35


Disciplinary Action ……………………………….. 33-35


Discrimination …………………………………….. 4


Driver’s License …………………………………... 30


Drug abuse ……………………………………….. 28-29


Drug Free Work Place Act ………………………. 29


Drug Testing ……………………………………… 29


E


Earned Rest Period ……………………………… 9


Electronic Direct Deposit ………………………… 24


Emergency Response Requirements ………….. 5-6


Employee Assistance Program …………………. 33


Employee Benefits, Statement of ....................... 16


Employee Conduct ………………………………. 25-26


Employee Information …………………………… 25


Ending Time, Workday ....................................... 8


Equal Employment Opportunity…………………. 4


Ethics, Code of …………………………………… 43-45


Examinations, Continuing Education ................. 19


Examinations, Physical ...................................... 21


Expense Reimbursement ……………………….. 24-25


Eye Protection ……………………………………. 26


Eyeglasses ………………………………………... 21-22


F


Family & Medical Leave Act Leave …………….. 14-15


Family, Definition, for Funeral Leave ................. 12


Family, Definition, for Sick Leave ....................... 13


Flex Time ………………………………………….. 9







36


Subject Page


Floating Days Off ………………………………… 18-19


FMLA Leave ………………………………………. 14


Funeral Leave …………………………………….. 11


G


Grievance Procedure ……………………………. 36-38


Grounds for Disciplinary Action (examples) …… 34-35


Group Life Insurance …………………………….. 22-23


H


Harassment in the Workplace …………………... 38-43


Health Insurance …………………………………. 20-21


Hearing Conservation Policy…………………….. 32


Holidays …………………………………………… 18


Hospital Expenses ……………………………….. 20


Hours of Work …………………………………….. 8-11


I


Income Continuation Insurance ………………… 23


Independence Day ………………………………. 18


Injuries (on-the-job) ……………………………… 27


Insurance, Dental ............................................... 21


Insurance, Group Life ........................................ 22


Insurance, Health ............................................... 20-21


Insurance, Income Continuation ........................ 22


Introduction ……………………………………….. 4


Involuntary Termination …………………………. 7


J


Job Safety ………………………………………… 26


Jury Duty ………………………………………….. 12


L


Labor Day …………………………………………. 18


Lateral Transfer …………………………………... 6


Leaves of Absence ………………………………. 11-15


Length-of-Service Payment ……………………... 19


Licensing Fees, Continuing Education ............... 19


Subject Page


Life Insurance …………………………………….. 23


Lodging Reimbursement ………………………… 25


Lunch Break ………………………………………. 9


M


Martin Luther King Jr. Day ………………………. 18


Medical Expenses ………………………………... 20


Medical Leave, Other…………………………….. 15


Memorial Day …………………………………….. 18


Military Duty ………………………………………. 12


N


New Year’s Day ………………………………….. 18


New Year’s Eve Afternoon ……………………… 18-19


Non-Verbal Harassment ……………………….... 39


O


On-Call ............................................................... 11


Overtime …………………………………………... 10


P


Pall Bearer Leave ………………………………… 12


Part-time ………………………………………….. 8, 16-17,


18-19


Pay Days ………………………………………….. 24


Pay Practices ……………………………………... 24-25


Performance Reviews …………………………… 25-26


Personal Activities ……………………………….. 27


Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) ............... 23


Personnel Records ………………………………. 25


Physical Examination ......................................... 21


Physical Harassment ……………………………. 39


Physician’s Statement …………………………… 13


Police Dept. Work Period ……………………….. 9


Position Descriptions ……………………………. 25


PPE .................................................................... 23


Pre-Employment Physical ………………………. 21







37


Subject Page


Prescription Drug Expenses …………………….. 21


Promotion …………………………………………. 6


Property Damage Reporting ……………………. 27


Public Property, Use of ………………………….. 44


R


Random Drug Testing …………………………… 29


Reasonable Suspicion …………………………… 29


Reimbursement of Business Expenses ……….. 24-25


Response Time …………………………………... 5-6


Rest Period ……………………………………….. 9


Retaliation, Prohibition of ………………………... 42-43


Retirement ………………………………………… 22


Reviews, Performance ....................................... 25-26


Rubber Rain Boots ………………………………. 24


S


Safety ……………………………………………… 23, 26-27


Safety Belts……………………………………….. 26


Safety Clothing …………………………………… 23


Safety Glasses …………………………………… 26


Safety Shoes ……………………………………… 23, 26


Seminars ………………………………………….. 19


Severe Weather ................................................. 11


Sexual Harassment ……………………………… 39-40


Sick Leave ………………………………………… 12-14


Sick Leave, Accrued Credit, Retiree .................. 14


Sick Leave, Accrued Credit, Surviving Spouse .. 14


Starting Time, Workday ..................................... 8


State Certification ………………………………… 19


Subpoena …………………………………………. 12


Surgical Expenses ……………………………….. 20


Suspension ……………………………………….. 14, 33,


34


T


Subject Page


Termination, Voluntary ....................................... 7


Termination, Involuntary .................................... 7


Testing, Continuing Education ........................... 19


Thanksgiving Day ………………………………… 18


Thanksgiving Day, Day after ……………………. 18


Threat of Violence ………………………………... 31


Time off ……………………………………………. 18-19


Time Sheets ………………………………………. 24


Tobacco Use ……………………………………… 30


Traffic Tickets …………………………………….. 30


Training/Conference Reimbursement ………….. 24-25


Transfer (Lateral) ………………………………… 6


Trial Period ………………………………………... 5


V


Vacation …………………………………………… 16-17


Vehicles, City-owned …………………………….. 27, 30


Vehicular Accident Reporting …………………… 27


Verbal Harassment ………………………………. 39


Violence, Workplace ……………………………... 31-32


Voluntary Termination …………………………… 7


W


Wage Appeals ……………………………………. 7-8


Weather, Severe ................................................ 11


Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) …………. 22


Work Period (Police Dept. ) …………………….. 9


Work Station Conduct …………………………… 27-28


Workday ……….………………………………….. 8


Worker’s Compensation …………………………. 26-27


Workplace Conflicts & Concerns ……………… 28


Workplace Violence ……………………………… 31-32


Workshops ……………………………………….. 19


Workweek …..…………………………………….. 8


Written Hazard Communication Program…….. 33







AFFIRMATION OF RECEIPT


I have read the Work Rules for the City of Stoughton, as approved by the Common
Council on 02/14/2012 and amended by Council action on 11/27/2012 and 08/27/2013,
and I fully understand that non-compliance with these rules may result in disciplinary
action up to and including termination.


______________________________________________________________________
Employee Name (PLEASE PRINT)


______________________________________________________________________
Employee Signature Date





		R-58-2015 Sergent nonunion work rules.pdf

		Work Rules 2013-rev042015Final.pdf






 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO EXERCISE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT POWERS  


 


 
Committee Action:      Finance Committee Approves 5-0  
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
File Number: R-59-2015  


 
Date Introduced: April 14, 2015  


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, that: 


 1. The City of Stoughton, by its Common Council, hereby declare its intention to exercise 


its police power pursuant to Section 66.0703, Wisconsin Statutes, to levy special assessments against 


some or all of the property described in Attachment A, for benefits accruing to such property by the 


construction of Public Improvements, including curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveway aprons, carriage 


walks, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water system improvements.  The special assessments may 


include the direct and indirect cost of the Public Improvements, the resulting damages, the interest on 


bonds or notes, charges for the administrative staff of the City, and the cost of any engineering and legal 


services, and any other items of direct or indirect cost that may reasonably be attributed to the Public 


Improvements. 


2. Whether the assessments will be deferred or not and whether the assessments will be 


payable in installments will be determined following the completion of a final special assessment report 


and following the public hearing required under Wis. Stat. § 66.0703(7). 


 3. The City Engineer is directed to prepare a report thereon consisting of: 


 a). Preliminary plans and specifications for said Public Improvements; 


 b). An estimate of the entire cost of the proposed Public Improvements; 


 c). A schedule of the proposed assessments;  


 d) A statement that the property against which the assessments are proposed is benefitted. 


 Upon completion of such report, the City Engineer is directed to file copies thereof in the office 


of the City Clerk for public inspection. 


 Adopted on roll call at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Stoughton held 


on the   14
th


 day for April, 2015. 


 







 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote      


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
S:\Planning\RJS\STREET\Washington Street\Special Assessments\Preliminary special assessment resolution-draft.doc 







 


 


Attachment A 


 
Washington Street from Division Street to Fifth Street 


Fifth Street from Main Street to North Street 


 


South Alley (South of Main Street) from Forrest Street to Division Street 








 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the Director of Planning & Development to prepare and submit a Wisconsin 


Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Grant for Stormwater Management Planning and Modeling. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Approves 5-0 


 
Fiscal Impact:  $36,000 Stormwater Utility Expense for 2016 


 
File Number: 


 
R-60-2015 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
April 14, 2015 


 
WHEREAS, The City of Stoughton is interested in acquiring a Grant from the Wisconsin Department 


of Natural Resources  for the purpose of implementing measures to control agricultural or urban 


stormwater runoff pollution sources (as described in the application and pursuant to ss. 281.65 or 


281.66, Wis. Stats., and chs. NR 151, 153 and 155); and 


 


WHEREAS, The City of Stoughton is required to evaluate stormwater management modeling and 


practices to meet Wisconsin Pollution Discharge Elimination System (WPDES) permit requirements and 


Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) allocation; and 


 


WHEREAS, The general scope of services for the project will include stormwater quality modeling, 


alternatives analysis, stormwater system map update, stormwater program and ordinance updates, 


stormwater utility rate review and update, meetings, administration, and an implementation plan; and  


 


WHEREAS, the anticipated cost share will be allocated 36% to the City for this 2016 project funded 


through the Stormwater Utility; and 


 


WHEREAS, the grant requires the applicant to designate an authorized position to submit and process 


required materials; and 


 


WHEREAS, a cost-sharing grant is beneficial to fund this project: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Stoughton hereby authorizes the Director of 


Planning and Development to act on behalf of the City of Stoughton to: 


 


Submit and sign an application to the State of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for any 


financial aid that may be available;  


Sign a grant agreement between the local government (applicant) and the Department of Natural 


Resources; 


Submit reimbursement claims along with necessary supporting documentation; 


Submit signed documents; and 


Take necessary action to undertake, direct and complete the approved project. 


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Stoughton shall comply with all state and federal laws, 


regulations and permit requirements pertaining to implementation of this project and to fulfillment of the 


grant document provisions. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 
 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Council Resolution-2015 DNR Stormwater Grant Rev.docx 








 
 


 
 
Whereas, Stoughton is a community known for the dedication and commitment of its 


citizens; and 


Whereas, over the years our community has benefitted from countless volunteers and 


extraordinary business owners providing time, energy, and helping hands; and 


Whereas, volunteer efforts have kept our food panty stocked, delivered meals to our 


homebound, and fund-raised monies to provide assistance when needed; and, 


Whereas, Stoughton has been the beneficiary of many volunteer projects such as the 


Opera House renovation, Youth Center projects, hospital expansion, and numerous park 
projects, to name only a few; and  


Whereas, day after day we see volunteerism becoming more and more contagious; and 


Whereas, volunteerism proves to be a full circle, as those who receive are grateful, 


those who volunteer are humble, and those in our community are thankful; and 


Whereas, National Volunteer Week reflects the power that volunteers and 


extraordinary business owners have to inspire by example—volunteers both encourage 
those they help and motivate others to serve; now, 
 


Therefore, I, Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of Stoughton, proclaim  


Joe Conant- Conant Automotive and Dan McGlynn- McGlynn Pharmacy 
Stoughton’s Business Person for the Year of 2015 in recognition for his work in the 


community. Thank you for all that you do. 
 


In testimony whereof, I, Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of 
Stoughton, hereunto set my hand and caused the great seal of 
the City of Stoughton to be affixed this fifteenth day of April 
in the year two thousand and fourteen.  


 
Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of Stoughton 








 
 


 
 
Whereas, Stoughton is a community known for the dedication and commitment of its 


citizens; and 


Whereas, over the years our community has benefitted from countless volunteers and 


extraordinary business owners providing time, energy, and helping hands; and 


Whereas, volunteer efforts have kept our food panty stocked, delivered meals to our 


homebound, and fund-raised monies to provide assistance when needed; and, 


Whereas, Stoughton has been the beneficiary of many volunteer projects such as the 


Opera House renovation, Youth Center projects, hospital expansion, and numerous park 
projects, to name only a few; and  


Whereas, day after day we see volunteerism becoming more and more contagious; and 


Whereas, volunteerism proves to be a full circle, as those who receive are grateful, 


those who volunteer are humble, and those in our community are thankful; and 


Whereas, National Volunteer Week reflects the power that volunteers and 


extraordinary business owners have to inspire by example—volunteers both encourage 
those they help and motivate others to serve; now, 
 


Therefore, I, Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of Stoughton, proclaim  


Tammy Benoy 
Stoughton’s Friend of Youth for the Year of 2015 in recognition for his work in the 


community. Thank you for all that you do. 
 


In testimony whereof, I, Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of 
Stoughton, hereunto set my hand and caused the great seal of 
the City of Stoughton to be affixed this fifteenth day of April 
in the year two thousand and fourteen.  


 
Donna Olson, Mayor of the City of Stoughton 













 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, March 24, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M. 


Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building  


Members: Michael Engelberger, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Eric Hohol, Greg Jenson, 


Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Tricia Suess, Tim Swadley, Sonny 


Swangstu, Pat O’Connor 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Mayor Olson called the meeting of the Common Council to order at 7:00 pm. 


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations: 


 


Clerk Kropf called the roll and noted that there were eleven alderperson present, Sonny Swangstu was 


absent. 


 


Mayor Olson congratulated Stoughton on obtaining the award 2014 Tree City USA for 21 years in a 


row and the Growth Award for 18 years in a row. 


 


Mayor Olson congratulated WSTO for receiving an Award of Achievement for the coverage of the 


Stoughton High School Football from the Wisconsin Community Media Best of the Midwest Video 


Festival.  


 


Kettle Park West Update 


 


Director Scheel noted that City Staff continues to work on the financing and construction plans. 


He also noted that ground will not be broke in April as anticipated. 


 


RDA Update 


 


Peter Sveum, Chairperson of the Redevelopment Authority, gave an update as to what the 


Redevelopment Authority (RDA) has been working on for the City. Suess asked that if the Mil-


Fab property is acquired what is would be used for. He noted that it would be used for residential 


use, retail, and to overall beautify that area of the City. 


 


 


Minutes and Reports: The following minutes and reports were entered into the record: 


 


Minutes:  Finance 2/24/15, CA/CP 4/2/15, Public Works 2/17/15 & 3/17/15, Tree Commission 1/14/15, 


Stoughton Utilities 3/16/15, Landmarks 2/12/15, Plan Commission 2/9/15 


 


Reports:  Stoughton Utilities January 2015 Financials 


 


 


 


  


 







 


 


Public Comment Period:   


 


Kevan Bard; 840 W South St; Spoke in favor of allowing Stoughton to have a Farmer’s Market and 


spoke of it’s mission. 
 


Ingrid West; 1053 Taylor Ln; Spoke in favor the approval of  the resolution approving the RDA offer to 


purchase of the Mill-Fab parcels. 
 


Stephen Lawrence; 601 S Page St; Spoke about the timing for the farmer’s market should be 8am to Noon with an 


half an  hour prior and after for setup and cleanup. 


 


Rosalie Bjelde; 101 W Broadway St; Spoke in favor of the approval of the pigeon ordinance. 
 


 


 


CONSENT AGENDA 


 


A. Approval of Council minutes of:  March 10, 2015 


B. R-48-2015 -Confirming the Mayors Appointment for Opera House Board 


 


Motion by Lawrence, to approve the consent agenda, second by Jenson. Motion passed unanimously by 


acclamtion11-0. 


 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


Consideration and possible action relating to Petition for Direct Legislation 


 


Attorney Dregne addressed the Council and noted that the petition as is not appropriate for Direct 


Legislation. He also noted that it is problematic that the proposed ordinance would prohibit the statutory 


borrowing procedures and limit the statutory procedures for the creating and amending TIF districts. It 


would also modify the zoning procedures that would not adhere to the State’s laws on zoning properties.  


 


Motion by Lawrence, to find that the Direct Legislation petition with its proposed ordinance is not a 


proper subject for Direction Legislation and will not be adopted, second by Hohol.   


 


 If the Council chose to adopt the ordinance the city may be in noncompliance with the zoning practices 


and would have to adhere, without repeal, to the ordinance for two years. Engelberger asked Attorney 


Dregne that if the council doesn’t put it on the ballot or approve it, if there is no action the petitioners can 


appeal the council’s lack of decision.   


 


Motion by Lawrence to amend the motion to find that the ordinance as drafted is not an ordinance that 


the Council can be required to adopt or place on the ballot using the Direct Legislation statute, second by 


Hohol. 


 


Motion carried 10-1 by a roll call vote, with Engelberger voting no.  


 







 


 


Motion by Suess that the Council direct the appropriate committee to draft a policy or ordinance that 


reflects the intent of the original petition, second by Engelberger. The Council referred the request to the 


Finance Committee.  


Motion passed unanimously by a roll call vote 11-0. 


  


 


NEW BUSINESS  
 


 


R-25-2015 -Bob Stoehr representing Milestone Senior Living requests certified survey 


map(CSM) approval to combine the property at 2208 and 2300 Lincoln Avenue (lots 60 and 61, 


Second Stiklestad High Field Addition to Norse View Heights). 


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-25-2015, second by Lawrence. Motion passed 


unanimously by acclamation 11-0.  
 


R-26-2015 – Elizabeth Cwik, BWZ Architects requests a conditional use permit for an Indoor 


Commercial Entertainment Use (Wedding Reception Venue) at the Tobacco Warehouse, 515 E. 


Main Street. 


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-26-2015, second by Lawrence. Motion passed 


unanimously by acclamation 11-0. 


 


R-27-2015 – Stoughton Hospital requests a conditional use permit approval for an Indoor 


Institutional use (Building Addition of two bay ambulance garage and renovations) at 900 Ridge 


Street.  


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-27-2015, second by Hohol. Motion passed unanimously 


by acclamation 11-0. 


 


R-36-2015 – Warren Brewster requests a certified survey map (CSM) approval to reconfigure 5 


parcels into 4 parcels (creating 3 buildable residential lots) at 101 W. Chicago Street.  


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-36-2015, second by Lawrence. Motion passed 


unanimously by acclamation 11-0. 


 


R-37-2015 - Preston Baker requests an Extra-Territorial Jurisdictional (ETJ) land division 


(CSM) approval to allow the creation of an additional residential building lot at 1787 Oakview 


Drive and 2739 Yahara Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs. 


 


 Motion by Christianson, to approve R-37-2015, second by Lawrence. Motion passed 


unanimously by acclamation 11-0. 


 


R-40-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city officials to set the 2015 Retiree Health 


Insurance Premium at the 2014 Retiree Health Insurance Premium Rate plus an additional 10% 


increase to reflect the current percentage increase for all City Employees for the 2015 plan year. 







 


 


 


Motion by Suess, to approve R-40-2015, second by Christianson. Human Resources Director, 


Amy Jo Gillingham addressed the council and noted that the City’s fiscal impact would be 


$19,000 for the year 2015. After January 2016 there will be an increase for those retirees and 


they will be notified as soon as the resolution is approved. Gillingham noted that she has 


contacted the retirees and that she will be sending them letters notifying them of the change. 


Motion passed unanimously by acclamation 11-0. 


 


R-49-2015-  Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Stoughton 


Community Farmers Market (SCFM) street closings on Forrest St between Main St and the North 


Alley on Saturday’s {May – September 8:30 am to 12:30 pm}  


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-49-2015, second by Lawrence.  


Motion by Majewski to amend the resolution to change the hours to 7:30am to 12:30pm, second 


by Engelberger. Motion passed unanimously by acclamation 11-0. 


Original motion passed unanimously by acclamation 11-0. 


  


R-51-2015- Approving the purchase of parcel 0511-071-1029-7 Gjertson Street from Dane 


County.   


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-51-2015, second by Jenson. Planning Director Scheel 


noted that this land has a  stormwater interceptor in it. This is currently owned by the County and 


the city would pay $50 for the purchase. Swadley noted that the City found out that the County 


has this for sale last week and that is the reason for the urgency. Motion passed unanimously by 


acclamation 11-0. 


O-8-2015 - Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-105(2)(a)3.b.; 78-105(2)(b)3.b.; 78-


105(2)(c)3.b.; 78-105(2)(d)3.b.; 78-105(2)(e)4.b.; 78-206(8)(z) and Appendix C. (Related to the 


keeping of pigeons)        FIRST READING 


 


Christianson read the ordinance and noted that there will be no action taken on this item. 


Swadley asked about the decrease in the amount of birds from fifty to twenty-five. Hohol noted 


that there was much research from other communities about their pigeon keeping ordinances and 


noted that the Planning Commission did not take any action on this ordinance and so it was 


referred to Council. Hohol noted that there were many people at the Public Hearing at the March 


9, 2015 Planning Commission meeting that did speak in opposition of the keeping of pigeons. 


The Planning Commission changed the number of birds to be kept from fifty to twenty-five. 


 


O-5-2015 - Proposed ordinance to amend section 78-706(5) related to exterior parking of 


recreational vehicles.         FIRST READING 


 


Christianson read the ordinance and noted that there will be no action taken on this item. 







 


 


 


O-4-2015 – Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-015; 78-205(4); 78-503; 78-504; and 78-


718 for fencing regulations and other clarifications.    FIRST READING 


 


Christianson read the ordinance and noted that there will be no action taken on this item. 


 


 


 


**R-50-2015-  The Meeting May Close Per State Statute 19.85(1)(e), deliberating or 


negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or 


conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons 


require a closed session, and then reopen for the regular course of business, RE 


Approving the RDA offer to purchase of the Mill-Fab parcels.  


Motion by Christianson to approve, R-50-2015, second by Jenson. The Mil-Fab property is in 


receivership and the City is looking to purchase this property to redevelop. Gary Becker from 


Vierbeicher addressed the Council and discussed the potential plans for the Mil Fab property 


site.  He talked about the economic impacts and restoration to that property. He also noted that 


the area is contaminated, but not bad enough to inhibit its use. He also noted that any 


contaminations could be resolved and cleaned up. There was a meeting with the DNR to apply 


for a grant for the Phase II clean up portion of the project, and that grant was awarded to the City 


for the amount of $30,000. Lawrence noted that this is an exciting possibility and that there is a 


lot of work ahead.  


Motion by Boersma, to go into Closed Session, second by Lawrence.  The Common Council 


went into closed session at 8:42PM.   


Motion by Lawrence to reconvene into Open Session, second by Majewski. The Common 


Council reconvened into Open Session at 9:52pm 


ADJOURNMENT 


 


Motion by Lawrence, to adjourn the meeting of the Common Council, second by Hohol. Motion 


passed unanimously by acclamation 11-0. The meeting of the Common Council adjourned at 


9:53pm.  








 
 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated position description for the 


Utilities Customer Service Technician position.   


 
Committee Action: 


 
Utilities Committee approved (5-0) 


 


Personnel Committee approved (4-0) 


  
 
File Number: 


 
R-53-2015 


 
Date Introduced:   April 14, 2015 


 
WHEREAS the Personnel Committee has received the request to update the position description for the 


Utilities Customer Service Technician.  


 


WHEREAS, your Personnel Committee met on April 6, 2015, to consider the request for updating the 


Utilities Customer Service Technician position description and recommend approval; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approves the updated position 


description for the Utilities Customer Service Technician position.   


 


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


 


 


 
 







i Verify and maintain property owner data for all new and existing accounts.


City of Stoughton
Position Description


Name: Department: Stoughton Utilities – Technical
Operations Accounting & Consumer
Services Division


Title: Utilities Customer Service Technician Pay Grade: FLSA:


Date: February, 20153 Reports To: Utilities Office & Information
SystemsTechnical Operations Supervisor


Purpose of Position


The purpose of this position is to perform customer service tasks for Stoughton Utilities including but not limited to:
maintenance of customer records, assisting phone and walk-in customers with their account, and handling a variety of
customer payments. In addition, this position will also perform general administrative tasks.


Essential Duties and Responsibilities


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive. Other duties may be
required and assigned.


i Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages.


i Provide information to customers regarding their accounts over the telephone, by email, and in-person.


i Assist customers with general inquiries, including high-bill complaints and questions about utility policies. Document all
inquiries and complaints.


i Prepares moving slips, work orders, customer inquiries, complaint forms, and service applications.


i Process payments received in-person at the front counter and issue receipts. Process and post payments received via mail
and night deposit box.


i Open, review, and post mailed payments to customer’s accounts.


i Prepares reports from account data as requested.


i Perform related administrative tasks such as filing, faxing, typing, and photocopying.







Customer Service Technician


.


. Assists billing and collections staff as needed.


. Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities


While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this position and
may also be performed by other unit members.


. Assists electric, wastewater and water divisions as required.


. Verify and maintain property owner data for all new and existing accounts.


. Assist with public education.


. Complyies with all Stoughton Municipal Utilities Safety Programs.


. Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread outages and other emergencies.


.


.


.
Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


. High school diploma, vocational training in customer service or related with 1-year utility experience, or any combination
of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.


.


.


. Working knowledge of Microsoft Windows and other software in a business environment, including Microsoft Word, Excel
and Outlook.


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication







Customer Service Technician


 Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring the exercise of some
judgment. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and sort information. Ability to assemble, copy, record and
transcribe data and information.


 Ability to explain, inform, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards,
as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others.


 Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders, customer billing information,
meter reading slips, billing statements, complaint forms, moving slips, computer billing journals, maps, computer
software operating manuals, PSC rules and regulations, municipal code, procedures, guidelines, and non-routine
correspondence.


 Ability to communicate orally with customers, department personnel, bank personnel, title company representatives,
computer consultants, law enforcement personnel, and the general public.


Mathematical Ability


 Ability to add and subtract, multiply and divide, and calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals.


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities.


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity in situations involving the evaluation of information against
measurable criteria.


Physical Requirements


 Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such as computer
workstation, calculator/adding machine, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper cutter, hand punch, telephone,
and two-way radio.


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as typing.


 Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving some combination of
stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling.


Environmental Adaptability


 Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors is minimal and poses little
to no risk of injury.







Customer Service Technician


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County
will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and current
employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer.


Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature


Date Date







City of Stoughton
Position Description


Name: Department: Utilities – Technical Operations Division


Title: Utilities Customer Service Technician Pay Grade: FLSA:


Date: February, 2015 Reports To: Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor


Purpose of Position


The purpose of this position is to perform customer service tasks for Stoughton Utilities including but not limited to:
maintenance of customer records, assisting phone and walk-in customers with their account, and handling a variety of
customer payments. In addition, this position will also perform general administrative tasks.


Essential Duties and Responsibilities
The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive. Other duties
may be required and assigned.


 Greet and direct visitors. Answer, direct, and route telephone calls and messages.


 Provide information to customers regarding their accounts over the telephone, by email, and in-person.


 Assist customers with general inquiries, including high-bill complaints and questions about utility policies.
Document all inquiries and complaints.


 Prepare work orders, customer inquiries, complaint forms, and service applications.


 Process payments received in-person at the front counter and issue receipts. Process and post payments received
via mail and night deposit box.


 Prepare reports from account data as requested.


 Perform related administrative tasks such as filing, faxing, typing, and photocopying.


 Verify and maintain property owner data for all new and existing accounts.


 Assist billing and collections staff as needed.


 Performs other Stoughton Utilities tasks as directed.


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this
position and may also be performed by other unit members.


 Assist electric, wastewater and water divisions as required.


 Assist with public education.


 Comply with all Stoughton Municipal Utilities Safety Programs.


 Provide emergency after-hours phone support as needed during widespread outages and other emergencies.


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


 High school diploma, vocational training in customer service or related with 1-year utility experience, or any
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.


 Working knowledge of Microsoft Windows and other software in a business environment, including Microsoft
Word, Excel and Outlook.







Customer Service Technician


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential
Job Functions Language Ability and Interpersonal
Communication


 Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data and information, following a prescribed plan requiring
the exercise of some judgment. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and sort
information. Ability to assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information.


 Ability to explain, inform, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies,
procedures and standards, as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to
simple requests from others.


 Ability to utilize a wide variety of advisory data and information, such as work orders, customer
billing information, meter reading slips, billing statements, complaint forms, billing journals,
maps, computer software operating manuals, PSC rules and regulations, municipal code,
procedures, guidelines, and non-routine correspondence.


 Ability to communicate orally with customers, department personnel, bank personnel,
title company representatives, law enforcement personnel, and the general public.


Mathematical Ability


 Ability to add and subtract, multiply and divide, and calculate percentages, fractions, and decimals.


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work
activities.


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity in situations involving the evaluation of
information against measurable criteria.


Physical Requirements


 Ability to operate office equipment and machinery requiring simple but continuous adjustments, such
as computer workstation, calculator/adding machine, cash register, postage meter, photocopier, paper
cutter, hand punch, telephone, and two-way radio.


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing semi-skilled movements such as
typing.


 Ability to exert very moderate physical effort in sedentary to light work, typically involving some
combination of stooping, kneeling, crouching and crawling, lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling.


Environmental Adaptability


 Ability to work under safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors is
minimal and poses little to no risk of injury.


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act, the County will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with
disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to discuss potential
accommodations with the employer.







Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature


Date Date





		4b-R-53-2015 Utilities CST Job Desc.pdf

		R-53-2015- Utilities Customer Service Technician Backup.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated position descriptions for the
City Clerk, Deputy Treasurer, and Finance Accounting Specialist.


Committee Action: Personnel Committee meets Monday, April 13, 2015


File Number: R-56-2015 Date Introduced: April 14,2015


WHEREAS the Personnel Committee has received the request to update the position descriptions for the
City Clerk, Deputy Treasurer and the Finance Accounting Specialist.


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on April 13, 2015, to consider the request for updating the
position descriptions and recommends approval; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approves the updated position
descriptions for the City Clerk, Deputy Treasurer and the Finance Accounting Specialist.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date







City of Stoughton City Clerk
Position Description


City of Stoughton
Position Description


Name: Department: Administrative Services
Position Title: City Clerk Pay Grade: FLSA: N
Date: April 2015 Reports To: Finance/Admin Services Dir


Purpose of Position


The purpose of this position is to perform the statutory duties of the Municipal Clerk; maintain public
records, coordinate elections and licenses, and maintain and record the official minutes of the City of
Stoughton.


Essential Duties and Responsibilities


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-
inclusive. Other duties may be required and assigned.


 Performs all statutory duties of the Municipal Clerk


 Maintains public records and ensures that records are properly preserved, filed, and disposed of;
maintains official records of licenses, permits, and bonds; coordinates publication of City legal
notices


 Prepares official City Council proceedings, minutes; prepares meeting agendas and other materials as
required; completes follow-up of City Council and Committee actions


 Coordinates and administers public hearing process for Council and Committee of the Whole and
other departments


 Coordinates and administers the processing of all required City licenses


 Records City documents with the County Register of Deeds


 Coordinates and administers City election process including voter registration, ballot preparation,
absentee voting; conducts Election Day process


 Coordinates the Open Book and Board of Review process. Prepares Statement of Assessment.


 Prepares annual budget for Clerk and Election


 Prepares ordinances and resolutions and coordinates the codification process


 Performs Garbage pickup and Recycling Coordinator duties, and maintains database


 Compiles accounts payable invoices, code for payment, and process and produce a check for
payment.







City of Stoughton City Clerk
Position Description


 Prepares City 1099’s to vendors and related reports for Federal and State government. Sends out and
tracks W-9 information


 Maintains all contract files


 Staff person to Council and Committee of the Whole, CA/CP and Public Safety.


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


 A two- or four-year college degree in business, public administration, or a related field; educational,
vocational, or technical training; three to five years municipal government or related experiences; or
any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities
is preferred.


 Certified Municipal Clerk and/or Wisconsin Municipal Clerks Association designation is preferred.


 Knowledge and ability to perform Statewide Voter Registration System functions.


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication


 Ability to decide the time, place, and sequence of operations within an organization, and the ability to
oversee operations.


 Ability to set goals and objectives for others and to perform periodic reviews.


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information using established criteria to determine
consequences and identify and select alternatives.


 Ability to manage and direct a group of workers, including the ability to provide counseling and
mediation; to persuade, convince, and train others; to advise and interpret the application of policies,
procedures, and standards to specific situations.


 Ability to utilize, prepare and/or interpret a variety of advisory and design data and information such
as meeting minutes/agendas, legal notices, public records, special assessments, election notices,
licenses, accounts, State Statutes, City ordinances, and tax rolls.


 Ability to provide excellent customer service internally and externally.


 Ability to lead a team effectively, and to participate as a team player.


 Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing with Mayor, office staff, other City
personnel, City Council members, vendor representatives, attorneys, and the general public.


Mathematical Ability


 Ability to calculate and understand percentages, fractions, decimals, interest, discount, and ratios.







City of Stoughton City Clerk
Position Description


 Ability to interpret descriptive statistical reports.


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability


 Ability to use functional reasoning in performing synthesis functions and influence functions such as
supervising, managing, leading, directing, and controlling.


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the
direction, control, and planning of an entire program or multiple programs.


Physical Requirements


 Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including computer terminal, typewriter, telephone,
fax machine, calculator/adding machine, and photocopier.


 Ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work typically involving lifting, carrying,
pushing, and pulling.


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing moderately coordinated movements
such as typing.


Environmental Adaptability


 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable office conditions where exposure to irate
individuals may cause discomfort and poses possible risk of injury.


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with
disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations
with the employer.


EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE


SUPERVISOR SIGNATURE DATE


Council Approved







City of Stoughton City Clerk
Position Description


City of Stoughton
Position Description


Name: Department: Administrative Services
Position Title: City Clerk Pay Grade: FLSA: N
Date: April 2015 Reports To: Finance/Admin Services Dir


Purpose of Position


The purpose of this position is to perform the statutory duties of the Municipal Clerk; maintain public
records, coordinate elections and licenses, and maintain and record the official minutes of the City of
Stoughton.


Essential Duties and Responsibilities


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-
inclusive. Other duties may be required and assigned.


 Performs all statutory duties of the Municipal Clerk


 Maintains public records and ensures that records are properly preserved, filed, and disposed of;
maintains official records of licenses, permits, and bonds; coordinates publication of City legal
notices


 Prepares official City Council proceedings, minutes; prepares meeting agendas and other materials as
required; completes follow-up of City Council and Committee actions


 Coordinates and administers public hearing process for Council and Committee of the Whole and
other departments


 Coordinates and administers the processing of all required City licenses


 Records City documents with the County Register of Deeds


 Coordinates and administers City election process including voter registration, ballot preparation,
absentee voting; conducts Election Day process


 Coordinates the Open Book and Board of Review process. Prepares Statement of Assessment.


 Prepares annual budget for Clerk and Election


 Prepares ordinances and resolutions and coordinates the codification process


 Performs Garbage pickup and Recycling Coordinator duties, and maintains database


 Compiles accounts payable invoices, code for payment, and process and produce a check for
payment.







City of Stoughton City Clerk
Position Description


 Prepares City 1099’s to vendors and related reports for Federal and State government. Sends out and
tracks W-9 information


 Maintains all contract files


 Staff person to Council and Committee of the Whole, CA/CP and Public Safety.


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


 A two- or four-year college degree in business, public administration, or a related field; educational,
vocational, or technical training; three to five years municipal government or related experiences; or
any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities
is preferred.


 Certified Municipal Clerk and/or Wisconsin Municipal Clerks Association designation is preferred.


 Knowledge and ability to perform Statewide Voter Registration System functions.


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication


 Ability to decide the time, place, and sequence of operations within an organization, and the ability to
oversee operations.


 Ability to set goals and objectives for others and to perform periodic reviews.


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information using established criteria to determine
consequences and identify and select alternatives.


 Ability to manage and direct a group of workers, including the ability to provide counseling and
mediation; to persuade, convince, and train others; to advise and interpret the application of policies,
procedures, and standards to specific situations.


 Ability to utilize, prepare and/or interpret a variety of advisory and design data and information such
as meeting minutes/agendas, legal notices, public records, special assessments, election notices,
licenses, accounts, State Statutes, City ordinances, and tax rolls.


 Ability to provide excellent customer service internally and externally.


 Ability to lead a team effectively, and to participate as a team player.


 Ability to communicate effectively orally and in writing with Mayor, office staff, other City
personnel, City Council members, vendor representatives, attorneys, and the general public.


Mathematical Ability


 Ability to calculate and understand percentages, fractions, decimals, interest, discount, and ratios.







City of Stoughton City Clerk
Position Description


 Ability to interpret descriptive statistical reports.


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability


 Ability to use functional reasoning in performing synthesis functions and influence functions such as
supervising, managing, leading, directing, and controlling.


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the
direction, control, and planning of an entire program or multiple programs.


Physical Requirements


 Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including computer terminal, typewriter, telephone,
fax machine, calculator/adding machine, and photocopier.


 Ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work typically involving lifting, carrying,
pushing, and pulling.


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet, and limbs in performing moderately coordinated movements
such as typing.


Environmental Adaptability


 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable office conditions where exposure to irate
individuals may cause discomfort and poses possible risk of injury.


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act, the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with
disabilities and encourages both prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations
with the employer.


EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE


SUPERVISOR SIGNATURE DATE


Council Approved







City of Stoughton
Position Description


Name: Department: Finance


Position Title: Deputy Treasurer Pay Grade: FLSA: N


Date: April 2015 Reports To: Finance Director/
Administrative Services Dir.


Purpose of Position


The purpose of this position, appointed under State Statute 63.09(a)(F) and according to City hiring policies, is to assist
the Finance Director/Treasurer by performing accounting tasks and providing administrative support to the Finance
Director/Treasurer, performs Treasurer statutory duties in the absence of the Finance Director/Treasurer or as directed by
the Finance Director/Treasurer.


Essential Duties and Responsibilities


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive. Other
duties may be required and assigned.


 Assists the Finance Director as support staff as directed. Attends City Council, committee and staff meetings in the
absence of the Finance Director.


 Provides staff clerical services to the Finance Committee


 Receives all monies receipted to the City and verifies amounts. Prepares daily bank deposits, reconciles cash drawer
and receipts in-coming funds. Reviews and verifies and/or assigns account numbers to in-coming funds


 Maintains manual spreadsheets as requested by Finance Director.


 Reconciles monthly bank statements for the City. Transfer monies between funds to insure adequate monthly
balances. Monitor general fund checking account for appropriate deposits and withdrawals.


 Assists in budget preparation, research and reporting to departments regarding accounting information. Creates
budget worksheets. Prepares personnel budget spreadsheet.


 Monitors long term debt service payment spreadsheets for principal and interest amounts. Coordinates timely debt
service wire payments.


 Issues quarterly payment reminders for room tax and monitors collections.


 Creates and maintains capital project spreadsheets including monthly balancing of all expenditures.


 Maintains fixed assets spreadsheets.


 Prepares tax bill mailing. Collects tax payments, refunds overpayments of taxes, balances tax collections, and
prepares tax collection reports.


 Answers inquiries from the public and others regarding property assessments, real estate and personal property tax
information and other City treasury information.


 Prepares delinquent personal property tax reports. Maintains delinquency information until collection. Reviews







City of Stoughton Deputy Treasurer
Position Description


delinquency information and reports to Finance Director. Initiates and prepares Personal Property chargeback’s to
other taxing jurisdictions and collects payments for same.


 Compiles personal property deletion information. Assists assessor with personal property deletion and supporting
documentation. Relays deletion information to Finance Director.


 Reviews payroll register for accuracy. Maintains and updates payroll records. Creates and edits direct deposit
information for current and new employees.


 Reviews and assists with entering all new employee information into payroll system. Reviews withholding,
retirement, payroll deductions and benefits for accuracy.


 Reconcile all wage and benefit accounts in the general ledger.


 Calculates vacation accrual schedules, imputed income and longevity payments for all eligible City employees.
Calculates payouts for employee terminations.


 Provides backup and assistance for payroll processing


 Verify direct deposit information. Initiate batch upload to bank. Maintain Direct Deposit files in database.


 Prepares monthly financial reports for Department Heads. Prepares monthly financial reports for multiple volunteer
organizations. Prepares other reports as requested.


 Provides Taxi Service with grant application materials. Receives completed spreadsheet and compiles necessary
information for submission of the taxi grant application.


 Provides backup to the Department as needed and all other duties as assigned.


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


High school diploma or equivalent, vocational/technical training in secretarial and accounting skills, three to five years
secretarial/accounting experience, experience with website management, Microsoft office, software applications or any
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference
to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, assemble, copy and record and
transcribe data and information. Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data.


 Ability to persuade, convince, and/or train others, including the ability to act in a lead worker capacity. Ability to
advise and interpret how to apply policies, procedures and standards to specific situations.


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as financial statements, tax bills, bank statements, tax
payment records, annual budget, budget reports, job applications, daily receipts, balance sheets, journal entries,
computer software operating manuals, tax collection manual, State statutes, procedures, guidelines and non-routine
correspondence.


 Ability to communicate orally and in writing with Mayor, Finance Director/Treasurer, Assessors, tax payers, City







City of Stoughton Deputy Treasurer
Position Description


Council and City staff.


Mathematical Ability


 Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values and spatial relationships. Ability
to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports.


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities.


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of
information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria, as opposed to criteria which are clearly measurable.


Physical Requirements


 Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including computer terminal, typewriter, telephone, fax machine,
calculator/adding machine and photocopier.


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as rapid keyboard use.


 Ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work, but which may involve some lifting, carrying, pushing
and pulling. Ability to sustain prolonged visual concentration.


Environmental Adaptability


 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors such as
repetitive computer keyboard use, irate individuals and intimidation may cause discomfort and poses a limited risk of
injury.


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the
City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective
and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer.


____________________________ _______________________________
Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature


____________________________ _______________________________
Date Date


Personnel approved 9-24-01 January 8, 2008 March 10, 2009







City of Stoughton
Position Description


Name: Department: Finance


Position Title: Deputy Treasurer Pay Grade: FLSA: N


Date: April 2015 Reports To: Finance Director/
Administrative Services Dir.


Purpose of Position


The purpose of this position, appointed under State Statute 63.09(a)(F) and according to City hiring policies, is to assist
the Finance Director/Treasurer by performing accounting tasks and providing administrative support to the Finance
Director/Treasurer, performs Treasurer statutory duties in the absence of the Finance Director/Treasurer or as directed by
the Finance Director/Treasurer.


Essential Duties and Responsibilities


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive. Other
duties may be required and assigned.


 Assists the Finance Director as support staff as directed. Attends City Council, committee and staff meetings in the
absence of the Finance Director.


 Provides staff clerical services to the Finance Committee


 Receives all monies receipted to the City and verifies amounts. Prepares daily bank deposits, reconciles cash drawer
and receipts in-coming funds. Reviews and verifies and/or assigns account numbers to in-coming funds


 Maintains manual spreadsheets as requested by Finance Director.


 Reconciles monthly bank statements for the City. Transfer monies between funds to insure adequate monthly
balances. Monitor general fund checking account for appropriate deposits and withdrawals.


 Assists in budget preparation, research and reporting to departments regarding accounting information. Creates
budget worksheets. Prepares personnel budget spreadsheet.


 Monitors long term debt service payment spreadsheets for principal and interest amounts. Coordinates timely debt
service wire payments.


 Issues quarterly payment reminders for room tax and monitors collections.


 Creates and maintains capital project spreadsheets including monthly balancing of all expenditures.


 Maintains fixed assets spreadsheets.


 Prepares tax bill mailing. Collects tax payments, refunds overpayments of taxes, balances tax collections, and
prepares tax collection reports.


 Answers inquiries from the public and others regarding property assessments, real estate and personal property tax
information and other City treasury information.


 Prepares delinquent personal property tax reports. Maintains delinquency information until collection. Reviews







City of Stoughton Deputy Treasurer
Position Description


delinquency information and reports to Finance Director. Initiates and prepares Personal Property chargeback’s to
other taxing jurisdictions and collects payments for same.


 Compiles personal property deletion information. Assists assessor with personal property deletion and supporting
documentation. Relays deletion information to Finance Director.


 Reviews payroll register for accuracy. Maintains and updates payroll records. Creates and edits direct deposit
information for current and new employees.


 Reviews and assists with entering all new employee information into payroll system. Reviews withholding,
retirement, payroll deductions and benefits for accuracy.


 Reconcile all wage and benefit accounts in the general ledger.


 Calculates vacation accrual schedules, imputed income and longevity payments for all eligible City employees.
Calculates payouts for employee terminations.


 Provides backup and assistance for payroll processing


 Verify direct deposit information. Initiate batch upload to bank. Maintain Direct Deposit files in database.


 Prepares monthly financial reports for Department Heads. Prepares monthly financial reports for multiple volunteer
organizations. Prepares other reports as requested.


 Prepares forms for bid openings. Attends bid openings and records all information.


 Prepares periodic reporting of dog licenses for County. Balances license sales and prepares adjusting journal entries.


 Provides Taxi Service with grant application materials. Receives completed spreadsheet and compiles necessary
information for submission of the taxi grant application.


 Provides backup to the Department as needed and all other duties as assigned.


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


High school diploma or equivalent, vocational/technical training in secretarial and accounting skills, three to five years
secretarial/accounting experience, experience with website management, Microsoft office, software applications or any
combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with reference
to established criteria/standards. Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure, assemble, copy and record and
transcribe data and information. Ability to classify, compute and tabulate data.


 Ability to persuade, convince, and/or train others, including the ability to act in a lead worker capacity. Ability to
advise and interpret how to apply policies, procedures and standards to specific situations.


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as financial statements, tax bills, bank statements, tax
payment records, annual budget, budget reports, job applications, daily receipts, balance sheets, journal entries,







City of Stoughton Deputy Treasurer
Position Description


computer software operating manuals, tax collection manual, State statutes, procedures, guidelines and non-routine
correspondence.


 Ability to communicate orally and in writing with Mayor, Finance Director/Treasurer, Assessors, tax payers, City
Council and City staff.


Mathematical Ability


 Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values and spatial relationships. Ability
to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports.


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities.


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of
information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria, as opposed to criteria which are clearly measurable.


Physical Requirements


 Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including computer terminal, typewriter, telephone, fax machine,
calculator/adding machine and photocopier.


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as rapid keyboard use.


 Ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work, but which may involve some lifting, carrying, pushing
and pulling. Ability to sustain prolonged visual concentration.


Environmental Adaptability


 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors such as
repetitive computer keyboard use, irate individuals and intimidation may cause discomfort and poses a limited risk of
injury.


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the
City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective
and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer.


____________________________ _______________________________
Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature


____________________________ _______________________________
Date Date


Personnel approved 9-24-01 January 8, 2008 March 10, 2009







City of Stoughton
Position Description


Name: Department: Finance


Position Title: Finance Accounting Specialist Pay Grade: FLSA: N


Date: April 2015 Reports To: Finance/Admin Services Director


Purpose of Position


The purpose of this position is to process accounts payable, accounts receivable, journal entries, special assessments for
public work projects and other accounting functions and to perform customer service and assigned clerical tasks for the
Administrative Services Department.


Essential Duties and Responsibilities


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive. Other
duties may be required and assigned.


 Verify Accounts Payable information. Initiate Positive Pay batch upload to bank.


 Reviews expense reports for budget discrepancies. Prepares over-budget reports and distributes to Department Heads.


 Reviews monthly general ledger balances and prepares adjusting journal entries.


 Point of contact for department heads regarding financial statements, budgets and expense reconciliation.


 Process and reconcile weekly health, dental and prescription drug insurance claim billings, including Utilities.
Reconcile to general ledger.


 Answers inquiries from other departments regarding invoices, statements and payments made or pending; consults
with vendors regarding problems and questions.


 Maintain accurate vendor information in the accounts payable system.


 Determines which vendors require IRS reporting through a 1099.


 Administer the purchase card program.


 Administer Fuel card program. Liaison between city employee fuel card holder and company.


 Process delinquent utilities for tax roll.


 Prepares correspondence and preliminary and final billing statements for special assessments. Maintains special
assessment program, i.e. new assessments, payments, etc. Reconcile general ledger to special assessment program.


 Prepares and reconciles Special and delinquent charges and assessments for Tax Roll.


 Provides staff clerical services to the RDA Committee.


 Enters financial data as requested by Finance Director and auditors into computer including monthly entries and end-







City of Stoughton Finance Accounting Specialist
Position Description


of –year auditor’s adjusting journal entries.


 Assist Finance Director with monthly account reconciliation, processing of journal entries, and annual audit
preparation.


 Processes and reconciles accounts receivable.


 Coordinates CDBG home improvement loan program.


 Types reports, letters, forms and correspondence from written and oral instruction; prepares reports from account data
as requested; prepares and submits monthly Sales Tax reports. Performs other clerical tasks as directed by the
Finance Director.


 Reviews and verifies and/or assigns account numbers to in-coming funds.


 Inputs cash receipts and runs balancing reports.


 Provides back-up for preparing daily bank deposits.


 Provides back-up for Accounts Payable processing.


 Collects and process tax payments and runs balancing reports.


 Performs customer service to visitors as required. Provides information to questions or refers to appropriate person or
agency. Directs visitors.


 Answers inquiries from the public and others regarding property assessments, tax information and other City treasury
information.


 Provides backup to Administrative Services Department as needed and all other duties as assigned.


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


 High school diploma or equivalent with vocational/technical training in accounting with two years of
accounting/bookkeeping experience or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent
knowledge, skills, and abilities. Position requires a Wisconsin Notary Public.


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication


 Requires the ability to perform basic level of data analysis including the ability to review, classify, categorize,
prioritize and/or reference data, statutes and/or guidelines and/or group, rank, investigate and diagnose. Requires
discretion in determining and referencing such to established standards to recognize interactive effects and
relationships.


 Requires the ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures and
standards. Ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others.


 Requires the ability to utilize a variety of reference, descriptive and/or advisory data and information such as invoices
and purchase orders, financial statements and reports, budget comparison reports, technical operating manuals,
procedures, guidelines and routine correspondence.







City of Stoughton Finance Accounting Specialist
Position Description


 Ability to communicate effectively with supervisor, other departments, vendors, Mayor and Finance Director, co-
workers and the public.


Mathematical Ability


 Requires the ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication and division; and to calculate percentages and
decimals.


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability


 Requires the ability to apply principles of rational systems. Ability to interpret instructions furnished in written, oral,
diagrammatic or schedule form. Ability to exercise independent judgement to adopt or modify methods and standards
to meet variations in assigned objective. Requires the ability to exercise the judgement, decisiveness and creativity
required in situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable or verifiable criteria.


Physical Requirements


 Requires the ability to operate, maneuver and/or provide simple but continuous adjustment on equipment, machinery
and tools such as a computer and other office machines, and/or materials used in performing essential function.


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as rapid keyboard use.


 Tasks involve ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work, but which may involve some lifting,
carrying, pushing and pulling of objects weighing five to ten pounds.


 Requires the ability to recognize and identify similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, shapes and
sounds associated with job-related objects, materials and tasks.


Environmental Adaptability


 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors may cause
discomfort and poses a limited risk of injury.


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the
City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective
and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer.


____________________________ _______________________________
Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature


____________________________ _______________________________
Date Date


Council Approved 4-13-04 12-13-05 March 10, 2009







City of Stoughton
Position Description


Name: Department: Finance


Position Title: Finance Accounting Specialist Pay Grade: FLSA: N


Date: April 2015 Reports To: Finance/Admin Services Director


Purpose of Position


The purpose of this position is to process accounts payable, accounts receivable, journal entries, special assessments for
public work projects and other accounting functions and to perform customer service and assigned clerical tasks for the
Administrative Services Department.


Essential Duties and Responsibilities


The following duties are normal for this position. These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive. Other
duties may be required and assigned.


 Compiles accounts payable invoices, code for payment, and process and produce a check for payment.


 Verify Accounts Payable information. Initiate Positive Pay batch upload to bank.


 Reviews expense reports for budget discrepancies. Prepares over-budget reports and distributes to Department Heads.


 Reviews monthly general ledger balances and prepares adjusting journal entries.


 Point of contact for department heads regarding financial statements, budgets and expense reconciliation.


 Process and reconcile weekly health, dental and prescription drug insurance claim billings, including Utilities.
Reconcile to general ledger.


 Answers inquiries from other departments regarding invoices, statements and payments made or pending; consults
with vendors regarding problems and questions.


 Maintain accurate vendor information in the accounts payable system.


 Determines which vendors require IRS reporting through a 1099.


 Prepares City 1099’s to vendors and related reports for Federal and State government. Sends out and tracks W-9
information.


 Administer the purchase card program.


 Administer Fuel card program. Liaison between city employee fuel card holder and company.


 Process delinquent utilities for tax roll.


 Prepares correspondence and preliminary and final billing statements for special assessments. Maintains special
assessment program, i.e. new assessments, payments, etc. Reconcile general ledger to special assessment program.







City of Stoughton Finance Accounting Specialist
Position Description


 Prepares and reconciles Special and delinquent charges and assessments for Tax Roll.


 Provides staff clerical services to the RDA Committee.


 Enters financial data as requested by Finance Director and auditors into computer including monthly entries and end-
of –year auditor’s adjusting journal entries.


 Assist Finance Director with monthly account reconciliation, processing of journal entries, and annual audit
preparation.


 Processes and reconciles accounts receivable.


 Coordinates CDBG home improvement loan program.


 Types reports, letters, forms and correspondence from written and oral instruction; prepares reports from account data
as requested; prepares and submits monthly Sales Tax reports. Performs other clerical tasks as directed by the
Finance Director.


 Reviews and verifies and/or assigns account numbers to in-coming funds.


 Inputs cash receipts and runs balancing reports.


 Provides back-up for preparing daily bank deposits.


 Provides back-up for Accounts Payable processing.


 Collects and process tax payments and runs balancing reports.


 Performs customer service to visitors as required. Provides information to questions or refers to appropriate person or
agency. Directs visitors.


 Answers inquiries from the public and others regarding property assessments, tax information and other City treasury
information.


 Provides backup to Administrative Services Department as needed.


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


 High school diploma or equivalent with vocational/technical training in accounting with two years of
accounting/bookkeeping experience or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent
knowledge, skills, and abilities. Position requires a Wisconsin Notary Public.


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication


 Requires the ability to perform basic level of data analysis including the ability to review, classify, categorize,
prioritize and/or reference data, statutes and/or guidelines and/or group, rank, investigate and diagnose. Requires
discretion in determining and referencing such to established standards to recognize interactive effects and
relationships.







City of Stoughton Finance Accounting Specialist
Position Description


 Requires the ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures and
standards. Ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others.


 Requires the ability to utilize a variety of reference, descriptive and/or advisory data and information such as invoices
and purchase orders, financial statements and reports, budget comparison reports, technical operating manuals,
procedures, guidelines and routine correspondence.


 Ability to communicate effectively with supervisor, other departments, vendors, Mayor and Finance Director, co-
workers and the public.


Mathematical Ability


 Requires the ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication and division; and to calculate percentages and
decimals.


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability


 Requires the ability to apply principles of rational systems. Ability to interpret instructions furnished in written, oral,
diagrammatic or schedule form. Ability to exercise independent judgement to adopt or modify methods and standards
to meet variations in assigned objective. Requires the ability to exercise the judgement, decisiveness and creativity
required in situations involving the evaluation of information against measurable or verifiable criteria.


Physical Requirements


 Requires the ability to operate, maneuver and/or provide simple but continuous adjustment on equipment, machinery
and tools such as a computer and other office machines, and/or materials used in performing essential function.


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as rapid keyboard use.


 Tasks involve ability to exert light physical effort in sedentary to light work, but which may involve some lifting,
carrying, pushing and pulling of objects weighing five to ten pounds.


 Requires the ability to recognize and identify similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, shapes and
sounds associated with job-related objects, materials and tasks.


Environmental Adaptability


 Ability to work under generally safe and comfortable conditions where exposure to environmental factors may cause
discomfort and poses a limited risk of injury.


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer. In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the
City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective
and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer.


____________________________ _______________________________
Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature


____________________________ _______________________________
Date Date







City of Stoughton Finance Accounting Specialist
Position Description


Council Approved 4-13-04 12-13-05 March 10, 2009





		4c-R-56-2015 Administration Job Descriptions Updates.pdf

		Clerk-City Clerk-REVISED April 2015 FINAL.pdf

		Clerk-City Clerk-REVISED April 2015 red lined.pdf

		Deputy Treasurer- REVISED  April 2015 FINAL.pdf

		Deputy Treasurer- REVISED  April 2015 REDLINED.pdf

		Finance Accounting Specialist -REVISED  April 2015 FINAL.pdf

		Finance Accounting Specialist -April 2015 REDLINED.pdf






S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O- 4 -15 Zoning Amendment 15.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


An ordinance amending sections 78-015; 78-205(4); 78-503; 78-504; and 78-718 of the City of
Stoughton Municipal Zoning Ordinance


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6- 0 with the Mayor voting.


Fiscal Impact: N/A


File Number: O - 4 - 2015 Date
Introduced:


March 24, 2015 First Reading


April 14, 2015 Second Reading


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows:


1. Sec. 78-015 Definitions.


Addition: Any new construction which increases the outside dimensions of a building. Any


walled and roofed expansion to the perimeter and/or height of a building in which the addition is


connected by a common load-bearing wall. Any walled and roofed addition which is connected


by a fire wall or is separated by independent perimeter load bearing walls is new construction.


2. Sec. 78-205 (4) Regulations applicable to all land uses.


(4) Natural resources and green space regulations and requirements: All land use and/or


development of land shall comply with all the regulations and requirements of this chapter,


pertaining to the protection of sensitive natural resources and required green space areas. Such


regulations and requirements address issues such as absolute protection, partial protection, and


mitigation migration; which are directly related to, and a critical component of, the protection of


natural resources and the protection of the health, safety, and general welfare of the residents of


the City of Stoughton and its environs.


3. Sec. 78-503. Natural resource protection overlay zoning districts.


(2)(f) Shoreland Overlay District


(3) For specific Natural Resource Protection Overlay District regulations, see article V


4. Sec. 78-504. Map of natural resource protection overlay districts.


Natural resource protection overlay zoning districts established by this chapter are shown on the


official zoning map of the City of Stoughton, which together with all the explanatory material


hereon, is hereby made part of this chapter. For specific natural resource protection overlay


district designation criteria, see article V.


5. Sec. 78-718. Fencing standards.
1) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to regulate the materials, location, height, and


maintenance of fencing, landscaping walls and decorative posts in order to prevent the
creation of nuisances and to promote the general welfare of the public.







(2) Applicability. The requirements of this section apply to all fencing, landscape walls and


decorative posts used similar to fencing equal to, or exceeding, 30 inches in height, for all


land uses and activities.


(3) Standards.


(a) Height of fencing regulated.


1. On corner lots in all zoning districts, no fence, wall, hedge, planting or
structure shall be erected, placed, planted or allowed to grow in such a
manner as to obstruct vision between a height of two and one-half feet and
ten feet above grade, in the area bounded by the street lines of such corner
lots and a line joining the points along such street lines, ten feet from the
point of intersection. Additionally, no fence, wall, planting, or structure
shall be erected, placed, planted or allowed to grow in such a manner to
obstruct vision between a height of two and one-half feet above grade and
ten feet above grade on both sides of a driveway where connected to a
public sidewalk, ten feet from the points of intersection.


2. A fence, wall, tree, hedge or shrubbery may be erected, placed, maintained
or grown along a lot line on residentially zoned property or adjacent
thereto; the height of such fences or walls shall not exceed six feet above
the ground level. Where such lot line is adjacent to property zoned NB,
PB, CB, PI, GI, or HI; there shall be a ten-foot limit on the height of
fencing, along such lot line. For this subsection: On residential corner lots,
the street front setback will be determined by the owners' choice. Any
fence in the front setback area shall not exceed four feet in height.


3. Fences, walls, trees, hedges or shrubbery erected, placed, maintained or
grown along a lot line on any business or industrially zoned property,
adjacent to residentially zoned property, shall be to a height not less than
six feet nor more than ten feet in height, except there is no maximum
height for trees, hedges or shrubbery. No barbed wire or electrical fences
may be erected or maintained, except that barbed tops are permitted in the
GI and HI districts on top of fences having a minimum height of eight feet.


(b) Setback for fencing.


1. Fences in or adjacent to a residential property shall have minimum three
feet side and rear yard setbacks unless the adjacent owner consents in
writing to the entrance upon such owner's land for the purpose of
maintaining such fence or such fence is maintenance free, in which case
the minimum setback shall be six inches. A lot survey may be required if
property lines cannot be determined.


2. Living fences or hedges shall be planted so that they may be trimmed
without entry on abutting lands. Species shall determine distance but in no
case shall any shrub or plant be planted less than three feet from the center
to the lot line.


(c) Wood fences. Wood fences on the perimeter of a lot shall be installed with the
finish side of the fence slats facing toward the neighboring property.


(d) Fence maintenance. All fences, including their painted surfaces, shall be
maintained and kept safe and in a state of good repair, including painted
surfaces.







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O- 4 -15 Zoning Amendment 15.doc


(e) Temporary fences. Fences erected for the protection of plantings or to warn of
construction hazards or for similar purposes, shall be clearly visible or marked
with colored streamers or other such warning devices at four-foot intervals.
Such fences shall comply with the setback requirements set forth in this
section. The issuance of a permit shall not be necessary for temporary fences as
described in this subsection. Snow fences shall be removed by April 1.


(f) Fencing for dumpsters. Three or more unit apartment buildings shall provide a
six-foot high fence with four sides, accessible by a gate, for dumpsters.


(g) Orientation. Any and all fences, landscape walls, or decorative posts shall be
erected so as to locate visible supports and other structural components toward
the subject property.


(h) Maintenance. Any and all fences, landscape walls, or decorative posts shall be
maintained in a structurally sound and attractive manner.


(i) Easements. No fence shall be located within any easement designed to convey
stormwater drainage, sanitary sewer, electric distribution and water
distribution.


6. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication.


Dates


Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
City Clerk, Lana Kropf







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Zoning Ord. Amend fencing etc 15.doc


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, March 9, 2015
at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, at the Public Safety Building,
Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider an amendment to the
City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances. The proposed ordinance amendment is to sections
78-015; 78-205(4); 78-503; 78-504; and 78-718 of the City of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance, Dane
County, Wisconsin.


The amendment is proposed amend fencing requirements and to clarify other sections of the zoning
codes. The proposed amendments may be viewed at the Department of Planning & Development, City
Hall, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589.


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421.


Michael Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published February 19, 2015 and February 26, 2015 Hub







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
3/9/15
Page 5 of 6


S:\City Clerk\Clerks Office\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 3-9-15.doc


13. O-5-15 - Proposed ordinance to amend section 78-706(5) related to exterior parking of
recreational vehicles.
Scheel explained the history of this proposed ordinance amendment.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Motion by Hohol to recommend the Common Council approve O-5-15 as presented, 2nd by
Truehl. Motion carried 6-0.


14. O-4-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-015; 78-205(4); 78-503; 78-504; and
78-718 regarding fencing regulations and other clarifications.
Scheel explained the proposed ordinance amendment.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Motion by Hanna to recommend the Common Council approve O-4-15 as presented, 2nd by
Krcma.


Hohol questioned the requirement for streamers on garden fencing. Hanna questioned snow
fence removal by April 1st.


Scheel stated these requirements have not been an issue in the past.


Motion carried 6-0.


15. O-9-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend section 78-206(4)(j) to clarify commercial horse
stables are not allowed within the City of Stoughton.
Scheel explained the proposed zoning ordinance amendments.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.



mstacey

Highlight







S:\Planning\RJS\Dept._Memos\CLERK - Council- 032415.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: March 10, 2015


To: Lana Kropf
City Clerk


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Subject: Items for the March 24, 2015 Common Council Meeting.


Council Agenda:


New Business


1. R-26-15 – Elizabeth Cwik, BWZ Architects requests a conditional use permit for an
Indoor Commercial Entertainment Use (Wedding Reception Venue) at the Tobacco
Warehouse, 515 E. Main Street.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this request and
recommend Council approve R-26-15 contingent on the staff review letter dated February 24,
2015. Indoor commercial entertainment uses are allowed as a conditional use within the
Heavy Industrial district along Main Street. The existing parking layout is sufficient for the
proposed use but any additional use will require a review of the parking. A compliant
photometric plan has been received. Since the building is a Local Landmark, a certificate of
appropriateness (COA) has been requested from the Landmark Commission for the proposed
lighting to be added to the exterior of the building. The Landmarks Commission will review
the COA request on March 12, 2015. Staff has no suggestions to add conditions to this use at
this time. The resolution, Planning minutes, staff review letter and related materials are
provided. Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


2. R-27-15 – Stoughton Hospital requests a conditional use permit approval for an Indoor
Institutional use (Building Addition of two bay ambulance garage and renovations) at
900 Ridge Street.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this request and
recommend Council approve R-27-15 contingent on the staff review letter dated February 25,
2015. Hospitals are allowed as a conditional use within the Institutional district. The
proposed addition will add roughly 14,500 square feet to the building while renovating
approximately 18,000 square feet of existing building. The addition and renovations are
needed to increase the quality of treatment space to meet current best practices for patient







S:\Planning\RJS\Dept._Memos\CLERK - Council- 032415.doc


care. Staff has no suggestions to add conditions to this use at this time. The resolution, staff
review letter, planning minutes and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


3. R-37-15 - Preston Baker requests an Extra-Territorial Jurisdictional (ETJ) land division
(CSM) approval to allow the creation of an additional residential building lot at 1787
Oakview Drive and 2739 Yahara Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission reviewed this request and recommend Council
approve R-37-15 as presented. Land divisions within 1.5 miles of the City fall within the
City’s extra-territorial jurisdictional limits and are required to be approved by the Common
Council according to the City’s land division ordinance. This request is to reconfigure 2
parcels to create an additional buildable residential lot (3 lots total). The resolution, Planning
minutes, CSM and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


4. R-36-15 – Warren Brewster requests a certified survey map (CSM) approval to
reconfigure 5 parcels into 4 parcels (creating 3 buildable residential lots) at 101 W.
Chicago Street.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission reviewed this request and recommend Council
approve R-36-15 contingent on the CSM being modified to meet the required 6-foot side lot
line setback from the porch steps between lots 2 and 3. The CSM request is proposed to
reconfigure 5 existing parcels to create 3 buildable residential lots and 1 lot for the existing
home. The resolution, updated CSM and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


5. R-25-15 Bob Stoehr representing Milestone Senior Living requests certified survey map
(CSM) approval to combine the property at 2208 and 2300 Lincoln Avenue (lots 60 and
61, Second Stiklestad High Field Addition to Norse View Heights).
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission reviewed this request and recommend Council
approve R-25-15 as presented. The CSM is proposed to combine the parcels to allow the
construction of a senior living complex. The applicant is working with Stoughton Utilities to
vacate the easement between the 2 lots. The CSM, Planning minutes and resolution are
provided. Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


6. O-8-15 - Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-105(2)(a)3.b.; 78-105(2)(b)3.b.; 78-
105(2)(c)3.b.; 78-105(2)(d)3.b.; 78-105(2)(e)4.b.; 78-206(8)(z) and Appendix C. (Related
to the keeping of pigeons)
On January 12, 2015, the Planning Commission made a recommendation to the Common
Council to deny the request by Rosalie Bjelde to amend the zoning code to allow the keeping
of pigeons.


On January 27, 2015 the Common Council voted to send this request back to the Planning
Commission to provide a recommendation on an amendment to allow pigeons.


On February 12, 2015 the Planning Commission directed staff to amend the draft ordinance
for the keeping of pigeons and bring that draft back for a public hearing.







S:\Planning\RJS\Dept._Memos\CLERK - Council- 032415.doc


On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this zoning
amendment request and recommend Council deny O-8-15 as presented. The draft ordinance,
Planning minutes and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council denial 6–0.


7. O-5-15 - Proposed ordinance to amend section 78-706(5) related to exterior parking of
recreational vehicles.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this request and
recommend Council approve O-5-15 as presented. This amendment is proposed due to
several complaints about the restrictions related to the parking of recreational vehicles. The
ordinance, Planning minutes and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


8. O-4-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-015; 78-205(4); 78-503; 78-504; and
78-718 for fencing regulations and other clarifications.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this request and
recommend Council approve O-4-15 as presented. The ordinance and Planning minutes are
provided.


Zoning amendment explanations are as follows:


Sec. 78-015: Clarification for the definition of “Addition” to be consistent with the State
Code.


Sec. 78-205(4): Correcting the word migration with the word mitigation.


Sec. 78-503: Removing the statement to “see article V” since the statement is within article
V.


Sec. 78-504: Removing the statement to “see article V” since the statement is within article
V.


Sec. 78-718: Clarifying that all fencing must meet all zoning requirements no matter the
height and landscape walls are not regulated.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.



mstacey

Highlight








S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O- 8 -15 Pigeons 15.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTIONS 78-105(2)(a)3.b.; 78-105(2)(b)3.b.; 78-105(2)(c)3.b.;
78-105(2)(d)3.b.; 78-105(2)(e)4.b.; 78-206(8)(z) and Appendix C


OF THE STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL CODECommittee Action: Planning Commission recommend Council denial 6 - 0 with the Mayor voting.


Fiscal Impact: N/A


File Number: O - 8 - 2015 Date
Introduced:


March 24, 2015 First Reading


April 14, 2015 Second Reading


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows:


1. Sections 78-105(2)(a)3.b.; 78-105(2)(b)3.b.; 78-105(2)(c)3.b.; 78-105(2)(d)3.b.; 78-
105(2)(e)4.b.; 78-105(2)(f)3.b.; 78-206(8)(z) and Appendix C of the Stoughton Municipal
Zoning Code are hereby amended to add the following:


Sec. 78-105(2)(a)3.b. Exurban Residential (ER-1) District.


b. Accessory land uses permitted as conditional use:


Keeping of pigeons on a lot with a single-family dwelling (per section 78-206(8)(z)).


Sec. 78-105(2)(b)3.b. Single-family Residential-3 (SR-3) District.


b. Accessory land uses permitted as conditional use:


Keeping of pigeons on a lot with a single-family dwelling (per section 78-206(8)(z)).


Sec. 78-105(2)(c)3.b. Single-family Residential-4 (SR-4) District.


b. Accessory land uses permitted as conditional use:


Keeping of pigeons on a lot with a single-family dwelling (per section 78-206(8)(z)).


Sec. 78-105(2)(d)3.b. Single-family Residential-5 (SR-5) District.


b. Accessory land uses permitted as conditional use:


Keeping of pigeons on a lot with a single-family dwelling (per section 78-206(8)(z)).


Sec. 78-105(2)(e)4.b. Single-family Residential-6 (SR-6) District.


b. Accessory land uses permitted as conditional use:


Keeping of pigeons on a lot with a single-family dwelling (per section 78-206(8)(z)).







Sec. 78-105(2)(f)3.b. Two-family Residential-6 (TR-6) District.


b. Accessory land uses permitted as conditional use:


Keeping of pigeons on a lot with a duplex or twin home dwelling (per section 78-206(8)(z)).


Sec. 78-206(8)(z) Accessory Land Uses


(z) Keeping of pigeons


Description: A maximum of 25 pigeons are allowed by right on residentially zoned property with
a single family, duplex or twin home residential unit, including the following requirements:


1. Regulations:


a. No pigeon loft shall be closer than 25 feet to any residential home on an adjacent lot and
the loft area shall only be located within the rear yard and/or side yard.


b. Pigeon lofts must conform to the accessory structure requirements of the specific zoning
district where located.


c. Any electrical work requires an electrical permit through the Department of Planning and
Development.


d. The Department of Planning and Development or the Police Department may enter and
inspect any property or loft.


e. There shall be at least 1 square foot of floor space in a loft for each pigeon six months or
older.


f. Feed for pigeons shall be stored in a securely fastened container.


g. Pigeons shall be fed within the loft.


h. Pigeons shall be banded and registered with one of the national pigeon
associations/registries.


i. No pigeon shall be released to fly for exercise, training, or competition unless the owner
of the pigeons is a member in good standing of an organized pigeon club. An organized
pigeon club includes the following: the American Racing Pigeon Union, Inc., the
International Federation of Racing Pigeon Fanciers, the National Pigeon Association, the
American Tippler Society, the International Roller Association, and the Rare Breeds
Pigeon Club.


j. The noise standards in section 6-5 of the Stoughton Code of Ordinances must be adhered
to.


k. The public nuisances – noxious odors standards specified in section 58-8 of the
Stoughton Code of Ordinances must be adhered to.


l. The loft shall be sided similar to the principle structure.
m. All premises on which pigeons are kept and maintained shall be kept reasonably clean


and free from filth, garbage and such substances which attract rodents at all time.
n. All lofts shall be completely enclosed with wire netting or equivalent material that will


prevent pigeons from escaping the confines of the loft or coop.
o. The outline of the loft to house said pigeons shall be of such design to conform to the


symmetry of the existing buildings.
p. The loft floor area shall not exceed fifty square feet in area.







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O- 8 -15 Pigeons 15.doc


q. Any loft housing pigeons shall be elevated a minimum of six inches and maximum of
twelve inches above grade to insure free-way beneath the loft.


r. The loft shall rest upon concrete footings or piers having a minimum depth of four feet.
s. Any loft built expressly to house pigeons shall have a maximum height of six feet.


t. In the event a complaint has been filed with the City prior to renewal of said license within


the calendar year prior to renewal, applicants must receive written approval from not less


than 50 percent of the owner-occupied neighboring property owners whose property is within


100 feet of the applicant's property lines exclusive of street right-of-way prior to approval of


said license by the Common Council. If no complaint has been received, the license renewal


application shall be sent to the Department of Planning & Development only for


consideration.


u. All applications shall be on forms supplied by the City Clerk and the application fee per


application in the amount established by section 14-461.


v. Renewal of such loft license shall be required for each calendar year and if application


for said renewal is not made prior to January 1 of each year, said loft license shall be null


and void and any and all pigeons maintained therein shall be in violation of section 78-


206(8)(z), which shall also require the removal of said loft and pigeons; provided,


however, if a renewal application is made within ten days after January 1 of each year,


the same shall be considered by the Department of Planning & Development by payment


of twice the amount of the loft license fee.


w. Upon filing a conditional use application, the Department of Planning & Development shall


notify all property owners within 300 feet from the applicant's property at least ten days prior


to the Planning Commission meeting and a super majority of three-fourths of the Council


shall be required for the granting of said application if two of the property owners within said


300 feet object in writing prior to the granting of such license by the Common Council.


x. Revocation of license. Sworn complaints for revocation of a loft license may be made in


writing any time by residents of the City of Stoughton and filed with the Department of


Planning & Development to be heard by the Planning Commission with ultimate decision


by the Common Council. All sworn complaints must cite the provisions of this Code which


apply with the understanding that a pigeon is an animal in the context of sections 6-2 and 6-


3, regarding public nuisances, including allowing pigeons to perch or remain on another's


property. Any licensee found in the discretion of the Planning Commission and Common


Council to have violated one or more of said regulations shall be subject to revocation of


said loft license.


y. Commercial breeding of pigeons is not allowed.


z. A conditional use permit shall be required to keep pigeons in any residential district.


Appendix C shall be modified to reflect the conditional accessory uses.


2. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication.







The foregoing ordinance was adopted by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton at a meeting
held on ______________________, 2015.


APPROVED:


_______________________________
Donna Olson, Mayor


ATTEST:


_______________________________
City Clerk


Posted _____________________


Published___________________


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Chapter 78\O- 8 -15 Pigeons 15.doc







S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Ordinance Amendment Notices\Zoning Ord. Amend Pigeons 15.doc


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, March 9, 2015
at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, at the Public Safety Building,
Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider an amendment to the
City of Stoughton Municipal Code of Ordinances. The proposed ordinance amendment is to zoning
code sections 78-105(2)(a)3.b.; 78-105(2)(b)3.b.; 78-105(2)(c)3.b.; 78-105(2)(d)3.b.; 78-105(2)(e)4.b.
and 78-206(8)(z) and to Appendix C of the City of Stoughton Zoning Ordinance, Dane County,
Wisconsin.


The amendments are proposed to conditionally allow the keeping of pigeons within residential districts.
The proposed amendments may be viewed at the Department of Planning & Development, City Hall,
381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589.


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421.


Michael Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published February 19, 2015 and February 26, 2015 Hub















Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
3/9/15
Page 3 of 6


S:\City Clerk\Clerks Office\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 3-9-15.doc


Scheel explained the request.


Krcma questioned access to the site. Scheel stated it is from Oakview Drive.


Jenson questioned the setback for the shed. Scheel stated that will be reviewed under County
zoning and this request is only for creating an additional residential lot.


Motion by Hanna to recommend the Common Council approve R-37-15 as presented, 2nd by
Krcma. Motion carried 6-0.


8. R-36-15 – Warren Brewster requests certified survey map (CSM) approval to
reconfigure 5 parcels into 4 parcels (creating 3 buildable residential lots) at 101 W.
Chicago Street.
Scheel explained the request and noted the survey will have to either be adjusted to meet the 6-
foot setback requirement between lots 2 and 3 or the steps to the porch need to be moved.


Motion by Hohol to recommend the Common Council approve R-36-15 contingent on
adjusting the lot line between lot 2 and 3 to meet the 6-foot minimum setback, 2nd by Jenson.
Motion carried 6-0.


9. Bob Stoehr representing Milestone Senior Living requests site plan approval to construct
a 40 unit senior living complex at 2220 Lincoln Avenue.
Scheel explained the request. Bob Stoehr stated they are seeking to start the project on May 15,
2015.


Motion by Truehl to approve the site plan contingent on the staff review letter dated February
24, 2015, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 6-0.


10. R-25-15 Bob Stoehr representing Milestone Senior Living requests certified survey map
(CSM) approval to combine lots 60 and 61, Second Stiklestad High Field Addition to
Norse View Heights (2208 and 2300 Lincoln Avenue).
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by Hohol to recommend the Common Council approve R-25-15 as presented, 2nd by
Truehl. Motion carried 6-0.


11. O-8-15 - Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-105(2)(a)3.b.; 78-105(2)(b)3.b.; 78-
105(2)(c)3.b.; 78-105(2)(d)3.b.; 78-105(2)(e)4.b.; 78-206(8)(z) and Appendix C. (Related
to the keeping of pigeons)
Scheel gave an overview of the history of this request to amend the zoning code to allow the
keeping of pigeons.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


The following people spoke in favor of the zoning amendment:



mstacey

Highlight







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
3/9/15
Page 4 of 6


S:\City Clerk\Clerks Office\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 3-9-15.doc


Rosalie Bjelde
Kathy Baker
Richard Bjelde
Alan Porter


The following people spoke in opposition to the zoning amendment:
David Leikness
Phyllis Leikness
Marlene Judd


The following people registered in opposition to the zoning amendment:
Steve Grady
Russell Fye
Genevieveann Fye


Hohol stated that due to the lack of city resources in the police department and planning
department including the lack of an animal control officer, he cannot support approval of this
amendment.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Motion by Hohol to recommend the Common Council deny O-8-15 to allow the keeping of
pigeons, 2nd by Truehl.


Truehl stated this use is not appropriate within the City.


Krcma suggested tabling the request.


Hohol stated he believes the Council wants a recommendation to come from the Planning
Commission.


Jenson stated he was one of the aldermen that wanted this request to come back to Planning
and now after hearing all the testimony he favors denial of the request.


Krcma stated he will vote in favor of the motion to deny.


Motion carried 6-0.


12. O-7-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend sections 6-2; 6-3 and 14-461 for the keeping of
animals.
Scheel explained the request which is also related to pigeons.


Motion Hohol to Table this request until Council action on O-8-15 related to the keeping of
pigeons, 2nd by Krcma. Motion carried 6-0.



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight







S:\Planning\RJS\Dept._Memos\CLERK - Council- 032415.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: March 10, 2015


To: Lana Kropf
City Clerk


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Subject: Items for the March 24, 2015 Common Council Meeting.


Council Agenda:


New Business


1. R-26-15 – Elizabeth Cwik, BWZ Architects requests a conditional use permit for an
Indoor Commercial Entertainment Use (Wedding Reception Venue) at the Tobacco
Warehouse, 515 E. Main Street.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this request and
recommend Council approve R-26-15 contingent on the staff review letter dated February 24,
2015. Indoor commercial entertainment uses are allowed as a conditional use within the
Heavy Industrial district along Main Street. The existing parking layout is sufficient for the
proposed use but any additional use will require a review of the parking. A compliant
photometric plan has been received. Since the building is a Local Landmark, a certificate of
appropriateness (COA) has been requested from the Landmark Commission for the proposed
lighting to be added to the exterior of the building. The Landmarks Commission will review
the COA request on March 12, 2015. Staff has no suggestions to add conditions to this use at
this time. The resolution, Planning minutes, staff review letter and related materials are
provided. Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


2. R-27-15 – Stoughton Hospital requests a conditional use permit approval for an Indoor
Institutional use (Building Addition of two bay ambulance garage and renovations) at
900 Ridge Street.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this request and
recommend Council approve R-27-15 contingent on the staff review letter dated February 25,
2015. Hospitals are allowed as a conditional use within the Institutional district. The
proposed addition will add roughly 14,500 square feet to the building while renovating
approximately 18,000 square feet of existing building. The addition and renovations are
needed to increase the quality of treatment space to meet current best practices for patient







S:\Planning\RJS\Dept._Memos\CLERK - Council- 032415.doc


care. Staff has no suggestions to add conditions to this use at this time. The resolution, staff
review letter, planning minutes and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


3. R-37-15 - Preston Baker requests an Extra-Territorial Jurisdictional (ETJ) land division
(CSM) approval to allow the creation of an additional residential building lot at 1787
Oakview Drive and 2739 Yahara Drive, Town of Pleasant Springs.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission reviewed this request and recommend Council
approve R-37-15 as presented. Land divisions within 1.5 miles of the City fall within the
City’s extra-territorial jurisdictional limits and are required to be approved by the Common
Council according to the City’s land division ordinance. This request is to reconfigure 2
parcels to create an additional buildable residential lot (3 lots total). The resolution, Planning
minutes, CSM and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


4. R-36-15 – Warren Brewster requests a certified survey map (CSM) approval to
reconfigure 5 parcels into 4 parcels (creating 3 buildable residential lots) at 101 W.
Chicago Street.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission reviewed this request and recommend Council
approve R-36-15 contingent on the CSM being modified to meet the required 6-foot side lot
line setback from the porch steps between lots 2 and 3. The CSM request is proposed to
reconfigure 5 existing parcels to create 3 buildable residential lots and 1 lot for the existing
home. The resolution, updated CSM and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


5. R-25-15 Bob Stoehr representing Milestone Senior Living requests certified survey map
(CSM) approval to combine the property at 2208 and 2300 Lincoln Avenue (lots 60 and
61, Second Stiklestad High Field Addition to Norse View Heights).
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission reviewed this request and recommend Council
approve R-25-15 as presented. The CSM is proposed to combine the parcels to allow the
construction of a senior living complex. The applicant is working with Stoughton Utilities to
vacate the easement between the 2 lots. The CSM, Planning minutes and resolution are
provided. Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


6. O-8-15 - Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-105(2)(a)3.b.; 78-105(2)(b)3.b.; 78-
105(2)(c)3.b.; 78-105(2)(d)3.b.; 78-105(2)(e)4.b.; 78-206(8)(z) and Appendix C. (Related
to the keeping of pigeons)
On January 12, 2015, the Planning Commission made a recommendation to the Common
Council to deny the request by Rosalie Bjelde to amend the zoning code to allow the keeping
of pigeons.


On January 27, 2015 the Common Council voted to send this request back to the Planning
Commission to provide a recommendation on an amendment to allow pigeons.


On February 12, 2015 the Planning Commission directed staff to amend the draft ordinance
for the keeping of pigeons and bring that draft back for a public hearing.



mstacey

Highlight







S:\Planning\RJS\Dept._Memos\CLERK - Council- 032415.doc


On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this zoning
amendment request and recommend Council deny O-8-15 as presented. The draft ordinance,
Planning minutes and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council denial 6–0.


7. O-5-15 - Proposed ordinance to amend section 78-706(5) related to exterior parking of
recreational vehicles.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this request and
recommend Council approve O-5-15 as presented. This amendment is proposed due to
several complaints about the restrictions related to the parking of recreational vehicles. The
ordinance, Planning minutes and related materials are provided.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.


8. O-4-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend sections 78-015; 78-205(4); 78-503; 78-504; and
78-718 for fencing regulations and other clarifications.
On March 9, 2015 the Planning Commission held a public hearing, reviewed this request and
recommend Council approve O-4-15 as presented. The ordinance and Planning minutes are
provided.


Zoning amendment explanations are as follows:


Sec. 78-015: Clarification for the definition of “Addition” to be consistent with the State
Code.


Sec. 78-205(4): Correcting the word migration with the word mitigation.


Sec. 78-503: Removing the statement to “see article V” since the statement is within article
V.


Sec. 78-504: Removing the statement to “see article V” since the statement is within article
V.


Sec. 78-718: Clarifying that all fencing must meet all zoning requirements no matter the
height and landscape walls are not regulated.


Planning Commission recommends Council approval 6 – 0.



mstacey

Highlight





